
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

      
 

 

                           
 
 

 
 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Thursday, April 20, 2017 
 

7:00 PM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

James Steenbergen, President • Kathryn Kaminski, Vice President • Kay Danziger, Secretary 

Anna Gonzales • Dr. Tyson Harrell • Melisa Roberts • Frank Torres 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 



LAMAR CISD BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

BRAZOS CROSSING ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

3911 AVENUE I, ROSENBERG, TEXAS 

APRIL 20, 2017 

7:00 PM 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to order and establishment of a quorum  

2. Opening of meeting  

3. Student Reports - Foster High School Culinary Arts  

4. Recognitions/awards  

A. Foster High School National & State Champion Wrestler  

5. Introductions  

6. Audience to patrons  

7. Approval of minutes  

A. March 21, 2017 - Special Meeting (Workshop) 6 

B. March 23, 2017 - Regular Board Meeting 10 

8. Board members reports  

A. Meetings and events  

9. Superintendent reports  

A. Meetings and events  

B. Information for immediate attention  

10. ACTION ITEMS  

A. Goal:  Instructional  

1. Consider approval of out-of-state student trip requests, including, but not 

limited to: 

 

a. Math Finalists 18 

b. Technology Students Association (TSA) 19 

2. Consider adoption of the Kathleen Joerger Lindsey Elementary School 

Mascot and School Colors 

20 

B. Goal: Planning  

1. Consider ratification of Quarterly Investment Report 22 

2. Consider approval of budget amendment requests 29 

3. Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 31 

4. Consider designation of Patsy Schultz, RTA as Tax Assessor-Collector for 

Lamar Consolidated ISD  

35 

5. Consider approval of depository bank contract extension 43 

6. Consider approval of independent auditors for the 2016-2017 school year 45 

7. Consider approval of Instructional Materials Allotment and TEKS 56 



Certification  

8. Consider approval of blanket purchase agreement (BPA) with HON 

Company LLC 

58 

9. Consider approval of districtwide vending machine services 61 

10. Consider approval of request for 2017 Historic Site Exemption 

Qualification for Darst-Yoder House 

63 

11. Discussion and potential action regarding local option exemption for 

taxpayers age 65 or older or disabled 

67 

12. Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming:  

a. Public School Paraprofessionals' Day 68 

b. School Nurses' Week 70 

c. Teacher Appreciation Week 72 

13. Consider retail sales interlocal agreement for electricity with the Texas 

General Land Office 

74 

14. Consider approval of job order contracting award for Pink Elementary 

School 

88 

15. Consider approval of MUD No. 142 annexation  90 

16. Consider approval of additional geotechnical engineering services for the 

Foster High School water plant upgrades 

111 

17. Consider approval of an Interlocal Agreement with Fort Bend County 

Municipal Utility Districts No. 106, No. 108, No. 109, and No. 117 

114 

18. Consider approval of architect contract 122 

19. Consider approval of the procurement method for the all-weather sports 

field and track projects at Dickinson and Campbell Elementary Schools 

123 

20. Discussion and/or possible action on the current use of facilities rental fees 125 

C. Goal:  Safe, Drug-Free and Disciplined Schools  

1. Consider approval of the Secondary Co-Curricular and Extra-Curricular 

Code of Conduct, Secondary Dress and Grooming, and Lamar CISD 

Student Code of Conduct for the 2017-2018 school year 

132 

D. Goal:  Personnel  

1. Consider approval of new appraisers for teaching staff, 2016-2017 school 

year 

134 

E. Goal:  Technology  

1. Consider approval of District Learning Management System 135 

2. Consider approval of districtwide tardy kiosk implementation 143 

11. INFORMATION ITEMS  

A. Goal:  Instructional  

1. 2016-2017 Summer School 144 

2. 2016-2017 School Health Advisory Council 146 

B. Goal: Planning  



1. Tax Collection Report 147 

2. Payments for Construction Projects 153 

3. Bond Update  

a. 2011 156 

b. 2014 164 

4. Projects funded by 2011 available bond funds 176 

5. Transportation Update 177 

6. Medical/Rx Plan structural changes 179 

12. CLOSED SESSION  

A. Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 

551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the 

following purposes: (Time___________________) 

 

1. Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, 

employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a 

public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public 

officer or employee. 

180 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of 

professional personnel 

181 

b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 184 

c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 185 

d. Consider renewal of contract for professional teachers/support personnel 188 

e. Consider renewals for late hires 278 

f. Consider proposed termination of staff on probationary contracts, 

including teachers, at end of contract 

 

2. Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, 

lease or value of real property 

 

a. Land  

3. Section 551.071 - To meet with the District's attorney to discuss matters in 

which the duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 

with the Open Meetings Act, including the grievance/complaint hearing. 

 

a. Any item listed on the agenda  

b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school 

finance litigation 

 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 

 Action on Closed Session Items 

 Future Agenda Items 

 Upcoming Meetings and Events 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (Time                             ) 

 

If during the course of the meeting covered by this notice, the Board should determine that a closed 

session of the Board should be held or is required in relation to an item noticed in this meeting, then such 

closed session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas Government Code (the Open 





 
 
 

Special Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 
 

The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Special Meeting Held 
 
On this the 21st day of March 2017, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Special Session (Workshop) in Rosenberg, Fort 
Bend County, Texas. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Mr. James 
Steenbergen, at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Members Present: 
 
James Steenbergen  President 
Kathryn Kaminski  Vice President 
Kay Danziger   Secretary 
Tyson Harrell   Member 
Melisa Roberts  Member 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Anna Gonzales  Member 
Frank Torres   Member 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
Linda Lane   Executive Director of Elementary Education 
Leslie Haack   Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Kathleen Bowen  Chief Human Resources Officer 
Mike Rockwood  Executive Director of Community Relations 
David Jacobson  Chief Technology Information Officer 
Valerie Vogt   Academic Administrator 
 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 
 
 

6



Minutes of Special Board Meeting March 21, 2017 – page 25 
 
2. Discussion of March 23rd Regular Board Meeting Agenda Items 
 

The Board reviewed the March 23rd Regular Board Meeting agenda items. 
 

10. ACTION ITEMS 
 
10. B GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
10. B-1  Consider approval of budget amendment requests 
 

Ms. Kaminski asked if the District would save money if Ron Clark would give the 
training in the District.  Ms. Vogt said the Ron Clark Academy is a training campus 
and it is not the same if the training was done on our campus.  It is a hands-on 
training. 
 
Ms. Danziger asked how many teachers have gone to this training.  Ms. Vogt said 
she did not have a number, but many have paid their own way to attend the training. 
 

10. B-4  Consider approval of amendment to contract for districtwide department process audit  
  to include an expanded program scope audit of the Special Education Department 

 
Ms. Danziger said that this was an add-on to the previous contract. 
 

10. B-8  Consider approval of Go Public Gulf Coast  
 
Ms. Kaminski asked if this group is just starting.  Mr. Rockwood said yes.  She 
verified that it would be initially $5,500 and then after that $11,000 annually.  Mr. 
Rockwood said that was correct.  He said there are 24 area Houston school districts 
that are part of this Go Public Gulf Coast campaign.  This is to positively promote 
public education.  Ms. Kaminski asked if they came to us.  Mr. Rockwood said it is 
school board driven, sort of like Grass Roots.   
 
Ms. Danziger said that she is on this committee and they are trying to make a 
difference. 
 
Ms. Kaminski asked what we get from it for our District.  Mr. Rockwood said this is a 
collective effort.  He said you can collectively get more accomplished if you take a 
little bit from all the school districts to promote public education.  One District does not 
have to make a big investment in marketing or advertising. 
 

10. B-9  Proposed November 2017 Bond Election 
 
  Mr. McKeever gave an update on the 2014 Bond.   
 
  Ms. Ludwig gave a presentation on Bond 101. 
 

Mr. Rockwood gave a presentation on the process for the 2017 Bond Planning.   
 
Ms. Roberts asked for a reminder of what the 2014 Bond amount was.  Mr. 
Rockwood said it was $240.6 million.  She asked if it included the Fulshear complex.  
Mr. Rockwood said Fulshear was in the 2011 Bond.   
 
Ms. Kaminski said the report stated that we would need at least 3 elementary schools 
in the next 3 years.  Mr. Rockwood said by 2021, this is pulled directly from the 

7



Minutes of Special Board Meeting March 21, 2017 – page 26 
 

demographic report.  The 2014 Bond had 5 elementary schools with Bentley already 
being built and Lindsey will open in August.  The construction plans are in place for 
Carter.  This leaves 2 remaining schools with the need for 3 additional schools 
between now and 2021.   
 
Ms. Danziger said during the last Bond they added more money for land so that land 
could be purchased in advance of the schools.  She asked if we are doing that for this 
bond.  Mr. Rockwood said we are asking for the same amount of money for land.   
 
Ms. Roberts asked how many other campuses like Austin Elementary need to be 
renovated.  Mr. Rockwood said Austin Elementary is the last one that has not had a 
front circulation renovation. 
 
Ms. Kaminski said she would really like to have a discussion on adding a fourth 
elementary school to the Bond. 
 

10. B-10 Discussion and Action on Master Plan Principles 
 
Mr. Steenbergen commented that the auditors have been asked to look at these 
master plan principles.   
 
Ms. Danziger asked what the maximum number of students is for Carter Elementary.  
Mr. Steenbergen said it is still 750. 
 

11. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
11. A GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
11. A-1  Campus Climate Surveys 

 
Dr. Harrell commented they have discussed understaffing of counselors and by the 
survey results, students seem to think counselors are understaffed as well.  Mr. 
Rockwood said this is potentially something to look at in the future. 
 
Ms. Roberts said the last slide states 75% graded the District an A or B, she thought 
in the first slide they gave a C.  Mr. Rockwood said this says 75% of the students 
graded it an A or B.   
 

11. A-7  Possible donation from Fort Bend County Municipal Utility Districts #106, #108, #109, 
  and #117 

 
Ms. Danziger verified that the MUDs pay for the initial project but the school district 
maintains moving forward.  Dr. Randle said that was correct.  Ms. Danziger asked if 
we will work with them on the type of surface since we have to maintain it.  Mr. 
McKeever said they are looking at a synthetic turf similar to what is at Traylor 
Stadium.  This surface would have about a 12-15 year life. 
 

3. AUDIENCE TO PATRONS 
 

None 
 
 

8



Minutes of Special Board Meeting March 21, 2017 – page 27 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION  PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional 
personnel 

b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 
c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 
d. Consider extension of administrative contracts  
e. Consider employment of Campus Coordinator for Terry High School 

2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property 

a. Land  
3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the 

duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional  
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including 
the grievance/complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda 
b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance 

litigation 
 
The Board did not convene in Closed Session. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:28 p.m. 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
James Steenbergen     Kay Danziger 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 

9



 
 
 

Regular Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 
 

The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Regular Meeting Held 
On this the 23rd day of March 2017, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Regular Session in Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Mr. James 
Steenbergen, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Members Present: 
 
James Steenbergen  President 
Kathryn Kaminski  Vice President 
Kay Danziger   Secretary 
Anna Gonzales  Member 
Tyson Harrell   Member 
Melisa Roberts  Member 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Frank Torres   Member 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
Linda Lane   Executive Director of Elementary Education 
Leslie Haack   Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Kathleen Bowen  Chief Human Resources Officer 
Mike Rockwood  Executive Director of Community Relations 
David Jacobson  Chief Technology Information Officer 
Valerie Vogt   Academic Administrator 
Rick Morris   Attorney 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 
2. OPENING OF MEETING 
 
A moment of silence was observed and the pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

10



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting March 23, 2017 – page 29 
 
3. STUDENT REPORTS 
 

a. Huggins Hounds “Singing in the Rain” 
 
The following students from Huggins shared how to make mini rain barrels:   

 Emma Hagensick 
 Rhett Powell 
 Ashlynn Bryson 
 Luke Zubicek 
 Amaleah Gray 
 Will McCrea 
 Kellyn Trapino 
 
      They presented the Board with mini rain barrels. 

 
4. RECOGNITIONS/AWARDS 
 

Mr. Steenbergen said the Office of the Secretary of Defense recognized Lamar CISD and 
singled out one employee for contributing to the nation’s security.  Eva Zamora from Payroll 
was honored on March 9th as a patriot employee by the Secretary of Defense’s employer 
support of the guard and reserve program for going above and beyond in her duties. 
 
Mr. Steenbergen said HEB has been a big supporter of public schools and they are now 
establishing the Holdsworth Center.  This is a leadership institute in Austin which will work 
with school districts over a five year period to empower individual leaders, including 
superintendents, principals, and key administrators to reach their full potential.  Initially they 
contacted 27 schools in June they will pick six to participate in this program.   
 
Mr. Steenbergen said at a recent TABSE conference, Dr. Randle received recognition from 
Houston Mayor Sylvester Turner for being a visionary leader increasing student achievement 
or at risk students, documented evidence of closing the achievement gap, and demonstrating 
school improvement across the district.  In addition, Dr. Randle and three other Houston area 
districts were recognized in the demonstration spotlight for their work in this area.  As the 
recognitions closed, Dr. Randle was surprised with the announcement that his lifetime work 
in education in Texas was being honored by having TABSE demonstration district spotlight 
named after him.  In future years it will be called the Dr. Thomas E. Randle district spotlight 
recognition.   

 
5. INTRODUCTIONS 
 

Dr. Kathleen Bowen introduced new staff to the Board: 
 Heather Williams, principal of Lindsey Elementary School 
 

6. AUDIENCE TO PATRONS 
 

Mr. David Vrshek addressed the Board about tax relief to senior citizens.  He said they feel 
the over 65/disabled exemption of $10,000 is not enough.  They wish to have this increased 
by $10,000.  He thinks the District should ask the financial advisor to generate several 
scenarios based on different levels of appraised value increases to check the numbers.  This 
must be approved before May 31 to meet the FBCAD rule on changing exemptions.   
 
Ms. Lynn Whelan also addressed the Board about the tax relief to senior citizens.  She said 
she is a retired teacher and loved being in the profession, but could not wait to leave 
because she felt the system had changed.  She believes that money is not the answer to the 

11



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting March 23, 2017 – page 30 
 

educational problem, but the extreme lack of discipline and respect in the classrooms.  She 
feels when these two components are put back in the equation, students will perform better.   
 
Ms. Carol Gaas addressed the Board about facility rate increases to the Terry Natatorium.  
The issue is specific to R&R Aquatics but it may also impact others who may want to use the 
Terry Natatorium.  She said that at the time the facility was built in 1981, Lamar CISD Board 
members discussed the possibility of having a year round swim program available to the 
community.  R&R Aquatics has fulfilled this vision.  R&R Aquatics is considered a low cost 
swim team option.  They have enjoyed free use of the facility since the beginning.  She said it 
has not been completely free, they donate yearly equipment that often exceeds thousands of 
dollars per summer.  Her concern is the impact of the increased rate charges on that facility 
that now equals the new Lamar Natatorium.  She said this will impact the amount they 
charge swimmers in the programs and possibly reduce the number of swimmers.  She would 
like the Board to consider continuing the payment by R&R Aquatics of in-kind equipment to 
the Terry Natatorium.  She said a minimum amount could be established for each season of 
use. 
 
Mr. Joe Greenwell addressed the Board about the rate increases for facilities.  He said he 
can tell them for a fact, unless they changed, R&R has never paid a fee.  He said it is 
because, the George Foundation when they donated the pool to the District, laid out that it 
would be provided free of charge to R&R Aquatics.  He said R&R was not specifically 
named, but it was structured that the local swim teams would not pay.  He feels these rate 
increases will kill swimming in the District.   
 

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. February 16, 2017 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

It was moved by Ms. Kaminski and seconded by Ms. Danziger that the Board of 
Trustees approve the minutes of February 16, 2017 Regular Board Meeting.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 
  

8. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
 

a. Meetings and Events 
 

Ms. Kaminski reported the Facilities Committee met and reported the status of projects in 
the District.  She attended the Read Across America at Arredondo Elementary School, 
YIP, and the SHAC meeting. 
 
Ms. Danziger reported the Technology Committee did not meet but she reported the 
status of projects in the District.  She attended the Bentley Elementary dedication, went 
to Austin for Legislative day, and did the Read Across America at Austin and Arredondo 
Elementary Schools. 
 

9. SUPERINTENDENT REPORTS 
 
a. Meetings and Events 
 
b. Information for Immediate Attention 

 
 

 

12



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting March 23, 2017 – page 31 
 
ACTION ITEMS FOR CONSENT OF APPROVAL:  10. A-1 – 10. A-2; 10. B-1 - 10. B-20; and 10. 
C-1 

 
It was moved by Ms. Danziger and seconded by Ms. Kaminski that the Board of Trustees approve 
these action items as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
10. A GOAL:  INSTRUCTIONAL 
 
10. A-1 Approval of out-of-state student trip requests, including, but not limited to: 
 

a. Foster High School Close Up Team  
 
Approved out-of-state travel for Foster High School Close Up Team to travel to 
Washington D.C. from May 13–18, 2018. 

 
b. Foster High School and George Ranch High School DECA 

 
Approved out-of-state travel for Foster High School and George Ranch High 
School DECA to travel to Anaheim, CA on April 26-30, 2017. 
 

c. Foster High School and Lamar Consolidated High School Speech and 
Debate 

 
Approved out-of-state travel for Foster High School and Lamar Consolidated High 
School Speech and Debate to attend the 2017 National Individual Events 
Tournament of Champions (NIETOC) in Kansas City, Missouri, from May 12-15, 
2017. 

 
d. Lamar Consolidated High School Speech and Debate 

 
Approved out-of-state travel for Lamar Consolidated High School Speech and 
Debate students to attend the 2017 National Tournament of Champions in 
Lexington, Kentucky, from April 28 - May 1, 2017. 
 

10. A-2 Approval of instructional materials 
 
Approved the instructional materials recommendation by the District Instructional 
Materials Adoption Committee for use in K-12 classrooms in the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District.   

 
10. B GOAL:  PLANNING 

 
10. B-1 Approval of budget amendment requests 
 

Approved budget amendment requests as attached.  (See inserted page 31-A.) 
 
10. B-2 Ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 

 
Ratified the Financial and Investment Reports as presented. 
 

10. B-3 Approval of offer to purchase tax resale property 
 
Approved the bid by Juan Zavala for $1,860.66 to acquire the one (1) tax resale 
property identified.  (See inserted pages 31-B—31-H.) 

13



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting March 23, 2017 – page 32 
 
10. B-4 Approval of amendment to contract for districtwide department process audit  
 to include an expanded program scope audit of the Special Education 
 Department 

 
Approved an amendment to the districtwide department process audit contract with 
McConnell & Jones, LLP in the amount of $20,917, approved budgetary amendments 
as necessary, and authorized the Board President to execute the agreement.  (See 
inserted pages 32-A—32-B.)  
 

10. B-5 Approval of request for 2017 Historic Site Exemption Qualification for the  
  George Ranch Historical Park  
   

Approved 2017 Historic Site Exemption Qualification for the George Ranch Historical 
Park. 

 
10. B-6 Adoption of donations to the district, including, but not limited to: 
  a. Austin Elementary School 
  b. George Ranch High School 
  c. Joe Hubenak Elementary School 
   

Approved donations to the district. 

 
10. B-7 Approval of resolutions proclaiming: 

a.  Education Administrative Professionals' Week 
 
Approved the attached resolution designating April 24 – 28, 2017 as Educational 
Administrative Professionals’ Week in the Lamar Consolidated Independent School 
District.  (See inserted page 32-C.) 
 
b.  Librarians' Week 
 
Approved the attached resolution designating the week of April 9 – 15, 2017 as 
Librarians’ Week in the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District.  (See 
inserted page 32-D.) 
 
c. Volunteer Appreciation Week  
 
Approved the attached resolution designating the week of April 17 – 21, 2017 as 
Public School Volunteer Appreciation Week in the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District.  (See inserted page 32-E.) 
 

10. B-8 Approval of Go Public Gulf Coast 
 

Approved the District’s membership with Go Public Gulf Coast. 
 

10. B-9 Proposed November 2017 Bond Election 
 

Approved and discussed the proposed November 2017 Bond Election.   
 

10. B-10 Discussion and Action on Master Plan Principles 
 

No action. 
  

14



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting March 23, 2017 – page 33 
 
10. B-11 Approval of resolution nominating the Region 4 2017 Superintendent of the 
 Year 
 

Approved the attached resolution nominating Dr. Thomas Randle for the Region IV 
Superintendent of the Year.  (See inserted page 33-A.) 
 

10. B-12 Approval of additional materials testing for Lindsey Elementary School 
  

Approved Terracon, Inc. for additional materials testing for Lindsey Elementary 
School in the amount of $2,500 and authorized the Board President to execute the 
agreement.  (See inserted pages 33-B—33-C.) 
 

10. B-13 Approval of hazardous materials surveying services for the Support Services 
 Facility 
  

Approved Environmental Solutions, Inc. (ESI) for hazardous materials surveying 
services for the existing Support Services Facility in the total amount of $1,550 and 
authorized the Board President to execute the agreement.  (See inserted pages 33-
D—33-F.) 
 

10. B-14 Approval of CSP #08-2017VRG for the band hall additions at Lamar 
 Consolidated High School and Terry High School 
  

Approved IKLO Construction for the construction of the band hall additions at Lamar 
Consolidated High School and Terry High School in the amount of $1,070,000 and 
authorized the Board President to execute the agreement.   
 

10. B-15 Approval of materials testing for the band hall addition at Lamar Consolidated 
 High School  
 

Approved Terracon, Inc. for materials testing for the band hall addition at Lamar 
Consolidated High School in the total amount of $27,000 and authorized the Board 
President to execute the agreement.  (See inserted pages 33-G—33-R.) 
 

10. B-16 Approval of materials testing for the band hall addition at Terry High School 
  

Approved Terracon, Inc. for materials testing for the band hall addition at Terry High 
School in the total amount of $21,000 and authorized the Board President to execute 
the agreement.  (See inserted pages 33-S—33-EE.) 
 

10. B-17 Approval of change order #1 for the replacement chillers 
  

Approved change order #1 to American Mechanical Services, LLC for revision to the 
scheduled completion for the replacement chillers and authorized the Board President 
to execute the agreement.   
 

10. B-18 Approval of amendment #3 to the interlocal cooperation contract with the Texas 
 General Land Office 
  

Approved amendment #3 to the interlocal cooperation contract with The Texas 
General Land Office for the purchase of natural gas and authorized the Board 
President to execute the agreement.  (See inserted pages 33-FF—33-KK.) 
 
 

15



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting March 23, 2017 – page 34 
 
10. B-19 Approval of amendment #2 to RFQuote #18-2016LN the HVAC full coverage 
 maintenance and service agreement  
 

Approved amendment #2 to the RFQuote #18-2016LN full coverage maintenance 
and service agreement with Texas AirSystems in the amount of $12,936 per year for 
the addition of Bentley Elementary School to the preventative maintenance program 
and allow the Board President to execute the agreement.  (See inserted page 34-A.) 
 

10. B-20 Approval of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District (MUD) #142 service 
 agreement for the Agricultural Facility #2  
 

Approved Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District (MUD) #142 service agreement 
for Agricultural Facility #2 and authorized the Board President to execute the 
agreement.  (See inserted pages 34-B—34-C.) 
 

10. C GOAL:  PERSONNEL 
 
10. C-1 Approval of 2017-2018 Employee Report/End Date Table 
 

Adopted the 2017 – 2018 Employee Report/End Date Schedule as presented and 
approved begin and end dates for job titles as indicated on the table.  (See inserted 
pages 34-D – 34-G.) 

 
11. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
11. A GOAL:  PLANNING 

 
11. A-1 Campus Climate Surveys 

 
11. A-2 Tax Collection Report 
 
11. A-3 Payments for Construction Projects 
 
11. A-4 Bond Update 

 
a. 2011 

 
b. 2014 

 
11. A-5 Projects funded by 2011 available bond funds 
 
11. A-6 Transportation Update 

 
11. A-7 Possible donation from Fort Bend County Municipal Utility Districts #106, #108, 

#109, and #117 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION  PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

16



Minutes of Regular Board Meeting March 23, 2017 – page 35 
 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional 
personnel 

b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 
c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 
d. Consider extension of administrative contracts 
e. Consider employment of Campus Coordinator for Terry High School 

2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property 

a. Land  
3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the 

duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional  
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including 
the grievance/complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda 
b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance 

litigation 
 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 7:44 p.m. for the purposes listed above. 
 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION – ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION 
The Board reconvened in Open Session at 8:09 p.m. 
 
12. A-1(d) Consider Extension of Administrative Contracts 

It was moved by Ms. Gonzales and seconded by Ms. Roberts that the Board of 
Trustees approve the extension of administrative contracts as presented.  The motion 
carried unanimously.  (See inserted pages 35-A – 35-F.) 

 
12. A-1(e) Consider employment of Campus Coordinator for Terry High School 

It was moved by Ms. Danziger and seconded by Ms. Gonzales that the Board of 
Trustees approve the recommendation of Cornelius Anthony as the Campus 
Coordinator for Terry High School.  The motion carried unanimously.   

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Facility Rental 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS AND EVENTS 
Special Olympics on April 8, 2017 
Job Fair on April 8, 2017 
State of the Schools 
State of the County 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 8:11 p.m. 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
James Steenbergen     Kay Danziger 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 

17



  
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF OUT-OF-STATE STUDENT TRIP REQUESTS 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve out-of-state travel for the district math finalists to 
travel to the National MathCON Competition at the University of Illinois in Chicago, 
Illinois on April 22, 2017.      
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The Lamar Consolidated Independent School District math finalists request 
permission to travel to Chicago, Illinois on April 21, 2017 by airplane. The 
approximate cost per individual will be $550, which includes the cost of airfare, 
meals, hotel, ticket fees, tuition, and ground transportation. The total cost of the trip 
is estimated to be $4,770.  Seven students are expected to participate plus the Math 
Coordinator and two chaperones. The expenses for the trip will be paid for by Lamar 
CISD funds. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
MathCON is a mathematics competition for students in grades 5-12.  The goals of 
MathCON are to contribute to math academics by challenging and entertaining 
students with insightful math problems and to promote high-quality math education.  
This year, 50,000 students participated in the online assessment nationwide.  Of the 
576 finalists, eight were from Lamar CISD and thirteen additional Lamar CISD 
students were selected as alternates. 
 
 
Submitted by:     Valerie Vogt, Academic Administrator  

Kate Marchena, Coordinator of Mathematics   
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

9.A.#1a. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

18



 

 

   
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF OUT-OF-STATE STUDENT TRIP REQUESTS 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve out-of-state travel for Lamar Consolidated High School, 
George Ranch High School, Foster High School, Churchill Fulshear High School, Lamar Junior 
High School, Antoinette Reading Junior High School, and Briscoe Junior High School Career 
and Technical Education (CTE) and non-CTE students that have qualified to travel to the 
Technology Students Association (TSA) National contest in Orlando, Florida on June 19-26, 
2017. 
  
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Approximately 100 students from LCHS, GRHS, FHS, CFHS, LJH, ARJH, and BJH students 
and ten chaperones and administrators request to travel to Orlando, Florida  on June 19-26, 
2017 to attend the Technology Students Association (TSA) National Competition.  The 
approximate cost for the students, sponsors, and administrators will be approximately $71,000.  
This includes meals, charter bus transportation, lodging, and registration fees.  The expenses 
for the trip will be paid from the district’s Career and Technical Education (CTE) budget, school 
budgets, and activity funds.  
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
April 5 through April 8, these TSA students LCHS, GRHS, FHS, CFHS, LJH, ARJH, and BJH 
TSA students, under the supervision of High School Project Lead the Way engineering 
instructors Kristin Rausch, Adam Frenzel, Emily Gresham, Jessica Janis, Doug Matheson, Craig 
Tevis and junior high Technology Education instructors Carsen Collins, Rachelle Ferguson, Lori 
Stafford, and CTE instructor Melinda Brasuell competed at the state contest in Waco, TX  and 
earned the right to participate at the national competition.  Students competed in STEM-based 
events such as Structural Engineering, Transportation Modeling, Scientific and Technical 
Visualization, Inventions and Innovations, Microcontroller Design, Technology Bowl, Dragster 
Design, Technical Sketching, Technology Problem Solving, Animatronics, and Future 
Technology Teacher. 
  
Submitted by:   Joel Garrett, Director, CTE 
   Leslie Haack, Executive Director, Secondary Education 
   
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent  

9.A.#1b. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

19



  
 

CONSIDER ADOPTION OF THE KATHLEEN JOERGER LINDSEY  
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL MASCOT AND SCHOOL COLORS 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Lions as the mascot and crimson and navy as the 
school colors for Kathleen Joerger Lindsey Elementary School.  
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Community and student feedback was garnered through a Lindsey student input 
meeting and two parent presentations in which attendees viewed a school color and 
school mascot presentation. Following each presentation, attendees submitted their 
vote of preference for school colors and mascot. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Linda Lane, Executive Director of Elementary Education 
    Heather Williams, Principal, Kathleen Joerger Lindsey Elementary  
    School 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

9.A.#2. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

20



 MASCOT /COLOR OPTION BALLOT TOTALS

VOTES Crimson/ Navy Silver/Navy Green/Navy Lions  Wolf Pack Grizzlies
PARENT VOTES 60 32 13 50 46 9
STUDENT VOTES 85 100 18 97 99 7

Total 145 132 31 147 145 16

MAJORITY COLOR VOTE Crimson/Navy

MAJORITY MASCOT VOTE Lions

21



  
 

 
 

CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT 
 

DECEMBER 2016 THROUGH FEBRUARY 2017 
 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees ratify the quarterly investment report as submitted for the 
quarter ending February 28, 2017. 
 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
This report is required by state law and local policy CDA and includes all the pertinent 
information regarding the District’s current investments.  Investment officers for the 
District will be present at the meeting to answer any questions about the report and the 
District’s cash and investment position.  
 
 
Submitted by:   Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
                         Yvonne Dawson, Budget and Treasury Officer                        
                         Michele Reynolds, Director of Finance  
                        
  
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 

9.B.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUESTS 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of budget amendment requests. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The proposed budget amendments require school board approval because budgeted 
funds are being reallocated between functional categories and/or new budgets are 
being established.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Budget amendments are mandated by the state for budgeted funds reallocated from 
one functional level, and state and/or federal program to another.  These budget 
changes are usually the result of unexpected levels of expenditures in certain 
categories and amendments are for legal compliance. Other budget amendments are 
determined by the School Board.   
 
Since the operating budget for Lamar CISD is adopted at the functional level, budget 
revisions are required for reallocations between functional levels or when new budgets 
are being established. All necessary budget amendments must be formally adopted by 
the School Board and recorded in the Board minutes.  (TEA Financial Accountability 
System Resource Guide, Financial Accounting & Reporting, Update 15.0) 
 
 
Submitted by:      Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
                            Yvonne Dawson, RTSBA, Budget and Treasury Officer   
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
 

9.B.#2. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

29



Bentley Elementary is requesting a budget change to pay for field trip bus expenses. 
Funds originally budgeted for wireless services are not needed. 
 
199-51  Plant Maintenance & Operations (1,500.00) 
199-11 Classroom Instruction 1,500.00 
 

 
George Jr. High School is requesting a budget change to purchase laptop for principal.  
 
199-13 Curriculum and Instr. Staff Development (1,000.00) 
199-23 School Leadership 1,000.00 
 

 
Leaman Jr. High School is requesting a budget change to pay for counselor to attend 
Professional School Counselor conference hosted by Texas School Counselor 
Association. 
 
199-23 School Leadership (607.68) 
199-31 Guidance, Counseling and Evaluation 607.68 
 

 
The Technology Department is requesting a budget change to pay for wireless services 
for the summer GROW project. 
 
199-53 Data Processing Services (1,400.00) 
199-51  Plant Maintenance & Operations 1,400.00 
 

 
The Payroll Department is requesting a budget change to add cabinet doors and 
shelving to the payroll office. 
 
199-41 General Administration (3,656.38) 
199-51  Plant Maintenance & Operations 3,656.38 
 

 
The Accelerated Language Programs Department is requesting a budget pay extra duty 
for curriculum writing and revisions. 
 
199-11  Classroom Instruction (2,874.00) 
199-13 Curriculum and Instr. Staff Development 2,874.00 
 
 

30



 
 
 

CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF FINANCIAL AND INVESTMENT REPORTS 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Trustees ratify the Financial and Investment Reports as presented. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Financial reporting is intended to provide information useful for many purposes.  The 
reporting function helps fulfill government’s duty to be publicly accountable, as well as to 
help satisfy the needs of users who rely on the reports as an important source of 
information for decision making.  

Financial reports and statements are the end products of the accounting process.  You 
will find attached the following reports: 

 Ratification of March 2017 Disbursements, all funds 

o List of disbursements for the month by type of expenditure 

 Financial Reports 

o Year-to-Date Cash Receipts and Expenditures, General Fund only 

o Investment Report 

 

Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
   Michele Reynolds, CPA, Director of Finance 

 

Recommended for ratification: 
 

Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

     9.B.#3. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

31



SCHEDULE OF MARCH 2017 DISBURSEMENTS 
 

 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
All disbursements made by the Accounting Department are submitted to the Board of Trustees for ratification on a 
monthly basis.  Disbursements made during the month of March total $24,348,538 and are shown below by 
category: 
 

3-Digit Object Description Disbursements

611/612 Salaries and Wages, All Personnel 15,706,837         

614 Employee Benefits 652,497

621 Professional Services 316,741

623 Education Services Center 11,216

624 Contracted Maintenance and Repair Services 601,842

625 Utilities 1,354,762

626 Rentals and Operating Leases 27,535

629 Miscellaneous Contracted Services 488,678

631 Supplies and Materials for Maintenance and Operations 361,931

632 Textbooks and Other Reading Materials 162,784

633 Testing Materials 73,326

634 Food Service 560,341

639 General Supplies and Materials 742,727

641 Travel and Subsistence -- Employee and Student 199,962

642 Insurance and Bonding Costs 3,000

643 Election Expense 9,089

649 Miscellaneous Operating Costs/Fees and Dues 65,926

662 Building Purchase, Construction, and/or Improvements 2,948,654

663 Furniture & Equipment - $5,000 or more per unit cost 44,814

129 Misc. Receivable/Alternative Certification Fees 5,600

131 Inventory Purchases 5,325
217 Operating Transfers, Loans and Reimbursements 746

573/575/592 Miscellaneous Refunds/Reimbursements to Campuses 4,205

Total 24,348,538
 
 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The report above represents all expenditures made during the month of March 2017 including prior month 
purchasing card transactions. The detailed check information is available upon request. 
 

                                        
 

  

32



LAMAR CONSOLIDATED I.S.D.
GENERAL FUND

YEAR TO DATE CASH RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES
(BUDGET AND ACTUAL)
AS OF MARCH 31, 2017

PERCENT
AMENDED BUDGET ACTUAL/

CASH RECEIPTS BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET

5700-LOCAL REVENUES 148,041,418.00 146,752,811.00 (1,288,607.00) 99.1%

5800-STATE PROGRAM REVENUES 97,726,537.00 59,056,097.00 (38,670,440.00) 60.4%
  

5900-FEDERAL PROGRAM REVENUES 1,725,000.00 1,858,766.00 133,766.00 107.8%

7900- OTHER RESOURCES - - -

TOTAL- REVENUES 247,492,955.00 207,667,674.00 (39,825,281.00) 83.9%

EXPENDITURES

6100-PAYROLL COSTS 207,692,717.00 120,552,016.00 87,140,701.00 58.0%
 

6200-PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACTED SVCS. 24,233,651.00 11,120,063.00 13,113,588.00 45.9%
  

6300-SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS 12,552,605.00 5,927,754.00 6,624,851.00 47.2%
  

6400-OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 5,194,948.00 1,975,772.00 3,219,176.00 38.0%
  

6600-CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,868,871.00 796,452.00 1,072,419.00 42.6%

TOTAL-EXPENDITURES 251,542,792.00 140,372,057.00 111,170,735.00 55.8%

33



Lamar CISD
Local Investment Pools

as of March 31, 2017

BEGINNING TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL MONTH END
ACCOUNT NAME BALANCE DEPOSIT WITHDRAWAL INTEREST BALANCE

TexPool accounts are as follows:
Food Service 2,524,519.39 0.00 0.00 1,334.05 2,525,853.44
General Account 144,679,548.64 0.00 18,198,750.00 72,442.80 126,553,241.44
Health Insurance 5,603,077.23 1,260,416.67 2,400,000.00 3,193.90 4,466,687.80
Workmen's Comp 379,533.09 38,333.33 55,000.00 202.74 363,069.16
Property Tax 3,778,803.77 3,806,813.50 0.00 3,308.21 7,588,925.48
Vending Contract Sponsor 477,712.11 0.00 0.00 252.43 477,964.54
Deferred Compensation 2.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.55
Debt Service Series 2007 255.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 255.96
Capital Projects Series 2005 228,450.16 0.00 0.00 120.76 228,570.92
Student Activity Funds 41,081.98 0.00 0.00 21.58 41,103.56
Taylor Ray Donation Account 2,570.71 0.00 0.00 1.40 2,572.11
Capital Projects Series 2007 210,144.28 0.00 0.00 111.05 210,255.33
Common Threads Donation 53,495.39 0.00 0.00 28.28 53,523.67
Debt Service Series 2008 216.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 216.26
Capital Projects 2012A 2,087,528.20 0.00 573,699.29 888.67 1,514,717.58
Debt Service 2012A 2,126,483.04 0.00 0.00 1,123.71 2,127,606.75
Debt Service 2012B 358,805.01 0.00 0.00 189.57 358,994.58
Debt Service 2014A 981,495.67 0.00 0.00 518.64 982,014.31
Debt Service 2014B 1,042,454.93 0.00 0.00 550.87 1,043,005.80
Debt Service 2013 197,674.71 0.00 0.00 104.47 197,779.18
Debt Service 2013A 457.95 0.00 0.00 0.31 458.26
Debt Service 2015 4,012,426.19 0.00 0.00 2,120.29 4,014,546.48
Capital Projects 2015 59.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.89
Debt Service 2016A 1,868,639.47 0.00 0.00 987.41 1,869,626.88
Debt Service 2016B 494,042.69 0.00 0.00 261.09 494,303.78
Debt Service 2017 1,740,350.36 0.00 0.00 919.67 1,741,270.03
Debt Service 2017 Capitalized Interest 0.00 2,086,165.19 0.00 876.06 2,087,041.25
Capital Projects 2017 0.00 10,000,000.00 0.00 4,199.32 10,004,199.32

  
Lone Star Investment Pool Government Overnight Fund  
Capital Projects Fund 5,045.79 0.00 0.00 2.52 5,048.31
Workers' Comp 724,429.17 0.00 0.00 361.08 724,790.25
Property Tax Fund 32,318.99 0.00 0.00 16.11 32,335.10
General Fund 2,600,702.07 0.00 0.00 1,296.28 2,601,998.35
Food Service Fund 90,939.02 0.00 0.00 45.33 90,984.35
Debt Service Series 1996 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01
Capital Project Series 1998 704.10 0.00 0.00 0.35 704.45
Debt Service Series 1990 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.04
Debt Service Series 1999 2.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.43
Capital Project Series 1999 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01
Capital Projects 2007 385.98 0.00 0.00 0.19 386.17
Capital Projects 2008 0.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.31
Capital Projects 2012A 43.08 0.00 0.00 0.02 43.10
Capital Projects 2014A 559,892.75 0.00 219,359.65 207.55 340,740.65
Capital Projects 2014B 17.12 0.00 0.00 0.01 17.13
Capital Projects 2015 19,533,349.13 0.00 2,512,983.60 9,601.84 17,029,967.37
Debt Service Series 2015 1,894,389.90 0.00 0.00 944.23 1,895,334.13
Capital Projects 2017 0.00 10,047,552.00 0.00 3,989.09 10,051,541.09

  
MBIA Texas CLASS Fund
General Account 15,495,249.43 0.00 0.00 13,087.21 15,508,336.64
Capital Project Series 1998 913.32 0.00 0.00 0.76 914.08
Capital Projects Series 2007 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00
Debt Service Series 2007 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00
Capital Projects Series 2012A 9,654,700.09 0.00 41,152.88 8,153.17 9,621,700.38
Capital Projects 2015 1,108,413.18 0.00 0.00 936.16 1,109,349.34
Debt Service 2015 951,172.43 0.00 0.00 803.35 951,975.78
Capital Projects 2017 0.00 25,000,000.00 0.00 10,605.34 25,010,605.34

  
TEXSTAR  
Capital Projects Series 2007 746.69 0.00 0.00 0.34 747.03
Debt Service Series 2008  13.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.86
Capital Projects Series 2008 982,630.55 0.00 6,750.16 522.19 976,402.58
Debt Service Series 2012A 40.45 0.00 0.00 0.00 40.45
Debt Service Series 2012B 1,711.49 0.00 0.00 0.92 1,712.41
Capital Projects Series 2012A 12.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.21
Debt Service 2013 4,533.43 0.00 0.00 2.38 4,535.81
Capital Projects 2014A 139.71 0.00 0.00 0.04 139.75
Capital Projects 2014B 78,165.01 0.00 74,129.59 4.43 4,039.85
Debt Service 2015 3,316,109.36 0.00 0.00 1,765.58 3,317,874.94
Capital Projects 2015 47,922,716.67 0.00 0.00 25,515.11 47,948,231.78
Capital Projects 2017 0.00 25,000,000.00 0.00 10,586.10 25,010,586.10

  
TEXAS TERM/DAILY Fund
Capital Projects Series 2007 1,010,838.43 0.00 0.00 569.59 1,011,408.02
Capital Projects Series 2008 141.56 0.00 0.00 0.08 141.64
Capital Projects Series 2012A 56.84 0.00 0.00 0.03 56.87
Capital Projects Series 2014A 0.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.32
Capital Projects Series 2014B 2,432,809.51 0.00 91,653.17 1,337.40 2,342,493.74
Debt Service 2015 135,431.15 0.00 0.00 76.31 135,507.46
Capital Projects 2015 15,235,601.58 0.00 0.00 8,585.01 15,244,186.59
Capital Projects 2017 0.00 25,000,000.00 0.00 11,187.04 25,011,187.04

  
  AVG. RATE CURRENT MONTH  

ACCOUNT TYPE OF RETURN EARNINGS
  

TEXPOOL ACCOUNT INTEREST 0.62 $93,757.28  
 

LONE STAR  ACCOUNT INTEREST 0.53 $16,464.60  
 

MBIA TEXAS CLASS ACCOUNT INTEREST 1.00 $33,585.99  
  

TEXSTAR ACCOUNT INTEREST 0.63 $38,397.09

TEXAS TERM/DAILY ACCOUNT INTEREST 0.66 $21,755.46

TOTAL CURRENT MONTH EARNINGS $203,960.42

EARNINGS 9-01-16 THRU 2-28-17  $701,338.95
  
TOTAL CURRENT SCHOOL YEAR EARNINGS $905,299.37

34



  
 

CONSIDER DESIGNATION OF PATSY SCHULTZ, RTA AS 
TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR FOR LAMAR CONSOLIDATED ISD 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees consider designation of Patsy Schultz, RTA, by interlocal 
agreement, as Tax Assessor-Collector for Lamar Consolidated ISD for the period 
September 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018, with the option to extend the contract as 
described, and authorize the Board President and Board Secretary to execute the 
interlocal agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
The contract which was executed by LCISD and Marsha P. Gaines (former tax 
assessor-collector for Fort Bend County) on July 22, 1999 states that the “appointment 
shall be effective from September 1, 1999 to August 31, 2000 and will automatically be 
renewed annually thereafter.”  The 2017-18 year will be the nineteenth year that the 
Fort Bend County Tax Assessor has performed the duties of tax assessor-collector for 
the District.  
 
The costs of the services are: 
 

 Thirty-five cents ($0.35) per parcel per year, 

 Two dollars, seventy-seven cents ($2.77) per parcel for properties outside of Fort 
Bend County, 

 Other reimbursable costs incurred by the County on the District’s behalf, and 

 Costs for any additional services requested by the District. 
 

The current year costs for 2016-17 are $30,423.75 (86,925 parcels). 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
The recommended contract is for a period of twelve months beginning July 1, 2017, with 
automatic renewal thereafter for four (4) additional one (1) year terms on an annual 
basis. 
 
The tax collection process has run smoothly since the Fort Bend County Tax Assessor-
Collector's office assumed the function.  Approval of the contract for another year will 
ensure the continuity of the system and efficient collection of taxes. 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent  

9.B.#4. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

35



Interlocal Agreement for Tax Collection  

Page 1 of 7 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

     § 

COUNTY OF FORT BEND    § 

 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT FOR  

THE COLLECTION OF TAXES 

 

 This Interlocal Agreement (hereinafter referred to as “Agreement”), is made and 

entered into pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas 

Government Code and Section 6.24 of the Texas Property Tax Code, by and between 

FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS (hereinafter referred to as “County”), acting through its 

governing body, FORT BEND COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT, and LAMAR 

CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as 

“LAMAR CISD”), duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Texas, acting 

by and through its Board of Trustees. 

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, LAMAR CISD has the authority to authorize County to act as tax 

assessor/collector for LAMAR CISD, and County has the authority to so act; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, the Fort Bend County Tax Assessor/Collector has approved this 

Agreement; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, LAMAR CISD and County believe it is in the best interests of the 

citizens of Fort Bend County to enter into this Agreement; and, 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, County and LAMAR CISD for the mutual consideration 

hereinafter stated, agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE I 

PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this Agreement is to designate and allow the Fort Bend County Tax 

Assessor/Collector as the tax assessor/collector for LAMAR CISD for the collection of ad 

valorem taxes, including penalties, interest and attorney’s fees for the collection of taxes 

owed LAMAR CISD. 

 

ARTICLE II 

TERM 

 

2.01 This Agreement shall be effective on the date the last party executes this Agreement 

and shall terminate on June 30, 2018. 

2.02 This Agreement shall automatically renew thereafter for four (4) additional one (1) 

year terms on an annual basis unless sooner terminated as provided herein. 

36



Interlocal Agreement for Tax Collection  

Page 2 of 7 

 

2.03 LAMAR CISD may terminate this agreement at any time by providing ninety (90) 

days advanced written notice to County.   

2.04 County may terminate this agreement by providing written notice to LAMAR CISD 

no later than six (6) months in advance of the expiration of the initial term of this 

Agreement or any renewal term. 

2.05 In the event of termination of this Agreement by LAMAR CISD, LAMAR CISD 

shall assume all contractual obligations entered into with County for services 

rendered to LAMAR CISD for the duration of the term of the Agreement and any 

renewal, and County shall be relieved of all contractual obligations under this 

agreement. 

. 

As soon as practicable after the date of termination or the expiration of this 

Agreement, the County shall submit a final report containing the information set 

forth in Article III.  At that time, distribution of the amount due to LAMAR CISD 

shall be made or LAMAR CISD shall be invoiced for any amounts due from 

LAMAR CISD pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  Payments are to be made 

on or about thirty (30) days after receipt of an invoice.  Copies of all reports and all 

records of LAMAR CISD shall be delivered to LAMAR CISD when and if this 

Agreement is terminated or upon its expiration if not sooner terminated. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE III 

OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY 

 

3.01 For the purposes and consideration herein stated and contemplated, County shall 

provide tax collection services by and through the Fort Bend County Tax 

Assessor/Collector for LAMAR CISD for tax accounts within the jurisdiction of 

LAMAR CISD. 

3.02 LAMAR CISD hereby designates the County Tax Assessor/Collector as its Tax 

Assessor/Collector for purposes of compliance with Chapter 26 of the Texas 

Property Tax code, as amended, for Fort Bend County.   

3.03 County shall perform all the duties required by law of the Tax Assessor-Collector 

of LAMAR CISD with regard to assessing and collection of ad valorem taxes. 

3.04 LAMAR CISD shall adopt a tax rate in accordance with Tax Code 26.05 (a).  

LAMAR CISD shall reimburse County for any additional costs incurred by County 

for any delay in adopting a tax rate. 

3.05 LAMAR CISD hereby expressly authorizes County to do and perform all acts 

necessary and proper to collect taxes for LAMAR CISD, including but not limited 

to: 

A. Calculation of taxes, preparation of current and delinquent tax rolls, 

pro-ration of taxes, correction of clerical errors in tax rolls, 

collection of current liabilities, collection of delinquent taxes, and 

issuance of refunds.   

37



Interlocal Agreement for Tax Collection  

Page 3 of 7 

 

B. Assessment and collection of ad valorem property taxes owing to 

the LAMAR CISD.  The term “assess” does not include those 

functions defined as “appraisal” by the Property Tax Code. 

C. Production of a consolidated tax statement for both County and 

LAMAR CISD taxes.   

D. Preparation and consolidation of tax statements for each parcel on 

the tax rolls of LAMAR CISD.   

E. Mailing tax statements. 

F. Mailing notices of delinquent service charges in accordance with 

Section 33.07, 33.08 and 33.11 of the Texas Property Tax Code. 

G. The performance for LAMAR CISD of all duties provided by law 

of the State of Texas for the collection of taxes. 

H.  

3.06 The performance of any additional, reasonable services which may be requested in 

writing by LAMAR CISD and as agreed to by the Fort Bend County Tax 

Assessor/Collector.  County shall provide the following reports, upon request, by 

LAMAR CISD:  

A. Report of the current year tax levy, showing taxable value, 

exemptions, abatements, net taxable values, tax rate, and tax levy 

for each parcel of property; 

B. Remittance report with each remittance to LAMAR CISD showing 

the taxes paid by year, amount paid, principal and interest paid, 

service charge paid, etc.; 

C. Monthly report of tax activity showing the amount of initial levy, 

collections during month for both current and delinquent taxes, 

adjustments during the month, and the year-to-date collections 

percentage of current levy; and 

D.      Any additional reports which may be requested by the District. 

3.07 The taxes collected by County for LAMAR CISD shall be remitted as follows: 

A. A credit/debit memo within same depository bank; or 

B. by ACH; or  

C. by wire to LAMAR CISD’s designated depository or agent; or 

D. by check mailed to LAMAR CISD. 

3.08 LAMAR CISD shall provide written notification to County of the manner in which 

taxes shall be remitted, as described in Section 3.07 above.    

3.09 The taxes collected by County shall be remitted to LAMAR CISD on a daily basis 

for the period beginning December 1st and ending February 15th of each year.  

Remittance at other times during the year shall be made at least once per week.  

3.10 Wire transfers shall incur a charge of five dollars ($5.00) for each transfer. 

3.11 Refunds to taxpayers and taxpayer checks returned from banks shall be deducted 

from the County’s remittance to LAMAR CISD.   

 

 

 

38



Interlocal Agreement for Tax Collection  

Page 4 of 7 

 

ARTICLE IV 

OBLIGATIONS OF LAMAR CISD 

 

4.01 LAMAR CISD agrees to promptly deliver to County all records necessary to 

perform its duties under the terms of this Agreement. 

4.02 For services rendered pursuant to this Agreement, LAMAR CISD agrees to pay 

County the following amounts, which the Parties agree is reasonable compensation 

as allowed by Tax Code Section 6.27:   

A. Thirty-five cents ($0.35) per parcel per year; 

B. One dollar ($1.00) per account to add delinquent accounts to County’s 

records; and 

C. Two dollars and seventy-seven cents ($2.77) for parcels located outside 

of Fort Bend County, Texas, for costs associated with separate billing. 

D. Other costs for which LAMAR CISD will reimburse the County for 

actual costs incurred for any additional services provided. 

 

4.03 LAMAR CISD shall pay to County the cost of assessment and collection as 

provided in Section 4.02.  The payment shall be remitted to County after the mailing 

of consolidated tax statements and no more than 30 days after receipt of County 

itemized invoice. 

  

ARTICLE V 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 

 

5.01 All records necessary to be maintained by County for the assessment and 

collections of taxes shall be kept clearly on the books and records of County, and a 

designated representative of LAMAR CISD, including district auditors, is 

authorized to examine the records maintained by County at such reasonable time 

and interval as LAMAR CISD deems necessary.  Such books and records will be 

kept in the offices of County. 

5.02 LAMAR CISD may maintain, at their own cost, a Public Fidelity Bond covering 

all offices, officials and employees in the amount of one hundred thousand dollars 

($100,000.00). 

5.03 LAMAR CISD shall transfer to the possession and control of County, without 

charge, copies of all records necessary for the performance of the duties and 

responsibilities of County pursuant to this Agreement, which shall include all tax 

records, including the delinquent tax rolls. 

5.04 Neither the County nor the County Tax Assessor/Collector shall be legally 

responsible to LAMAR CISD for any failure to collect taxes unless the failure 

results from the failure to perform the duties imposed by the law or by this 

Agreement. 

5.05 LAMAR CISD reserves the right to institute such suits for the collection of 

delinquent taxes as LAMAR CISD deems necessary and to contract with an 

attorney for collection of delinquent taxes. 

5.06. County shall comply with all provisions of the Texas Property Tax Code, as 

39



Interlocal Agreement for Tax Collection  

Page 5 of 7 

 

amended, and any mutually agreed upon written policies regarding collection of ad 

valorem property taxes which LAMAR CISD may adopt. 

5.07 In the event County waives any penalty and/or interest on any parcel, pursuant to 

Section 33.011 of the Property Tax Code for the taxes owed to the County, LAMAR 

CISD consents to the waiver of the penalty and/or interest on the same parcel(s), 

and hereby authorizes County to waive such penalty and/or interest on behalf of 

LAMAR CISD. 

 

  

5.08 LAMAR CISD’s performance under this Agreement is conditioned on the 

appropriation of funds by LAMAR CISD on a yearly basis for payment of the Collection 

Fee, and shall constitute a commitment of current revenues only.  The failure by LAMAR 

CISD’s governing body to appropriate funds sufficient for payment of such Collection Fee 

shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement. 

 

 

ARTICLE VI 

LIABILITY  

 

Each party to this Agreement agrees that it shall have no liability whatsoever for 

the actions or omissions of an individual employed by another party, regardless of where 

the individual’s actions occurred.  Each party is solely responsible for the actions and/or 

omissions of its employees and officers. 

 

 

ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

7.01 This Agreement may be amended by the mutual agreement of the parties hereto  

in writing to be attached to and incorporated into this Agreement.  

7.02   Venue for any litigation involving this Agreement shall be in Fort Bend County,  

Texas. 

7.03 If any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be held to  

be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or 

unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Agreement 

shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never 

been contained herein. 

7.04 This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing  

between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other 

agreement, statement, or promise relating to the subject matter of this Agreement 

which is not contained herein shall be valid or binding. 

7.05 This Agreement may not be assigned by either party. 

 

 

40



Interlocal Agreement for Tax Collection  

Page 6 of 7 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

NOTICES 

 

Any notice required to be given under the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing 

and shall be duly served when it shall have been deposited, enclosed in a wrapper with the 

proper postage prepaid thereon, and duly registered or certified, return receipt requested, 

in a United States Post Office, addressed to the Owner at the mailing address as hereinafter 

set out.  If mailed, any notice of communication shall be deemed to be received three (3) 

days after the date of deposit in the United States Mail.  Unless otherwise provided in this 

Agreement, all notices shall be delivered to the Owner or the County at the following 

addresses: 

 

To County:    The Honorable Patsy Schultz 

     Fort Bend County Tax Assessor-Collector 

     1317 Eugene Heimann Circle 

     Richmond, Texas 77469-3623 

 

To District:    Ms. Jill Ludwig  

     Chief Financial Officer, Lamar CISD 

     3911 Avenue I 

     Rosenberg, TX  77471-3901  

 

Copy to:    Fort Bend County Attorney 

     401 Jackson 

     Richmond, Texas 77469-3108 

 

Either party may designate a different address by giving the other party ten (10) days 

written notice thereof.   

 

ARTICLE IX 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND ATTACHMENT 

 

This Agreement contains the entire Agreement among the parties and supercedes all other  

negotiations and agreements, whether written or oral. 

 

THE UNDERSIGNED OFFICER AND/OR AGENTS OF THE PARTIES HERETO ARE 

THE PROPERLY AUTHORIZED OFFICIALS AND HAVE THE NECESSARY 

AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE PARTIES 

HERETO, AND EACH PARTY HEREBY CERTIFIES TO THE OTHER THAT ANY 

NECESSARY RESOLUTIONS AND/OR ORDERS EXTENDING SAID AUTHORITY 

HAVE BEEN DULY PASSED AND ARE NOW IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. 

 

FORT BEND COUNTY 

 

__________________________________          _________________________________ 

Robert E. Hebert, County Judge         Laura Richard, County Clerk           

41



Interlocal Agreement for Tax Collection  

Page 7 of 7 

 

 

 

__________________________________           ________________________________ 

Date              Date  

 

 

APPROVED:   

 

________________________________  ______________________________ 

Patsy Schultz, Tax Assessor/Collector  Date 

 

 

 

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

__________________________________  ______________________________ 

President, Board of Trustees    Secretary, Board of Trustees 

 

 

__________________________________            _____________________________ 

Date            Date  

 

 

 

 

42



  
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DEPOSITORY BANK CONTRACT EXTENSION 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees extend the current depository contract with Wells Fargo, 
N.A. for an additional two-year term, commencing September 1, 2017 and ending 
August 31, 2019. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 45, Subchapter G, Section 45.201, School District 
Depositories, Texas Education Code, each school district's Board of Trustees must 
select a Depository to assist with the banking functions for all funds of the District.  The 
contract will remain in force for the 2017-19 biennium, commencing not later than 
September 1, 2017 and ending August 31, 2019 or until such time as a successor 
Depository is named. 
 
On May 21, 2015, the District entered into a contract with Wells Fargo, N.A. for banking 
services for the 2015-17 biennium.  This contract expires on August 31, 2017.  In 
accordance with Section 45.205 (b) of the Texas Education Code, a school district and 
the district's depository bank may agree to extend a depository contract for two 
additional two-year terms.  As illustrated by the attached resolution of confirmation from 
Wells Fargo, N.A., this option has been considered and is the recommendation of the 
administration.  We have been very pleased with the level of service provided by the 
bank, and fully expect comparable service in the future. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
     Michele Reynolds, CPA, Director of Finance 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  

9.B.#5. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

43



44



  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 
FOR THE 2016-2017 SCHOOL YEAR 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of the engagement of the certified public 
accounting firm of Whitley Penn, LLP as the District’s independent auditors for the 2016-
2017 school year. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
As a result of a competitive proposal process for independent auditing services conducted 
during the 2009-10 fiscal year, Whitely Penn LLP, formerly Null-Lairson, P.C., was 
recommended by the Financial Audit Committee.  The selection was based on 
qualifications, fees, and other weighted criteria including estimated costs in future years.  
Due to the expertise and professional services delivered by the firm, administration 
requested and the firm provided a one-year renewal engagement letter at an estimated 
fee of $65,900. Fees for the past three years are as follows: 
 
   YEAR    ACTUAL 
   2015-16   $64,500 
   2014-15   $64,500 
   2013-14   $63,500 
 
 
With the recent implementation of new governmental auditing standards, new SAS’s 
and GASB pronouncements, the auditor’s services are extensive. Upon review of a 
recent comparison of audit fees paid by surrounding districts, the fee offered is very 
competitive for the services rendered. 
 
We have been very pleased with the level of service provided by the auditors in the 
past, and fully expect comparable service in the future.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
If approved, Whitley Penn, LLP would serve as the District’s independent auditors for 
the 2016-17 school year and would conduct the annual audit as required by the Texas 
Education Agency.  A copy of the engagement letter is attached.  
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
     Michele Reynolds, CPA, Director of Finance 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  

9.B.#6. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

45



Austin Dallas Fort Worth Houston

Houston Office
3411 Richmond Avenue
Suite 500
Houston, Texas 77046
713.621.1515 Main

whitleypenn.com

 
 
 
 
 
April 11, 2017 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees and Management 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 
3911 Avenue I 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 
 

You have requested that we audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Lamar Consolidated Independent School District (the “District”), as of 
August 31, 2017 and for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. In addition, we will audit the 
District’s compliance over major federal award programs for the period ended August 31, 2017.  We are pleased to 
confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this audit engagement by means of this letter.  Our audits will be 
conducted with the objectives of our expressing an opinion on each opinion unit and an opinion on compliance 
regarding the District’s major federal award programs. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion 
and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information (RSI) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding their methods of 
measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance on the RSI. The following RSI is required 
by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America: 
 

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

2) Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

3) Pension System Information 
 

Supplementary information other than RSI will accompany the District’s basic financial statements. We will subject 
the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the supplementary information 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. We intend to provide an opinion on the following supplementary information in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole: 
 

1) Combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements 

2) Texas Education Agency Schedules 

46



Board of Trustees and Management April 11, 2017 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Page 2 
 
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
 
We will subject the schedule of expenditures of federal awards to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of 
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the schedule 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. We intend to provide an opinion on whether the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented 
fairly in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Also, the document we submit to you will include the following other additional information that will not be 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements: 
 

1) Introductory Section 

2) Statistical Section 

 
Data Collection Form 
 
Prior to the completion of our engagement, we will complete the sections of the Data Collection Form that are our 
responsibility. The form will summarize our audit findings, amounts and conclusions. It is management’s 
responsibility to submit a reporting package including financial statements, schedule of expenditure of federal 
awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings and corrective action plan along with the Data Collection Form 
to the federal audit clearinghouse. The financial reporting package must be text searchable, unencrypted, and 
unlocked. Otherwise, the reporting package will not be accepted by the federal audit clearinghouse. We will assist 
you in the electronic submission and certification. You may request from us copies of our report for you to include 
with the reporting package submitted to pass-through entities.  
 
The Data Collection Form is required to be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of our auditors’ 
reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless specifically waived by a federal cognizant or 
oversight agency for audits. Data Collection Forms submitted untimely are one of the factors in assessing programs 
at a higher risk. 

 
Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
(U.S. GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States of America; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error, fraudulent financial reporting, 
misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental regulations, grant agreements, or contractual 
agreements.  
 
  

47



Board of Trustees and Management April 11, 2017 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Page 3 
 
 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. If appropriate, our procedures will therefore include tests of documentary evidence that support the 
transactions recorded in the accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of cash, 
investments, and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with creditors and financial institutions. As 
part of our audit process, we will request written representations from your attorneys, and they may bill you for 
responding. At the conclusion of our audit, we will also request certain written representations from you about the 
financial statements and related matters. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or noncompliance (whether caused by errors, fraudulent financial 
reporting, misappropriation of assets, detected abuse, or violations of laws or governmental regulations) may not 
be detected exists, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with U.S. GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards of the Comptroller General of the United States of America and in accordance with 
the Uniform Guidance. Please note that the determination of abuse is subjective and Government Auditing 
Standards does not require auditors to detect abuse. 
 
In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. However, we 
will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal 
control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have identified during the audit. Our responsibility 
as auditors is, of course, limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any other periods. 
 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the District’s basic financial statements. Our report 
will be addressed to the governing body of the District. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will 
be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions, add an emphasis-of-
matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the engagement. 
 
In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written report 
describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over compliance with laws, 
regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that testing. However, providing an 
opinion on internal control and compliance over financial reporting will not be an objective of the audit and, 
therefore, no such opinion will be expressed. 
 
We also will issue a written report on the District’s compliance with the Uniform Guidance as it related to each of 
the major federal awards upon completion of our audit.  
 
Audit of Major Program Compliance 
 
Our audit of the District’s major federal program(s) compliance will be conducted in accordance with the 
requirements of the Single Audit Act, as amended; and the Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of accounting 
records, a determination of major programs in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and other procedures we 
consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion on major federal award program compliance and to 
render the required reports. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion on compliance will be 
expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or withdraw from the 
engagement. 
 
  

48



Board of Trustees and Management April 11, 2017 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Page 4 
 
 
The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements applicable to major federal award programs. Our procedures will consist of determining major federal 
programs and performing the applicable procedures described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget OMB 
Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of the District’s major federal programs. The purpose of those procedures will be to express an opinion on the 
District’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major federal programs in our report on compliance 
issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 
 
Also, as required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls to evaluate the effectiveness of the 
design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with 
compliance requirements applicable to each of the District’s major federal award programs. However, our tests will 
be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on these controls and, accordingly, no opinion will 
be expressed in our report. 
 
We will issue a report on compliance that will include an opinion or disclaimer of opinion regarding the District’s 
major federal programs, and a report on internal controls over compliance that will report any significant 
deficiencies and material weaknesses identified; however, such report will not express an opinion on internal control. 
 
Management’s Responsibilities 
 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged with governance 
acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility: 
 

1. For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 

2. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to error 
fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental regulations, 
grant agreements, or contractual agreements; 

3. For safeguarding assets;  
4. For identifying all federal awards expended during the period including federal awards and funding 

increments received prior to December 26, 2014, and those received in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance generally received after December 26, 2014; 

5. For preparing the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and noncash assistance 
received) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance requirements; 

6. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control over compliance; 
7. For identifying and ensuring that the District complies with laws, regulations, grants, and contracts 

applicable to its activities and its federal award programs and implementing systems designed to achieve 
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, grants, and contracts applicable to activities and its federal 
award programs;  

8. For identifying and providing report copies of previous audits, attestation engagements, or other studies 
that directly relate to the objectives of the audit, including whether related recommendations have been 
implemented; 

9.  For addressing the findings and recommendations of auditors, for establishing and maintaining a process 
to track the status of such findings and recommendations and taking corrective action on reported audit 
findings from prior periods and preparing a summary schedule of prior audit findings; 

10. For following up and taking corrective action on current year audit findings and preparing a corrective 
action plan for such findings; 

49



Board of Trustees and Management April 11, 2017 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Page 5 
 
 

11. For submitting the reporting package and data collection form to the appropriate parties;  
12. For making the auditor aware of any significant vendor / contractor relationships where the vendor / 

contractor is responsible for program compliance; 
13. To provide us with: 

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, and relevant to federal award programs, such as records, 
documentation, and other matters; 

b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; and 
c. Unrestricted access to persons within the District from whom we determine it necessary to obtain 

audit evidence.  
14. For adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in the 

management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during 
the current engagement and pertaining to the current year period(s) under audit are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole; 

15. For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding assets; 
and 

16. For confirming your understanding of your responsibilities as defined in this letter to us in your 
management representation letter. 

 
With regard to the supplementary information referred to above, you acknowledge and understand your 
responsibility (a) for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable criteria, 
(b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding supplementary information, (c) to include 
our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains the supplementary information and that 
indicates that we have reported on such supplementary information, and (d) to present the supplementary 
information with the audited financial statements, or if the supplementary information will not be presented with 
the audited financial statements, to make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of 
the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by you of the supplementary information and our 
report thereon.  
 
As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, when appropriate, those charged with 
governance, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit. 
 
We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents or 
invoices selected by us for testing. 
 
If you intend to publish or otherwise reproduce the financial statements and make reference to our firm, you agree 
to provide us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review and approval before printing. You also agree to provide 
us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our approval before it is distributed.  
 
Fees and Timing 
 
The timing of our audit will be scheduled for performance and completion as follows:  
 

 
Document internal control and preliminary tests 

 
July 2017 

 
Perform year-end audit procedures 

 
December 2017 

 
Issue audit reports 

 
January 2018 

50



Board of Trustees and Management April 11, 2017 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Page 6 
 
 
We anticipate meeting these deadlines barring any delays. 
 
Christopher Breaux, CPA is the engagement partner for the audit services specified in this letter. His responsibilities 
include supervising Whitley Penn, LLP’s services performed as part of this engagement and signing or authorizing 
another qualified firm representative to sign the audit report. 
 
Our fee for the audit services will be based on the amount of time required and the difficulty of the work involved 
which we estimate to be $65,900 and for assisting in the preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report.  
The fee estimate for the audit is based on anticipated cooperation from the District’s personnel and the assumption 
that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit.  If significant additional time is necessary, 
we will keep you informed of any problems we encounter and our fees will be adjusted accordingly. 
 
Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation and 
payment is due in Tarrant County.  You agree to pay reasonable attorney fees and collection costs incurred relating 
to collection of fees for services performed under the terms of this engagement.  In accordance with Whitley Penn, 
LLP policy, work may be suspended if your account becomes 30 days or more past due and will not resume until 
your account is paid in full.  In addition, invoices not paid in full by the last day of the month will be assessed 
interest at a rate of one percent per month.  If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement 
will be deemed to have been complete even if we have not issued our report.  You will be obligated to compensate 
us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination.  Our 
final auditors’ report will be released upon final payment of any outstanding invoices. 
 
You may request that we perform additional services not addressed in this engagement letter.  If this occurs, we 
will communicate with you concerning the scope of the additional services and the estimated fees.  We also may 
issue a separate engagement letter covering the additional services.  In the absence of any other written 
communication from us documenting such additional services, our services will continue to be governed by the 
terms of this engagement letter. 
 
We would like to make the following comments regarding the fee estimates:  
 

1. Our fee estimates have not considered the effects of any changes to auditing standards and accounting 
principles, which may be promulgated by the AICPA, Congress, or any other regulatory body in the future 
and are unknown to us at this time.  If significant additional time is necessary resulting in increased fees, 
we will endeavor to notify you of any such circumstances as they are assessed. 
 

2. The Organization’s personnel are responsible for the preparation of all items requested in the Prepared by 
Client (“PBC”) listing and received by the date requested.  Any delays caused by not preparing the items 
when requested may result in additional fees, as well as the possibility of postponing our fieldwork.  The 
PBC listing will be provided to you during the planning process of the engagement. 

 
3. Time incurred for audit adjustments identified during our audit and the related additional testing required 

has not been considered in our fee estimates.  Prior to performing any additional testing, we will notify you 
of the exceptions and obtain approval for any additional fees which may be incurred. 
 

4. Our fee estimates are based on all general ledger sub ledgers being reconciled to the general ledger balance 
and any adjustment necessary should be recorded to the general ledger prior to our fieldwork start date. 
 

  

51



Board of Trustees and Management April 11, 2017 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Page 7 
 
 
The ethics of our profession prohibit the rendering of professional services where the fee for such services is 
contingent, or has the appearance of being contingent, upon the results of such services.  Accordingly, it is important 
that our bills be paid promptly when received.  If a situation arises in which it may appear that our independence 
would be questioned because of significant unpaid bills, we may be prohibited from issuing our auditors’ report.  
 
In the unlikely event that differences concerning our services or fees should arise that are not resolved by mutual 
agreement, to facilitate judicial resolution and save time and expense of both parties, the District and Whitley Penn, 
LLP agree not to demand a trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim arising out of or relating to our 
services and fees for this engagement.  Any controversy, dispute, or questions arising out of or in connection with 
this agreement or our engagement shall be determined by arbitration conducted in accordance with the rules of the 
American Arbitration Association, and any decision rendered by the American Arbitration Association shall be 
binding on both parties to this agreement.  The costs of any arbitration shall be borne equally by the parties.  Any 
and all claims relating to or arising out of this contract/agreement shall be governed by the laws of Texas and any 
dispute shall be finally resolved by the Texas courts in Tarrant County. 
 
This letter replaces and supersedes any previous proposals, correspondence and understanding, whether written or 
oral.  The agreements contained in this engagement letter shall survive the completion or termination of this 
engagement. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Whitley Penn, LLP and constitutes confidential 
information.  However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to various regulators 
pursuant to authority given to it by law or regulation, or to peer reviewers.  If requested, access to such audit 
documentation will be provided under the supervision Whitley Penn, LLP’s personnel.  Furthermore, upon request, 
we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the applicable regulator.  The regulator may intend, or 
decide, to distribute the copies of information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 
 
To ensure that Whitley Penn, LLP’s independence is not impaired under the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct, 
you agree to inform the engagement partner before entering into any substantive employment discussions with any 
of our personnel. 
 
Other Matters 
 
During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via fax or e-mail, and you 
should be aware that communication in those mediums contains a risk of misdirected or intercepted 
communications. 

 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Whitley Penn, LLP and constitutes confidential 
information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to your pass-through 
regulatory entity and federal agencies and the U.S. Government Accountability Office pursuant to authority given 
to it by law or regulation, or to peer reviewers. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided 
under the supervision Whitley Penn, LLP’s personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of 
selected audit documentation to these agencies and regulators. The regulators and agencies may intend, or decide, 
to distribute the copies of information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. We agree 
to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least five years from the date of our report.  
 
Further, we will be available during the year to consult with you on financial management and accounting matters 
of a routine nature. 
 
  

52



Board of Trustees and Management April 11, 2017 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Page 8 
 
 
With respect to any nonattest services we perform, the District’s management is responsible for (a) making all 
management decisions and performing all management functions; (b) assigning a competent individual to oversee 
the services; (c) evaluating the adequacy of the services performed; (d) evaluating and accepting responsibility for 
the results of the services performed; and (e) establishing and maintaining internal controls, including monitoring 
ongoing activities. Nonattest services include the preparation of the financial statements and full accrual entries.  
 
During the course of the audit, we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls over, your 
operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, either orally or in 
writing.  
 
We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least five years from the date of our 
report. 
 
You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the financial statements of which you may become aware during the 
period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the financial statements are issued. 
 
At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to the Board of Trustees the following significant 
findings from the audit: 
 

 Our view about the qualitative aspects of the District’s significant accounting practices; 

 Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit; 

 Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any; 

 Disagreements with management, if any; 

 Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant and 
relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the financial reporting process; 

 Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit 
procedures; 

 Representations we requested from management; 

 Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and 

 Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of correspondence, with 
management. 

 
In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we have attached a copy of our latest 
external peer review report of our firm for your consideration and files. 
 
Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement with, the 
arrangements for our audit of the financial statements compliance over major federal award programs including our 
respective responsibilities. 
 
  

53



Board of Trustees and Management April 11, 2017 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Page 9 
 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be your financial statement auditors and look forward to working with you and 
your staff.  
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
RESPONSE: 
 
This letter correctly sets forth our understanding. 
 
Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of Lamar Consolidated Independent School District by: 
 
 
Name:  __________________________________________________________   
 
 
Title: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Date: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Name:  __________________________________________________________   
 
 
Title: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Date: ____________________________________________________________ 

54



Board of Trustees and Management April 11, 2017 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Page 10 
 
 

 

55



 

  

 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS ALLOTMENT  
AND TEKS CERTIFICATION 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of the Instructional Materials Allotment and 
TEKS Certification for the 2017-2018 school year. 
 
 
IMPACT / RATIONALE: 
 
The 2017-2018 Instructional Materials Allotment and TEKS Certification verify that LCISD 
has instructional materials covering all elements of the Essential Knowledge and Skills of 
the required curriculum for each grade level, except for physical education, as required in 
the Texas Education Code, Section 28.002. 
 
Attached are the TEKS Certification Forms verified by each Curriculum Specialist as proof 
that each subject area and grade level conform 100% to the TEKS. 
   
 
 
 
Submitted by: Michele Leach, RTSBA, Purchasing & Materials Manager 
   Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer  
   Valerie Vogt, Academic Administrator  
 
 
 
 Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
  

 

9.B.#7. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

56



57



 
  

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENT (BPA)  
WITH HON COMPANY LLC 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of a Blanket Purchase Agreement (BPA) 
with HON Company LLC, and authorize the Board President to execute the Agreement.    
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
This agreement will allow Lamar CISD to continue to procure furniture at an aggressive 
discount from HON Company LLC via our inter-local with The Cooperative Purchasing 
Network (TCPN) ensuring purchasing compliancy.  Once signed, the BPA will allow the 
District to enjoy discounts ranging from 58%-69% off list price for office furniture, school 
furniture, and filing and storage systems.  Lamar has successfully utilized HON 
Company furniture over the years and has found value with the manufacturer’s 
commercial grade furnishings and accommodating ten (10) year warranty program. The 
BPA program requires the District to purchase a minimum of $500,000 of list cost 
furnishings during the term of this agreement.   
 
Additionally, the BPA will not restrict the District from hiring any company in the HON 
network to install the furnishings at each site, nor will it exercise any exclusive rights 
over the District when we purchase furniture from other manufacturers.  
 
The District had previously engaged in an BPA with HON, but that agreement has since 
expired.  The new agreement contains a longer term which will allow for multiple year 
purchases.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
This agreement shall be effective as of April 20, 2017 and shall remain in effect until 
February 28, 2019. 
 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
   Michele Leach, RTSBA Purchasing & Materials Manager 
    
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 

9.B.#8. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

58



April 11, 2017 

Blanket Purchase Agreement 

BPA Number: Lamar CISD/LISD         
(This number should be placed on all orders) 

This Blanket Purchase Agreement (this “Agreement”) is effective as of 
4/20/2017 (“Effective Date”),  by and between The HON Company LLC (“HON”) and  
Lamar CISD (the “Agency”).  HON and Agency have entered into this Agreement in order 
for the Agency to purchase HON commercial products (“Products”) and related 
services (“Services”) directly from HON.  HON may utilize its network of authorized  
dealers in the performance of this Agreement. 

Except as expressly stated herein, Agency’s purchase of Products and Services 
are based upon the pricing, terms and conditions set forth in HON’s TCPN Contract # 
R142208, by and between HON and The Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCPN) (the 
“TCPN Contract”).  The pricing and available Products and Services of the HON TCPN  
Contract may be amended, revised, or renewed from time to time pursuant to the terms 
of the TCPN Contract, and all such changes, amendments and revisions are incorporated 
by reference herein without need to formally amend this Agreement. 

During the following dates: 4/20/2017 – 2/28/2019, the Agency agrees to: 
purchase a minimum of $500,000 List of product from HON (“Annual Purchase 
Projection”), determined on cumulative invoiced purchases during the term. Agency 
acknowledges HON as a preferred vendor and agrees to promote HON agreement to 
eligible entities. Agency will give HON access to a list of all entities eligible to purchase 
against this agreement. If applicable, Agency will explore product opportunities with 
HON. In consideration for this, the Agency shall be entitled to purchase HON products at 
the discounts off the current list price in effect under the HON TCPN Contract.  As of the  
Effective Date, the current discounting applicable to Agency’s purchases of Products is as 
follows: 

HON reserves the right to deny the Agency future Blanket Purchase Agreements or 
terminate the BPA upon written notice.  The pricing applicable to installation in the 
TCPN Contract shall not apply to any purchases for Services made by Agency from 
HON through an authorized dealer.  All pricing for installation Services must be 
negotiated on a case by case basis between Agency and an authorized dealer. 

All of Agency’s orders must be made out to The HON Company LLC and shall reference 
the TCPN Contract number: R142208, and the BPA number at the top of this Agreement. 
Each order must have a single “ship‐to” destination within the United States in order for 
the freight to be paid by HON. 

This Agreement expires 2/28/2019. 

Systems 
and 

Pedestals

Vertical and 
Lateral 

Files,Storage
Tables, Desking,  

Casegoods

HON 
Branded 
Seating

 Basyx Branded 
Products Education  

All Size Orders  69.0% 65.0% 61.0% 61.0% 60.0% 58.0%

59



The following office(s) are hereby authorized to place orders under this Agreement: 

Agency Name: 

Address: 

City, State, Zip Code: 

Will orders be placed by one centralized purchasing location?  

If no, please list other locations that will be utilizing this Agreement: 

_ 

_ 

Orders may be sent to the HON Servicing Dealer providing the product installation 
services for review prior to order placement. 
HON shall invoice the Agency upon shipment of Product. 
Payment terms are net 30 days, with no additional discount for early payment. 
Product shall be shipped not to exceed 60 days after receipt of a valid order. 

The Agency: 

_ 
(Printed Name) 

_ 
(Signature) 

_ 
(Title) 

_ 
(Date) 

The HON Company LLC: 

_ 
(Printed Name) 

_ 
(Signature) 

_ 
(Title) 

_ 
(Date) 

Lamar CISD

3911 Avenue I
Rosenberg TX 77471

yes

James Steenbergen

Board President

60



  

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DISTRICTWIDE VENDING MACHINE SERVICES 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Compass Group USA, Inc. by and through its 
Canteen Vending Services Division, for snack and beverage vending machine services 
and authorize the Superintendent to sign a contract when presented. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
This action will establish an annual contract for snack and beverage vending machine 
services districtwide.  Services will consist of installation and maintenance of machines 
along with replenishment of various snacks and beverage products.  Quarterly reporting 
of sales and commission checks shall be reported to the Purchasing and Finance 
Departments.  As a part of the procurement effort, the Purchasing Department 
conducted a brief survey among elementary and secondary campus staff with regard to 
snack/beverage preferences.  This survey helped in making the final recommendation.   
 
                
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
RFP #12-2016LN requested vendors to submit an offer of energy efficient vending 
equipment, snack and beverage products, prompt equipment repair services, attractive 
commission, and insurance specific to Lamar CISD.  A tabulation is attached for 
reference.  This bid will be awarded as an annual contract with four optional one year 
renewals, provided that the District and the approved vendor are in mutual agreement.  
The procurement of these services will commence upon board approval.   
 
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
   Michele Leach, RTSBA, Purchasing & Materials Manager 
  
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  

9.B.#9. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

61



RFP # 12-2016LN
Vending Machine Service

Vendors

AVG
Commission

(Based on
Gross Sales*)

% 

Purchase
Price

Criteria 1
max 20pts

Reputation
of Service
Criteria 2
max 15pts

Statement of
Qualifications

Criteria 3
max 10pts

Extent to
meet needs

Criteria 4
max 30pts

Past
Relation
Criteria 5
max 5pts 

Long term
Cost

Criteria 6
max 10pts

Staff &
Insurance
Criteria 7
max 10pts

TOTAL
POINTS

Compass / Canteen 28% 19 15 10 30 4 10 10 98

Coca Cola Refreshments** 25% 17 15 10 15** 5 10 10 82

Dr Pepper / Snapple** 30% 20 15 10 15** 3 10 10 83

Grow Healthy Vending 12% 8 10 8 30 3 10 10 79

*  Gross sales = collection less sales tax
** drinks only, no snack offerings

62



      
 

 

 

 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR 2017 HISTORIC SITE EXEMPTION 

QUALIFICATION FOR THE DARST-YODER HOUSE 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
That the Board of Trustees approve the 2017 Historic Site Exemption Qualification for 
The Darst-Yoder House. 
 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
In accordance with Board Policy CCG (Local), the representative for The Darst-Yoder 
House has applied for a historical tax exemption for the taxes to be levied for the 2017-
18 school year. 
 

TAXPAYER LOCATION/TYPE OF 

PROPERTY 

PROPERTY 

VALUE 

ESTIMATED 

AMOUNT OF TAX 

RELIEF 

The Darst-Yoder 
House 

   300 South 9th Street  
Richmond, TX  77469 

 

$369,590 $1,978.29* 

 
*The calculated tax amount for this property is $5,137.49; however, the amount of  
tax relief requested above represents a freeze ceiling set in place in 1978. 

 
 

Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

9.B.#10. – PLANNING 

BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

63



64



65



66



 

  

DISCUSSION AND POTENTIAL ACTION REGARDING LOCAL OPTION EXEMPTION  
FOR TAXPAYERS AGE 65 OR OLDER OR DISABLED 

 
Texas offers a variety of partial or total (absolute) exemptions from property appraised values used to 
determine local property taxes.  A partial exemption removes a percentage or a fixed dollar amount of a 
property’s value from taxation, and a total exemption excludes the entire property from taxation.  Taxing 
entities are mandated by the state to offer certain mandatory exemptions but local governing bodies 
have the option to decide on whether or not to offer others. 
 
In addition to the mandatory exemptions (Residence Homestead of $25,000 and the OA65 of $10,000), 
a school district may offer an additional local option exemption (LOE) to elderly or disabled taxpayers.  If 
offered, the amount of the exemption must be at least $3,000. 
 
Many taxpayers in this category have frozen tax ceilings.  If the calculation of taxes owed with the 
additional exemption does not produce a lower amount of tax than the existing ceiling, then the taxpayer 
achieves no additional relief.  This is illustrated by the following calculation of a Local Option Exemption 
of $15,000: 
 

Appraised Value       $200,000 
Mandated Exemptions                   <35,000> 

Local Option Exemption      <15,000> 

Net Taxable Value                   $150,000 
Total Tax Rate (current)                          $1.39005/$100 
 

New Tax (with Local Option Exemption)        $2,085 

 

Since the New Tax amount is $2,085, a taxpayer with a frozen property tax ceiling of 
$2,000 would still owe $2,000.  This taxpayer would see no ADDITIONAL benefit from a 
new Local Option Exemption, because his current frozen tax is less than the New Tax.  
However, taxpayers becoming 65 in the year the new exemption is approved would 
establish a lower tax ceiling that would be enjoyed in that year and in future years. 

   
Administration has reviewed the feasibility of offering a LOE to taxpayers Age 65 or Older or Disabled 
(“OA65”).  In our review, we have considered the impact on property tax revenues and state funding, the 
uncertainty of future legislation (as the Legislature is currently in Session), the growth rate of property 
values, and the budgetary needs for the 2017-18 fiscal year.   
 
We have also considered the extent to which taxpayers with currently frozen property tax ceilings will 
benefit from a LOE.  There are between nine and ten thousand properties on the tax roll identified with 
an OA65 mandatory exemption.  We are estimating that of those OA65 taxpayers, less than 20% would 
benefit from a LOE of $15,000, and those that did would average a savings of less than $50 per year.  
The LOE would have to be substantially larger for the majority of the population to benefit, and this 
would also create a larger reduction in revenues and a more significant burden on other taxpayers in the 
community. 
 
When reviewing the feasibility of recommending a LOE, the Board must consider more than the current-
year budgetary impact resulting from lost property tax revenue and the limited benefit to taxpayers.  
Other fiscal consequences of granting this exemption include the inequity created for other groups of 
taxpayers not offered a similar exemption, the inability to repeal the exemption once granted, the 
difficulty of measuring the ultimate cost of the exemption because it is expected to increase each year, 
and the negative impact on the tax rate of the Interest and Sinking Fund.   

 
Resource Person:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 

9.B.#11. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

67



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING  
PUBLIC SCHOOL PARAPROFESSIONALS’ DAY 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming May 10, 2017 
as Public School Paraprofessionals’ Day in the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
HB 108 designated the second Wednesday in May as Paraprofessional Day to 
recognize teacher aides and other assistants for their contribution to schools. Therefore, 
May 10, 2017 is proclaimed across Texas as Public School Paraprofessionals’ Day.  
 
Public School Paraprofessionals are valuable members of educational teams, 
contributing in many ways beyond their most recognizable functions. Their assistance is 
vital in classrooms, gymnasiums, libraries, with special education students and more. 
 
Public School Paraprofessionals also assist school personnel as trusted communicators 
with parents and community members. Their connection to the community aids in 
communication and fosters positive public relations. 
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
  
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

  
 

9.B.#12a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

68



Resolution 
 

WHEREAS, public school paraprofessionals are valuable members of 
educational teams in classrooms, gymnasiums, libraries, with special 
education students and more; and 
 
WHEREAS, public school paraprofessionals contribute in many ways 
beyond their most recognizable functions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the assistance of public school paraprofessionals is 
particularly important in the daily activities and operations of a school 
district; and 
  
WHEREAS, public school paraprofessionals serve our educational 
community by providing support for students and staff; and 
 
WHEREAS, public school paraprofessionals assist school and district 
personnel as trusted communicators with parents and community 
members; and 
 
WHEREAS, the connection of public school paraprofessionals to the 
community aids in communication and positive public relations within the 
community, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of the 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District declares May 10, 2017 as 
Public School Paraprofessionals’ Day and encourages members of the 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Staff and community to 
express appreciation to our public school paraprofessionals. 
 
Adopted this 20th day of April 2017. 
 
 
 
      
        James Steenbergen, President 
 
 
 

                                                                
 Kay Danziger, Secretary 

69



  
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING 
SCHOOL NURSES’ WEEK 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming May 6 – 12, 2017 
as School Nurses’ Week in the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Professional nurses are valuable members of educational teams in Lamar CISD schools. 
Nurses contribute to the health of students in many ways beyond their most recognizable 
function as registered health care providers. School nurses also serve as advocates for 
students by lending a perspective regarding individual health needs and their assistance is 
particularly important in cases where students’ illnesses hinder their ability to learn.  
 
School nurses assist school personnel as trusted communicators with parents regarding 
sensitive health topics. Their connection to the health-care system adds credibility in 
addressing topics such a prevention of drug use, child abuse, suicide, school-age 
pregnancy and sexually transmitted diseases. 
 
School nurses also serve as health educators, providing counseling and support for 
students and teachers. They are important resource persons in processes of curriculum 
development, textbook selection and review of instructional materials, in which accuracy of 
information is highly important. 
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations   
 
 
Recommended for Approval: 
 

 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
     
 
 

9.B.#12b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

70



Resolution 
 

WHEREAS, school nurses play a critical role in the educational process 

through involvement in the prevention of illness and the early detection and 

correction of health problems; and 

 

WHEREAS, school nurses must be specially prepared and qualified to 

practice preventive health measures, assess health conditions, and handle 

referrals; and 

 

WHEREAS, school nurses serve the multiple roles of health educator and 

health counselor to children and families, resource person to classroom 

teachers and administrators, child advocate in times of crisis and liaison 

among home, school and community; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of the 

Lamar Consolidated Independent School District declares the week of  

May 6 – 12, 2017 as School Nurses’ Week, and encourages all members of 

our staff and community to express appreciation to our school nurses.  

 

Adopted this 20th day of April 2017.  

 

 

 

 

        

 James Steenbergen, President 

 

 

 Kay Danziger, Secretary 

71



  
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING 
TEACHER APPRECIATION WEEK 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming May 1 – 5, 2017 as 
Teacher Appreciation Week in the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
May 1 – 5, 2017 is proclaimed as the National Teacher Appreciation Week. This special 
designation serves as a reminder to the public and recognizes the importance of a 
teacher’s ability to mold our future citizens through their guidance and education. 
 
Today’s teachers encounter students of widely differing backgrounds and abilities and use 
many different teaching strategies to meet the needs of each student. Our society expects 
public education to provide quality education services to all children, regardless of their 
background or ability. 
 
Our country’s future depends on the education our youth receive today. Teachers spend 
countless hours outside their classrooms preparing lessons, evaluating progress, 
counseling and coaching students and performing community service. 
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations   
 
 
Recommended for Approval: 
 

 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

9.B.#12c. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

72



Resolution 
 

WHEREAS, today’s teachers mold our future citizens through their guidance and 

education; and 

 

WHEREAS, today’s teachers encounter students of widely differing backgrounds and 

abilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, our society expects public education to provide quality education services 

to all children, no matter what their background or ability; and 

  

WHEREAS, our country’s future depends on the education our youth receive today; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, teachers spend countless hours outside their classrooms preparing lessons, 

evaluating progress, counseling and coaching students, and performing community 

service; and 

 

WHEREAS, our community recognizes that its teachers are providing quality 

educational services to our children; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of the Lamar 

Consolidated Independent School District declares the week of May 1 – 5, 2017 as 

Teacher Appreciation Week in the Lamar Consolidated Independent School 

District and calls on the community to join with the Board of Trustees in personally 

expressing appreciation to our teachers for a job well done. 

 
Adopted this 20th day of April 2017. 

 
 

         James Steenbergen, President 

 

 

 

         Kay Danziger, Secretary 

73



  

CONSIDER RETAIL SALES INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR ELECTRICITY WITH 
THE TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees authorize the Superintendent to execute a retail sales interlocal 
agreement for electricity with the Texas General Land Office beginning June 1, 2020. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
After the deregulation of electricity in 2002, the District entered into an agreement with the 
Texas General Land Office to provide electricity to the District.  The agreement has been 
extended several times due to the competitive rates and incentives offered to the District.  
The current contract will expire on May 31, 2020.  The base rate per kWh is $0.04242 with 
transmission and distribution charges added to determine net cost per kWh.   
 
Current market rates for electricity in Texas have continued to remain low.  Based upon 
current market rates, LCISD projects a considerable savings over our current rate.  
Administration is recommending a retail sales interlocal agreement for electricity from the 
Texas General Land Office under Texas Education Code Section 44.031.  The agreement 
will be for 36 months.  The negotiated agreement will be presented to the trustees at the 
board meeting. 
 
Based on the current rate environment and yearly kWh load pricing for a three-year term, 
the District should be able to secure savings of over $724,433 dollars. 
 
 
Submitted by: Dr. Thomas Randle, Superintendent 
   Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
   Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 

Dr. Thomas Randle 

Superintendent 

  

9.B.#13. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



 CONSIDER APPROVAL OF JOB ORDER CONTRACTING AWARD 
FOR PINK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Facilities Sources for Pink Elementary School repairs 
in the amount of $473,311 and authorize the Board President to sign the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Cost proposals were solicited from two contractors under the Job Order Contracting method 
of procurement for Pink Elementary School repairs. Two proposals were received on March 
30, 2017. Facilities Sources submitted a proposal that meets the scope of work requested 
and is within the current project budget.  
 
Facilities Sources has a current contract #17/020CG-06 with Choice Partners Cooperative. 
 
On February 16, 2017, the Board approved the procurement method for Job Order 
Contracting (JOC) to be used for the procurement of the Pink Elementary School repairs. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The repairs at Pink Elementary School include adjusting doors, repairing cracks in walls, 
installing control joints in walls, removing and replacing vinyl wall covering, installing corner 
guards and rubber base, repairing terrazzo floor, leveling suspended ceilings and painting in 
selected areas. 
 
Upon approval, contracts will be prepared for execution and Facilities Sources will begin 
repairs to Pink Elementary School during the summer of 2017. 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 

Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
   

9.B.#14. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

88



Pink Elementary Renovation Project 
Bid Tabulation Form

Job Order Contractor

Opening Date: Thursday, March 30, 2017  2:00 PM
Bass Construction Facilities

Sources
Facilities Sources
Post Bid

Contractor
Bid Bond Requirement yes yes
Signed Forms Requirement yes yes

Base Bid $974,522.00 $369,078.84 $350,467.54

Total $974,522.00 $369,078.84 $350,467.54
Alternates

Alt No.1 $619,590.00 $140,390.55 N/A

Alt No. 2 No Cost $76,404.02 N/A

Post Bid Alternate $122,843.46

Grand Total w/             ALTS $1,594,112.00 $585,873.41 $473,311.00

Page 1 of 1                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           F 408 A, Rev 2, 12/2007Award

89



 CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MUD NO. 142 ANNEXATION 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the Petition for Consent and Petition for Addition of 
Certain Lands to include annexation of the Bentley Elementary School site and the 
Agricultural Barn #2 site into Fort Bend County MUD No. 142 and authorize the Board 
President to sign the agreements. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Fort Bend County MUD No. 142 requires the Bentley Elementary School and 
Agricultural Barn #2 sites to be annexed into the MUD District to provide water and 
sewer services at the commercial rates.  
 
In the interim, until the annexation is complete, an out-of-district agreement for water 
and sewer service has been executed between Lamar CISD and MUD No. 142.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Fort Bend County MUD No. 142 is the Municipal Utility District provider for water and 
sewer services for Bentley Elementary School and Agricultural Barn #2. To complete 
the annexation of the Bentley Elementary School and Agricultural Barn #2 sites, a 
Petition for Consent to include additional land in Fort Bend County MUD No. 142 and a 
Petition for Addition of Certain Land to Fort Bend County MUD No. 142 have been 
prepared for execution. 
 
Upon approval, the Board President will sign the documents to authorize the 
annexation of the two sites.  
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
   

9.B.#15. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



 CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ADDITIONAL GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING 
SERVICES FOR THE FOSTER HIGH SCHOOL WATER PLANT UPGRADES 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Terracon, Inc. for additional geotechnical 
engineering services for the Foster High School water plant upgrades in the amount of 
$2,600 and authorize the Board President to execute the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Geotechnical engineering services are a professional service that the District must 
contract directly. These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Geotechnical engineering services were approved by the Board of Trustees at their 
November 17, 2016 regular meeting in the amount of $4,100. A revised location for the 
new water storage tank necessitates an additional boring to ensure the bearing capacity 
is adequate. 
 
Upon approval, the Board President will execute the agreement and Terracon will 
finalize their work. 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 
 

9.B.#16. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

111



112



113



  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH FORT BEND 
COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICTS NO. 106, NO. 108, NO. 109, AND NO.117 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve an interlocal agreement with Fort Bend County 
Municipal Utility Districts No. 106, No. 108, No. 109, and No. 117 and allow the Board 
President to execute the agreement. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Fort Bend County Municipal Utility Districts No. 106, No. 108, No. 109, and No. 117 are 
going to donate up to a maximum of $3,000,000 to Lamar CISD for the installation of an 
all-weather field and track at Campbell and Dickinson Elementary Schools.  This project 
shall be completed before December 12, 2017. 
 
   
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval Lamar CISD will begin the design process for the installation of an all-
weather field and track surface at Dickinson and Campbell Elementary Schools. 
 
 
Submitted by: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 

9.B.#17. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

114



115



116



117



118



Lamar Consolidated ISD 

Dickinson Elementary Track 60 120 
01-30-17 

N 

EB 
120 0 240 

Exhibit A 
119



f'Y~-fi~ ~s twl-1"dw:kd - Lo CA-tio" ttt'ld u •"" ~dfi Utt\Of\\ 
"'-." 'V - .... • -r. 

Lamar Consolidated ISD 
N 

EB 02-07-17 Campbell Elementary Track 60 120 

120 0 240 

Exhibit A 
120



EXHIBIT B

Campbell Elementary Shool
Scope includes:
                3 Lane track approximately 350 meters
                Synthetic turf Field
                Storm detention
                Subgrade preparation
                Drainage connection

Estimated Cost: $1,625,000

Dickinson Elementary School
Scope includes:
                Resurfacing existing track
                Synthetic turf Field
                Storm detention
                Subgrade preparation
                Drainage connection
Estimated Cost: $1,130,000

Total Estimated Costs: $2,755,000

121



  
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ARCHITECT CONTRACT 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve PBK Sports Architects for the design of the new 
track and all-weather surface for Dickinson and Campbell Elementary Schools and 
allow the Superintendent to begin contract negotiations.  
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Fort Bend County Municipal Districts No. 106, No. 108, No. 109, and No. 117 will be 
donating up to $3,000,000 for the installation of an all-weather play surface and poly 
urethane track at Dickinson and Campbell Elementary Schools.  The MUD’s need to 
make this donation by December 12, 2017 when the City of Sugar Land will annex the 
Greatwood subdivision. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval PBK Sports Architects will begin the design process and develop 
specifications for bidding.  
 
 
Submitted by: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
     
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  

 

9.B.#18. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

122



  
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE PROCUREMENT METHOD FOR THE  

ALL-WEATHER SPORTS FIELD AND TRACK PROJECTS  
AT DICKINSON AND CAMPBELL ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve and authorize the administration to utilize 
competitive sealed proposals as the construction procurement method with the 
evaluation criteria for the all-weather sports field and track projects at Dickinson and 
Campbell Elementary Schools. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
The all-weather sports field and track projects at Dickinson and Campbell Elementary 
Schools will be funded by donations from the Fort Bend County Municipal Utility Districts 
No. 106, No. 108, No. 109, and No. 117. 
 
The Texas Education Code 44.031 requires school districts to procure construction 
services using a method as outlined in Texas Government Code, Chapter 2269 for 
construction purchases totaling $50,000 or more.  Additionally, the Texas Government 
Code 2269 requires the Board of Trustees to specify which method of procurement will 
be used before any construction project is advertised and released for bids.  The 
authorization given with this motion will allow the administration to proceed with 
solicitation of competitive sealed proposals for the all-weather sports field and track 
projects at Dickinson and Campbell Elementary Schools 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The competitive sealed proposal method of procurement promotes competitive pricing 
among the bidders, but allows negotiations between the District and the selected 
contractor(s) before the contract is finalized.  As the District must state its selected 
method of procurement, as well as the evaluation criteria in the notice to bidders, this 
authorization will allow the administration to proceed with securing offers for the Board’s 
consideration and approval. The evaluation criteria is attached. 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent   

9.B.#19. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

123



EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR CONSTRUCTION PROPOSALS 

REVISED APRIL 2016 
 

Proposals shall be evaluated using the evaluation criteria listed below. 

 
Evaluation Criteria 

Point 

System 

1 Purchase price – Proposal should offer a fair and reasonable price for services 

to be procured by Lamar CISD. Pricing will be calculated using the Price 

Delivery Sheet in this document. 

20 

 
 

2 

Reputation of the vendor and of the vendor’s goods or services – 

Proposer should have a solid reputation with other ISDs, government or 

collegiate entities that shows a high level of customer service and a high 
level of quality of goods or services.  References will be contacted via e- 

mail. 

15 

 

3 
Quality of the vendor’s goods or services – Overall assessment of vendor’s 

services. Vendor will be expected to meet schedules and operate with minimal 

disruption in accordance with the outlined specifications. 

10 

4 
Extent to which the goods or services meet the district’s needs 
Assessment of Submitted Project Plan and Schedules 

15 

 

 
5 

Vendor’s past relationship with the district 
5- Good business with Lamar CISD, staff recommends use again 

3- Good business with no documented issue OR never performed 

business with Lamar CISD but has experience with other school 

districts or government entities. 

1- Past performance was documented as being poor. 

5 

 

6 
Proposed Team offers experience and knowledge base to the project 

 Resume submission of team 

 Organizational chart of team working on Lamar CISD project 

15 

 

7 

Ability to service our accounts with proper staff and insurance 

requirements – 

Provide proof of proper insurance as defined in this proposal including the 

percentage of bonding coverage with the inclusion of this contract. 

10 

 

 

 

 

 
8 

Safety Record 
Vendor must submit copy of Experience Modifier Rate (EMR) for the last 

three years. The totals for the three years are calculated and averaged to 

receive the points below. 

8 - EMR of .50 or less 

6 - EMR 0.51-0.85 

4 - EMR 0.86-0.99 

2 - EMR greater than 1.0 

 

2 additional points awarded when vendor submits an electronic or 

paper copy of their company safety program or handbook. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
10 

 

 9 
 

TOTAL 100 

POINTS 

 
 

124



  
 

DISCUSSION AND/OR POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE CURRENT  
USE OF FACILITIES RENTAL FEES 

 

 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
At the Regular Board Meeting on March 23, 2017, the Board of Trustees requested a 
discussion item to discuss the current rental rates. The Board of Trustees approved the 
current Use of Facilities rental rates at the Regular Board Meeting November 17, 2011.   
 
These rates have been calculated to cover utilities, labor, and materials.  
 
 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Leslie Haack, Executive Director of Secondary Education 
 Nicole Nelson, Athletic Director 
 
 
 
 

9.B.#20. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

125



Use of Facilities Fee Proposal 

 

All fees will be paid in advance.  Additional costs will be billed after 

usage.  No volunteer time allowed. 

All Cafeterias: 

New fee proposal: 

$200 for the first 3 hours (minimum) 

 for each additional hour/or part of an hour $65.00/hour 

 district employee supervisor   $30.00/hour 

custodial fee (District will determine the # required)   
        $20.00/hour 

 

Gymnasiums 

New fee proposal: 

$200 for the first 3 hours (minimum) 

 for each additional hour/or part of an hour $65.00/hour 

 district employee supervisor   $30.00/hour 

custodial fee (District will determine the # required)   
        $20.00/hour 

security officer (1 officer per 100 occupancy. The district will 
determine if more security is necessary) $30.00/hour each 

  

126



Auditorium: 

New fees proposal: 

 $500 for the first 3 hours (minimum) 

 additional hour or part of an hour  $100.00/hour 

Sound/Lighting Technician (may require 2 techs.)   
         $35.00/hour 

 district employee supervisor   $30.00/hour 

custodial fee (District will determine the # required)   
         $20.00/hour 

 

Classroom (additional Space):  

   

New fee proposal (Additional Space by the hour or part of the hour): 

These are only available if additional space is required over the 
Cafeteria, Gymnasium, or Auditorium. 

 Single classroom     $40.00/hour 

 Two or more classrooms 

  For each classroom    $30.00/hour 

  custodial fee as required   $20.00/hour 

 Choir/Drama 

  $100 for the first 3 hours (minimum) 

  each additional hour    $40.00/hour 

  

127



Band Hall 

  $100 for the first 3 hours (minimum) 

  each additional hour    $40.00/hour 

 Gymnasium 

  $100 for the first 3 hours (minimum) 

  each additional hour    $40.00/hour 

Libraries are not available for rent. 

 

Athletic Facilities Fees: 

Rental will be approved by the Athletic Director and/or the 
Administrator for Operations 

 

Traylor Stadium/Track: 

 with Lights      $350.00/event 

 w/o Lights       $300.00/event 

 Field Prep         $250.00/event 

 Home Side Ticket Taker (2)    $30.00/event 

 Home Side Gate Keeper    $30.00/event 

 Home Band/Pass/Ticket Taker   $45.00/event 

 Home Side Off-track Gatekeeper   $30.00/event 

 Home Side Ticket Seller    $35.00/event 

 Home Side Money Counter    $45.00/event 

 Visitor Side Ticket Taker (2)   $30.00/event 

128



 Visitor Band/Pass/Ticket Taker   $40.00/event 

 Visitor Side Ticket Seller    $35.00/event 

 Visitor Side Money Counter   $45.00/event 

 Visitor Side Off-track Gatekeeper   $30.00/event 

 Announcer      $50.00/event 

 Stadium Supervisor     $30.00/hour 

 Scoreboard Tech     $50.00/event 

 Press Box Manager     $50.00/event 

 Concession Manager-Main Stand  $55.00/event 

 Concession Cashier     $50.00/event 

 Concession Worker     $10.00/hour 

 Parking Lot Attendants    $50.00/event 

 Parking Lot Attendant – Lead   $75.00/event 

 Parking Lot Security (non-uniform)   $45.00/event 

 Trainer       $100.00/event 

 Clock Operator      $50.00/event 

 Security       $30.00/hour 

 Police       $30.00/hour 

 Custodial Clean Up      $300.00/event 

 

 Sub-Varsity Stadium/Track 

  With Lights     $300.00/event 

  Without Lights     $250.00/event 

129



Field Prep       $200.00/event 

  

Baseball/Softball 

  With Lights     $250.00/event 

  Without Lights     $175.00/event 

  Field Prep      $125.00/event 

  Clean Up      $175.00/event 

 

 Junior High Field 

  Without Lights     $250.00/event 

  Field Prep      $150.00/event 

  Clean Up      $175.00/event 

 

All Season Sports 

 Ticket Box Cashier – Other Athletic Events  $30.00/event 

 Ticket Takers      $30.00/event 

 Clock Operators  

(Volleyball/Soccer/Basketball)  $10.00/game 

  

130



Score Keeper 

 (Volleyball/Soccer/Basketball/Baseball/Softball)    
         $10.00/game 

 Starter (Track/Cross Country)   $100.00/meet 

 Assistant Starter (Track/Cross Country) $50.00/meet 

 Miscellaneous Duty     $10.00/hour 

 
UIL Game Reports (If done by host)    $75.00/event 
 
 Summer Sport Programs   Camp Pay Range 

  Camp Director    $100.00 - $150.00/day 

  Camp Assistant Director  $90.00-$100.00/day 

  Camp Instructor    $50.00-$70.00/day 

  Camp Assistant Instructor  $40.00-$50.00/day 

  Natatorium Director   $200.00/day 

 

Natatorium rental: 

 Facility rental (2 hour minimum)   $75.00/hour 

Colorado Timing System Operator  $35.00/event 

Hytek Operator      $35.00/event 

Officials (Starter, Turn, Finish Judge)  $10.00/hour 

 Lifeguard       $15.00/hour 

 Manager/Supervisor     $30.00/hour 

 Maintenance/Custodian (if needed)  $20.00/hour 

131



 
 
  
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE SECONDARY CO-CURRICULAR AND 
EXTRA-CURRICULAR CODE OF CONDUCT, SECONDARY DRESS AND GROOMING, 

AND LAMAR CISD STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT 
FOR THE 2017-2018 SCHOOL YEAR 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the 2017-2018 Secondary Co-Curricular and Extra-
Curricular Code of Conduct, Secondary Dress and Grooming, and Lamar CISD Student Code 
of Conduct. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
The Texas Education Code (TEC), Chapter 37, Discipline, Law and Order, requires each 
school district to adopt a Student Code of Conduct and Co-Curricular and Extra-Curricular 
Code of Conduct.  Revisions and updates for the 2017-2018 Secondary Co-Curricular and 
Extra-Curricular Code of Conduct, Secondary Dress and Grooming, and LCISD Student Code 
of Conduct were recommended by a committee composed of campus personnel, campus 
administrators, and district administrators.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The proposed 2017-2018 Secondary Co-Curricular and Extra-Curricular Code of Conduct, 
Secondary Dress and Grooming, and Lamar CISD Student Code of Conduct is provided under 
separate cover, with recommended changes highlighted.  Summary of major revisions is 
attached. 
 
Once the Board approves this document, it will be translated into Spanish prior to printing.  It 
will be distributed at the beginning of the school year to students and parents as a separate 
section in the elementary and secondary student handbooks.  
 
 
Submitted by:  Leslie Haack, Executive Director of Secondary Education 
    Linda Lane, Executive Director of Elementary Education  
          
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  
 
 
 

9.C.#1. – SAFE, DRUG-FREE 
DISCIPLINED SCHOOLS 

BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

132



Secondary Co-Curricular and Extra-Curricular Code of Conduct  
and Lamar CISD Student Code of Conduct 

2017-2018 
Proposed Revisions 

 

Page Omit/Replace/Add 

 

Secondary Dress Code 

Secondary Dress and 
Grooming Excerpt 

Revision:   
No pajamas 
No holes or tears above mid-thigh that expose skin are acceptable unless 
worn over leggings or thighs 

Secondary Co-Curricular & Extra-Curricular Code of Conduct 

Page 1-2 
Clarification:  Co-Curricular and 
Extra-Curricular expectations 

Page 3 Clarification:  UIL Eligibility applies to secondary organizations 

Page 20-21 
Addition:  Cheerleading guidelines per the LCISD Athletic Department 
including out of pocket cost 

Page 22-26 Addition:  Career and Technical Student Organization Information (CTSO) 

Page 28 
Addition:  Marching band participation guidelines and clearance by athletic 
trainer 

Page 29 
Addition:  Out of pocket maximum for high school marching band, color 
guard, and winter guard 

Page 36 Addition:  Dance participation guidelines and clearance by athletic trainer 

Page 37 Addition:  Out of pocket maximum for dance team 

Lamar CISD Student Code of Conduct 

Page 6 
 

Revision:  General Conduct Violations and clarification regarding 
disciplinary actions 

Page 11 
 

Revision:  General Conduct Violations and clarification regarding physical 
restraints 

 

133



  
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF NEW APPRAISERS FOR  
TEACHING STAFF, 2016-2017 SCHOOL YEAR 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the 2016-2017 appraiser(s) who have recently become 
certified or are new to Lamar Consolidated Independent School District (LCISD). 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Rules adopted by the State Board of Education indicate that the local District Board of 
Trustees must approve appraisers other than the teacher’s supervisor. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION:  
 
Listed below are staff members who are new to LCISD or have recently become certified as 
appraisers for the 2016-2017 school year. 
 

Heather Williams 
   
 
 
Submitted by: Dr. Kathleen M. Bowen, Chief Human Resources Officer  
 Courtney Beard, Personnel Specialist                                          
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

9.D.#1. – PERSONNEL 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

134



  
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DISTRICT LEARNING MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees approve the five-year agreement with Instructure for Canvas 
Learning Management System subscriptions, implementation, training and support in the 
amount of $666,610 and authorize the Superintendent to negotiate the final contract. 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
A Learning Management System (LMS) is an online portal for delivering and managing 
educational courses or training. It places the digital tools used by students and teachers 
in one place, making it easier for both students and parents to actively engage and 
collaborate in the course.  
 
Students can access course learning materials, receive notifications, and submit 
assignments. Teachers can create an interactive learning tool for their students. 
Teachers can post resources, offer feedback, host and monitor discussion boards and 
other channels of education, and post, accept, and grade assignments and assessments. 
The LMS will be used in all grades. 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
The purpose of RFP 07-2017ML was to solicit proposals to establish a contract through 
competitive negotiations for the purpose of providing an internet-based Learning 
Management System to Lamar Consolidated ISD. The RFP was made publicly available 
on December 7, 2016 and responses were due January 11, 2017.  
 
All proposals were evaluated by a committee which selected the top two vendors. The 
top two vendors presented their products on January 25 and 26, 2017 to four different 
large group committees: (1) technology, (2) teachers and administrators, (3) central 
administration, and (4) parents and students. A final round evaluation was held on 
February 3, 2017, with committee members getting to further compare and discuss both 
products. The final round evaluation resulted in the selection of Canvas from Instructure. 
 
The agreement includes an opt-out clause for years four and five. This program will be 
paid for from local funds annually according to the agreement. 
 
 
Submitted by:  David Jacobson, Chief Technology Information Officer 
     Chad Jones, Director of Technology Development 
   Michele Leach, Purchasing and Materials Manager 
  
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
  

9.E.#1. – TECHNOLOGY 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

135



 
 
 
 
 

6330 South 3000 East, Suite 700, Salt Lake City, UT 84121, United States
 
 

                                           
                                       

Services Order Form
 Order #: Q-25780-10
                    Date: 4/11/2017

Customer Information
         
        
 Customer:   Lamar Cisd  Billing Contact:  /BN  
 Contact:   Michele Leach  Billing Phone:  /BP  
 Phone:   (832) 223-0169  Billing Email:  /BE  
 Email:   mleach@lcisd.org      
 Address:   3911 Ave I      
 City:   Rosenberg  P.O. Required?  /POY  
 State/Province:   Texas  P.O. Number:  /PO#  
 Zip/Postal Code:   77471      
 Country:   United States  State Sales Tax Exempt?  /STEY  
         

Recurring

Description Metric Category Start Date End Date Qty Price Ext. Price

Canvas Cloud Subscription User Cloud SaaS
Subscription

9/1/2017 8/31/2018 15,500 USD 3.50 USD 54,250

24x7 Support 20% of
Subscription
(Min $2500)

Support 9/1/2017 8/31/2018 1 USD
10,850.00

USD 10,850

Canvas Subscription
Training - Annual Unlimited

% of
subscription
(Min $3,000)

Training 9/1/2017 8/31/2018 1 USD 5,425.00 USD 5,425

Year 1 Sub-Total USD 70,525

Canvas Cloud Subscription User Cloud SaaS
Subscription

9/1/2018 8/31/2019 31,000 USD 3.50 USD 108,500

24x7 Support 20% of
Subscription
(Min $2500)

Support 9/1/2018 8/31/2019 1 USD
21,700.00

USD 21,700

Canvas Subscription
Training - Annual Unlimited

% of
subscription
(Min $3,000)

Training 9/1/2018 8/31/2019 1 USD
10,850.00

USD 10,850

Year 2 Sub-Total USD 141,050

Canvas Cloud Subscription User Cloud SaaS
Subscription

9/1/2019 8/31/2020 31,000 USD 3.50 USD 108,500

24x7 Support 20% of
Subscription
(Min $2500)

Support 9/1/2019 8/31/2020 1 USD
21,700.00

USD 21,700

Page 1 of 7

136

djacobson
Draft



Description Metric Category Start Date End Date Qty Price Ext. Price

Canvas Subscription
Training - Annual Unlimited

% of
subscription
(Min $3,000)

Training 9/1/2019 8/31/2020 1 USD 5,425.00 USD 5,425

Year 3 Sub-Total USD 135,625

Canvas Cloud Subscription User Cloud SaaS
Subscription

9/1/2020 8/31/2021 31,000 USD 3.76 USD 116,560

24x7 Support 20% of
Subscription
(Min $2500)

Support 9/1/2020 8/31/2021 1 USD
23,312.00

USD 23,312

Canvas Subscription
Training - Annual Unlimited

% of
subscription
(Min $3,000)

Training 9/1/2020 8/31/2021 1 USD 5,828.00 USD 5,828

Year 4 Sub-Total USD 145,700

Canvas Cloud Subscription User Cloud SaaS
Subscription

9/1/2021 8/31/2022 31,000 USD 4.04 USD 125,240

24x7 Support 20% of
Subscription
(Min $2500)

Support 9/1/2021 8/31/2022 1 USD
25,048.00

USD 25,048

Canvas Subscription
Training - Annual Unlimited

% of
subscription
(Min $3,000)

Training 9/1/2021 8/31/2022 1 USD 6,262.00 USD 6,262

Year 5 Sub-Total USD 156,550

Total USD 649,450

Non-Recurring

Description Metric Category Start Date End Date Qty Price Ext. Price

Onsite Training (3 Day)
Travel Expenses Included

Per Each Training 2 USD 0.00 USD 0

Standard Implementation Per
Implementation

Implementation 1 USD
11,160.00

USD 11,160

Access Fee Per Month Subscription
Add-ons

5/1/2017 8/31/2017 4 USD 1,500.00 USD 6,000

Year 1 Sub-Total USD 17,160

Total USD 17,160

   Grand Total: USD 666,610.00

    

Page 2 of 7

137

djacobson
Draft



Canvas

Deliverables

As needed, your implementation will include the following:

Expertise and best practices on any SIS import and automation work with Canvas. This includes access to API documentation and consulting with client resources on the
client initiated strategy.

Assistance in configuring and testing authentication integration for currently supported technologies including LDAP, SAML, and CAS. Instructure will take a consultant role
on the effort and guide client resources to complete the integration.

Through the Theme Editor, branding for Canvas including application of a color scheme and logos for the top navigation and login page.

Access to guides, public courses, and best practices documentation.

Documented best practices for driving high Canvas adoption and usage.

Canvas User

Description

Canvas K-12 subscription based on number of full-time or part-time users (students, teachers, administrators) per year.

Training

Description

Unlimited access for all users to instructor-led online training.

Duration: Instructure will commence the provision of support and cloud subscription services on the date that is the later of: (i) ninety days prior
to the Start Date; and (ii) the date of the last signature on this Order Form ("Effective Date"). This order begins on the initial date listed above
under Term, and continues until the last date listed above, unless sooner terminated under the Agreement. If Customer has purchased any
third-party content under this order form, that content will be made available on the start date listed above.
One Time Opt-Out: Customer has the one time option to cancel remaining years listed on the Order Form after Year 3 by providing written
notification to Instructure no later than 60 days prior to the end of Year 3. Any prepaid amounts to Instructure will not be refunded.

Miscellaneous: In connection with certain services, Instructure shall provide Customer access to its application-programming interface (“API”)
for no additional fee. Usage and access to the API will be subject to the Instructure API Policy, as may be updated by Instructure from time to
time.
 
Instructure’s support terms can be found at:
Canvas & Catalog: http://www.canvaslms.com/policies/support-terms
Bridge: https://www.getbridge.com/support-terms
 
The price associated with the order form is only available if executed no later than 6/30/2016

Notes

 

Page 3 of 7

138

http://www.canvaslms.com/policies/support-terms
https://www.getbridge.com/support-terms
djacobson
Draft



Payment Terms: Customer agrees to pay to Instructure the applicable fees set forth on this order form. For any Year 1 recurring
costs, training and implementation fees, Customer must pay such amount to Instructure Net 30 on the date of this order. For each
subsequent term, Instructure will invoice Customer 30 days prior to the beginning of such term and Customer must pay such invoice
within 30 days of receipt. Trainings will expire at 12 months from the later of the contract start date or the subscription start date,
specific to this order form, unless otherwise specified by other start and end dates in the order above. All other contract items
subject to expiration will be billed 30 days prior to expiration and due subject to standard payment terms unless otherwise explicitly
stated elsewhere in this agreement.

By executing this order form below, each party indicates that it agrees to be legally bound by this order form, including the attached terms and
conditions or terms and conditions of the Customer’s initial order form which govern this order form.

 
  Lamar Cisd    Instructure, Inc.

  
 /CS

 Signature:  
  
 Name: /CN

  
 Title: /CT

  
 Date: /CD

  

   
 /IS

 Signature:  
  
 Name: /IN

  
 Title: /IT

  
 Date: /ID

  

Page 4 of 7

139

djacobson
Draft



                                              Instructure Standard Terms and Conditions
 
This document outlines the standard contractual terms and conditions (“Terms”) that apply to the provision of any products or services by
Instructure, Inc. (“Instructure”) to the entity identified on the Order Form (“Customer”). These terms are incorporated into the Order Form and
together, the Order Form and these Terms are the “Agreement.” An “Order Form” means any order for the provision of products or services
signed by Customer.
 
1.    Services.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Instructure will provide the Service specified on the Order Form. “Service” means the
proprietary software as a service provided by Instructure and made available through a URL in a hosted environment and other related services
provided by Instructure as further described in the Order Form. “User” means an individual who is authorized by the Customer to use the Service
and Customer has paid for such use.
 
2.    Restrictions.  Customer shall not (and shall not permit Users to): (a) sell, rent, lease, lend, sublicense, distribute, or otherwise transfer or
provide access to the Service or the API to any person, firm, or entity except as expressly authorized herein, or access the Service to build a
competitive service or product, or copy any feature, function or graphic for competitive purposes; (b) modify, adapt, alter or create derivative works
from the Service or the API or to merge the Service or any subpart thereof (including proprietary markings) with other services or software, or
remove or modify any proprietary markings or restrictive legends in the Service, except as provided in this Agreement; (c) use the Service to: (i)
store, transmit or create libelous, obscene, deceptive, defamatory, pornographic, racist, sexual, hateful, unlawful, tortious materials or otherwise
objectionable (except as necessary for Customer’s instructional purposes, but in all cases in compliance with applicable law and regulation), or
(ii) harm or impersonate any person or violate the rights of any third-party rights; (d) interfere with or disrupt the integrity or performance of the
Service; (e) attempt to gain unauthorized access to the Service or its related systems or networks; or (f) introduce viruses, Trojan horses, worms,
spyware, or other such malicious code into the Service.
 
3.    Customer Responsibilities.  Customer: (a) is solely responsible for Customer Content and all activities arising from its Users, and (b) must
keep its passwords secure and confidential, and notify Instructure promptly of any known or suspected unauthorized access to the Service.
 
4.    Instructure Responsibilities.  Instructure shall provide: (a) all updates and upgrades to the Service to Customer that Instructure provides
to its customers generally for no additional charge; and (b) Support (“Support”) pursuant to the terms of Instructure’s customer support, which is
specified at http://www.canvaslms.com/policies/support-terms.
 
5.    Fees.  As consideration for the subscription to the Service, Customer shall pay all fees (“Fees”) set forth in the Order Form. All Fees will
be due from Customer within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice, unless otherwise agreed to in the Order Form. All Fees owed by Customer
are exclusive of, and Customer shall pay, all sales, use, VAT, excise, withholding, and other taxes that may be levied in connection with this
Agreement. Except as set forth in this Agreement, all fees are non-refundable.
 
6.    Service Level Agreement. Instructure will use commercially reasonable efforts to make the Service available with an Annual Uptime
Percentage of at least 99.9% (“Service Commitment”). In the event Instructure does not meet the Service Commitment, Customer will be eligible
to receive a service credit as described below. The maximum amount of the credit is 1/12 of the annual subscription fee for a twelve (12) month
period. The service credit is calculated by taking the number of hours the Service was unavailable below the Service Commitment, and multiplying
it by 3% of 1/12 the annual subscription fee. If the Customer has been using the Service for less than 365 days, the preceding 365 days will be
used, but any days prior to Customer’s use of the Service will be deemed to have had 100% availability. Any unavailability occurring prior to a
credit cannot be used for any future claims. The Service Commitment does not apply to any scheduled outages, standard maintenance windows,
force majeure, and outages that result from any technology issue originating from Customer or a User. Customer’s sole and exclusive remedy
for breach of the warranty in this Section 6 will be for Instructure to provide a credit as provided in this Section 6; provided that Customer notifies
Instructure in writing of such claim within the applicable month Customer becomes eligible or 30 days after.
 
7.    Representations and Warranties. Instructure warrants that: (a) the functionality or features of the Service and Support may change but
will not materially degrade during the Term, and (b) the Services will conform to its then current documentation. As Customer's exclusive remedy
and Instructure's sole liability for breach of the warranty set forth in this Section 7, (a) Instructure shall correct the non-conforming Service at no
additional charge to Customer, or (b) in the event Instructure is unable to correct such deficiencies after good-faith efforts, Instructure shall refund
Customer amounts paid that are attributable to the defective Service from the date Instructure received such notice. To receive warranty remedies,
Customer must promptly report deficiencies in writing to Instructure, but no later than thirty (30) days of the first date the deficiency is identified by
Customer.
 
8.    Compliance. Each party will comply with all applicable laws and regulations (including all applicable export control laws and restrictions) with
respect to its activities under this Agreement. Instructure will implement reasonable, administrative, technical, and physical safeguards in an effort
to secure its facilities and systems from unauthorized access and to secure the Customer Content.
 
9.    Aggregated Data. As between the parties, Instructure owns the aggregated and statistical data derived from the operation of the Service,
including, without limitation, the number of records in the Service, the number and types of transactions, configurations, and reports processed
in the Service and the performance results for the Service (the “Aggregated Data”). Nothing herein shall be construed as prohibiting Instructure
from utilizing the Aggregated Data, provided that Instructure’s use of Aggregated Data will not reveal the identity, whether directly or indirectly, of
any individual or specific data entered by any individual into the Service.
 
10.    Limitation of Liability. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN SECTIONS 6 & 7, INSTRUCTURE DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES,
WHETHER WRITTEN, ORAL, EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY, TITLE, NON-INFRINGEMENT, AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. INSTRUCTURE DOES NOT WARRANT
THAT THE SERVICE WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR BE ERROR-FREE. EACH PARTY AND ITS SUPPLIERS SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO

Page 5 of 7

140

http://www.canvaslms.com/policies/support-terms
djacobson
Draft



THE OTHER PARTY FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING
OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE USE OR INABILITY TO USE THE SERVICES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION,
COSTS OF DELAY, LOSS OF DATA, RECORDS OR INFORMATION, AND ANY FAILURE OF DELIVERY OF THE SERVICE), EVEN IF THE
OTHER PARTY HAS BEEN NOTIFIED OF THE LIKELIHOOD OF SUCH DAMAGES. EXCEPT FOR A PARTY’S INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS IN
SECTION 18, EACH PARTY’S CUMULATIVE MAXIMUM LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT
(WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE) SHALL NOT EXCEED THE AMOUNT PAID BY CUSTOMER WITHIN THE PRECEDING
12 MONTHS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT INSTRUCTURE IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THIRD-PARTY
SERVICES MADE AVAILABLE THROUGH THE SERVICE.
 
11.    Confidentiality.  Each party acknowledges that the other party may disclose its Confidential Information to the other in the performance of
this Agreement. Accordingly, each party shall: (a) keep the Confidential Information disclosed by the other party confidential, (b) use Confidential
Information only for purposes of fulfilling its obligations hereunder, and (c) disclose such Confidential Information only to the receiving party’s
employees who have a need to know and only for the purposes of fulfilling this Agreement. As used herein, “Confidential Information”
means information in the possession or under the control of a party of a proprietary nature relating to the technical, marketing, product and/or
business affairs or proprietary and trade secret information of that party in oral, graphic, written, electronic or machine readable form. Confidential
Information shall not include information that: (a) the receiving party possesses prior to acquiring it from the other, (b) becomes available to
the public or trade through no violation by the receiving party of this paragraph, (c) is given to the receiving party by a third party not under a
confidentiality obligation to the disclosing party, (d) is developed by the receiving party independently of and without reliance on confidential or
proprietary information provided by the disclosing party, or (e) the receiving party is advised by counsel is required to be disclosed by law.
 
12.    Proprietary Rights. As between Customer and Instructure, the Instructure Intellectual Property is, and shall at all times remain, the sole
and exclusive property of Instructure. Customer shall have no right to use, copy, distribute or create derivative works of the Instructure Intellectual
Property except as expressly provided herein. Instructure shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to modify the Instructure Intellectual Property.
“Instructure Intellectual Property” means the Service, and all improvements, changes, enhancements and components thereof, and all
other proprietary materials of Instructure and/or its licensors that are delivered, provided or used by Instructure in the course of performing the
Services, as well as all other intellectual property owned by Instructure and all copyrights, patents, trademarks and trade names, trade secrets,
specifications, methodologies, documentation, algorithms, criteria, designs, report formats and know-how, as well as and any underlying source
code and object code related thereto.
 
13.    Customer Owned Content. As between Instructure and Customer, any and all information, data, results, plans, sketches, text, files, links,
images, photos, videos, audio files, notes or other materials uploaded by a User through the Service remain the sole property of Customer
(“Customer Content”). Instructure may use the Customer Content to provide and improve the Services in accordance with this Agreement or
Customer’s instructions.
 
14.    Feedback. Instructure may send surveys to Users (no more than once each year) to solicit feedback regarding performance of the Service
and suggestions for improvements (such feedback will be stored in anonymous and aggregate form). Customer, and each User (to the extent
Customer has such right), hereby grants Instructure an irrevocable, royalty-free perpetual license to use all feedback and suggestions regarding
the Service.
 
15.    Term.  The term (“Term”) of this Agreement shall begin on date identified as the Effective Date on the Order Form and shall continue for the
time period set forth in the Order Form, unless terminated by the parties in accordance with Section 16.
 
16.    Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement for the material breach of any provision by the other party if such material breach
remains uncured for thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of such breach from the non-breaching party. Such termination right shall be in
addition to any other rights and remedies that may be available to the non-breaching party. In the event the Agreement is terminated, all Order
Forms are simultaneously terminated. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement: (a) Customer shall immediately cease using the Services;
and (b) in connection with certain Services, for a period of 3 months following expiration or termination, Customer may export the Customer
Content through the API or by using the export feature within the Service.
 
17.    Suspension of Service. Instructure may immediately suspend the Service and remove applicable Customer Content if Customer and/or its
Users have violated a law or the terms of this Agreement. Instructure may try to contact Customer in advance, but it is not required to do so.

 
18.    Infringement.  If a third party claims the Service infringes that party's patent, copyright or other proprietary right, Instructure will defend
Customer against that claim at Instructure’s expense and pay all costs, damages, and attorney's fees, that a court finally awards or that are
included in a settlement approved by Instructure, provided that Customer: (a) promptly notifies Instructure in writing of the claim; and (b) allows
Instructure to control, and cooperates with Instructure in, the defense and any related settlement. If such a claim is made, Instructure may continue
to enable Customer to use the Service or to modify it such that it becomes non-infringing. If Instructure determines that these alternatives are not
reasonably available, Instructure may terminate the Service without any liability to Customer upon notice to Customer and with the return of any
prepaid and unused fees. The infringement indemnity obligations in this Section 18 do not apply to the extent the infringement claim arises from
(a) any technology not provided by Instructure or otherwise identified by Instructure in writing as interoperable, (b) use of the Service other than in
accordance with this agreement and the applicable Services documentation, (c) the Customer Content, and/or (d) modification or alteration to the
Services by anyone other than Instructure. If a third party claims that any part of the Customer Content infringes or violates a patent, trademark,
trade secret, copyright or other intellectual property right, or there are third- party claims arising out of Customer’s breach of this Agreement,
Customer will defend Instructure against that claim at Customer’s expense and pay all costs, damages, and attorney's fees, that a court finally
awards or that are included in a settlement approved by Customer, provided that Instructure: (a) promptly notifies Customer in writing of the claim;
and (b) allows Customer to control, and cooperates with Customer in, the defense and any related settlement.
 
19.    General.  Any notice by a party under this Agreement shall be in writing and either personally delivered, delivered by facsimile or sent via
reputable overnight courier (such as Federal Express) or certified mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, addressed to the other

Page 6 of 7

141

djacobson
Draft



party at the address specified in the Order Form or such other address of which either party may from time to time notify the other in accordance
with this Section 19. A copy of all notices to Instructure shall be sent to: Instructure, Inc., 6330 South 3000 East, Ste. 700 Salt Lake City, UT
84121, Attention: General Counsel. For purposes of service messages and notices about the Service, Instructure may place a banner notice or
send an email to an email address associated with an account. It is the User’s responsibility to ensure that a current email address is associated
with their account. All notices shall be in English and shall be deemed effective upon receipt. If Instructure is unable to perform its obligations
under this Agreement due to circumstances beyond its reasonable control, including, but not limited to, acts of God, earthquakes, hacker attacks,
actions or decrees of governmental bodies, changes in applicable laws, or communication or power failures, such obligations will be suspended
so long as those circumstances persist. This Agreement shall be interpreted, governed and construed by the laws of the State of Delaware without
regard to the actual state or country of incorporation or residence of Customer. Instructure is acting in performance of this Agreement as an
independent contractor to Customer. If any term of this agreement is invalid or unenforceable, the other terms remain in effect and the invalid or
unenforceable provision will be deemed modified so that it is valid and enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by law. Amendments to this
Agreement must be made in writing and signed by both parties unless otherwise specified in the Agreement. This Agreement constitute the entire
agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, and any prior representations, statements, and agreements
relating thereto are superseded by the terms of this Agreement. Instructure rejects additional or conflicting terms of any Customer form-purchasing
document. Customer shall not assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, to any entity without Instructure’s prior written consent. Any attempt to
assign this Agreement, in whole or part, in contravention of this Section, shall be void. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their successors and permitted assigns. Any failure by either party to enforce the other party's strict performance
of any provision of this Agreement will not constitute a waiver of its right to subsequently enforce such provision or any other provision of this
Agreement. Customer agrees to allow Instructure to use its name, logo and non-competitive use details in both text and pictures in its various
marketing communications and materials, in accordance with Customer’s trademark guidelines and policies. Any terms that by their nature survive
termination or expiration of this agreement, will survive (including, but not limited to, Sections 10, 12, 15, 16 and 19).

Page 7 of 7

142

djacobson
Draft



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DISTRICTWIDE TARDY KIOSK IMPLEMENTATION 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees approve Dell to provide computers, CDWG to provide 
printers, and GoIT to provide program support not to exceed $35,000 for the districtwide 
implementation of Skyward Tardy Kiosk. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
Tardy Kiosk is a function of Skyward that allows for the automated entry of student 
tardies via a kiosk station in which a student’s ID number is entered and the tardy is 
created. A pass is then printed allowing the student entry into his/her class. Since the 
tardy data is entered directly into Skyward, this saves campus staff time in entering the 
individual tardies, reviewing tardy totals and possible next steps, and communicating with 
students, parents, and other campus staff. Tardy Kiosk is already included in Skyward at 
no additional cost. Tardy Kiosk replaces a third-party application in use at seven 
campuses, therefore saving the district money in the long run. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
To support campuses in the implementation of the new Skyward Tardy Kiosk, computer 
packages (Laptop, USB Number Pad, and Laptop Lock) and receipt printers are needed.  
 

 
Total 

Campuses 

Computer 
Packages per 

Campus 

Printers 
per 

Campus 

USB Number 
Pads per 
Campus 

Total Cost 
per 

Campus 

Total 
Cost 

ES 24 0 1 ($300) 1 ($21) $321 $7,704 

MS 4 0 1 ($300) 1 ($21) $321 $1,284 

JH 5 2 ($1,362) 2 ($600) 2 ($42) $2,004 $ 10,020 

HS 5 2 ($1,362) 2 ($600) 2 ($42) $2,004 $ 10,020 

Total Hardware $29,028 

 
Vendor support for implementation is estimated at $5,000-$6,000. Each vendor offers 
products and services through a cooperative purchasing agreement. Tardy Kiosk is part 
of the continued expansion and implementation of Skyward. This project will be funded 
from savings from the 2011 bond Skyward budget. 
 
Submitted by:  David Jacobson, Chief Technology Information Officer 
     Chad Jones, Director of Technology Development 
      
  
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent  

9.E.#2. – TECHNOLOGY 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

143



  
 

INFORMATION ITEM: 2016-2017 SUMMER SCHOOL  
 
Each summer, Lamar CISD provides identified students with opportunities to attend a summer 
academic program. 
 
PK/K LEP Summer School Program 
Bilingual/ESL students advancing from pre-kindergarten to kindergarten and from kindergarten to first 
grade will be offered a program to address the affective, linguistic, and cognitive needs of English 
Language Learners.  The instructional program will focus on language development and essential 
knowledge and skills appropriate to the level of the student. 
 
Elementary 5th Grade SSI  
Students in grade 5 who did not meet Level II standards on the Reading STAAR test or the Math STAAR 
test will receive intensive accelerated reading and math instruction.  These students will take the STAAR 
Reading assessment (third administration) and/or the STAAR Math assessment (third administration) as a 
part of Summer School. 
 
Elementary Summer School Camp 
Students in grades 2nd- 4th from Travis, Bowie, Smith, Pink, and Thomas will receive supplemental 
reading and math academic support.  Students will be selected based on their DRA level (2nd grade) and 
Benchmark data/STAAR scores (3rd- 4th grades).  
 
Required Student SSI (8th) and EOC (High School) Tutorials & Re-test:  Session #1 
Students who did not meet Level II standards on the Reading or Math STAAR assessment or a high 
school EOC assessment will receive intensive accelerated instruction in preparation for the STAAR/EOC 
re-assessment.   
 
Summer School:  Session #2 & #3 
Students in grades 6th, 7th & 8th who did not successfully pass their core content course will be required to 
attend summer school to receive intensive accelerated remediation in preparation for the next grade 
level.   
 
Students in grades 8th, 9th, 10th, 11th, and 12th are eligible to take original credit courses during summer 
school.  Students needing to recover credits in the core content courses are eligible for credit restoration 
credit during summer school.  
 
Special Education 
Special Education and ELL students who meet eligibility criteria at a grade level will be included in the 
programs above.  Special education students who are expected to regress over the summer months will 
be provided extended school year (ESY) services specified on an individual basis by the ARD/IEP 
committee.  Summer Blast is a reading and math program developed for students based on teacher 
recommendations and ARD committee approval to maintain their understanding of reading and math 
strategies and concepts over the summer.  Through the use of direct, small group interventions, games 
and computer-based programs students will receive intensive interventions in a fun-filled environment. 
 
Funding for the summer 2017 programs will be provided through Local Budget, State Compensatory 
Education (SCE), Part A funds and special education. 

 
 
Resource Persons:            Linda Lane, Executive Director of Elementary 
                                           Leslie Haack, Executive Director of Secondary 

 

10.A.#1. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

144



Lamar Consolidated ISd 

Summer 2017 

 

 

 
Elementary Summer School Schedule: 

PK/K LEP Summer School Program:  Taylor Ray Elementary 
Monday, June 5-Friday, June 30, 2017 
Training/Set-up:  Saturday, June 3, 2017 
Workday:  7:15 a.m. – 2:45 p.m. /Student School Day:  7:45 a.m. – 2:30 p.m. 
Tuition:  No Cost 
 
Elementary 5th Grade SSI:  Travis Elementary 
Monday, June 5 – Wednesday, June 21, 2017 
Training/Set-up:  Saturday, June 3, 2017 
Workday:  7:15 a.m. – 2:45 p.m. / Student School Day:  7:30 a.m. – 2:30 p.m. 
Tuition:  No Cost 
 
Summer School Camp:  Long Elementary 
Thursday, July 6, 2017 – Friday, July 21, 2017 
Training/Set-up:  Wednesday, July 5, 2017 
Workday:  7:30 a.m.  – 3:00 p.m. ./Student School Day:  7:45 a.m. – 2:45 p.m. 
Tuition:  No Cost 
 

Secondary Summer School Schedule:   
Course Registration opens on Monday, May 1, 2017 

 
Session #1:  SSI/EOC Tutorials & Re-Test (Location:  LCHS) 

 Monday, June 5 – Friday, June 16, 2017:  SSI & EOC Tutorials  

 Monday, June 19-Friday, June 23, 2017:  SSI & EOC Re-Tests 

 Work Day:  8:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m./Student school day is 8:15 a.m. – 3:30 p.m. 

 Tuition:  No Cost 
 
Session #2:  Summer School Session (Location:  LCHS & LJH) 

 Monday, June 26-Thursday, July 13, 2017 

 Work Day:  Friday, July 14, 2017 

 Work Day:  8:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m./Student school day is 8:15 a.m. – 3:30 p.m. 

 Tuition: 
a. Original Credit:  $150.00 per session/Free & Reduced scholarships available 
b. Credit Restoration:  No Cost 

 
Session #3:  Summer School Session (Location:  LJH) 

 Monday, July 17-Tuesday, August 2, 2017 

 Work Day:  Thursday, August 3, 2017 

 Work Day:  8:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m./Student school day is 8:15 a.m. – 3:30 p.m. 

 Tuition:  Same as Session #2 

 

 

145



  
 
 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM: 2016-2017 SCHOOL HEALTH ADVISORY COUNCIL 
 
 
The School Health Advisory Council (SHAC) is a school board appointed advisory 
group of individuals who represent different segments of the community. The Lamar 
CISD SHAC is comprised of students, parents, community members and staff working 
together to improve the health of all students and families through a coordinated school 
health program.   
 
Past SHAC areas of focus: 
 

 K-12 Physical education 

 K-5 Physical activity and recess 

 7-12 Health education including sexuality instruction 

 K-12 Nutrition guidelines and education 

 LCISD Staff Wellness & Lifestyle Program  
 
 

Recommended 2017-2018 SHAC areas of focus include: 
 

 7-12 Health education including sexuality instruction 

 K-12 Nutrition guidelines, education and food fundraising policies 

 LCISD Staff Wellness & Lifestyle Program 

 Whole School, Whole Community, Whole Child Model 
 
Resource Persons:      Nikki Nelson, Director of Athletics  
      Marsha Beck, Lead Nurse     
        Leslie Haack, Executive Director of Secondary Education 
 

10.A.#2. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

146



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  TAX COLLECTION REPORT 
(AS OF MARCH 31, 2017) 

 
 
 
Exhibit "A" gives the LCISD collections made during the month of March 31, 2017. 
 
Exhibit "B" gives the total LCISD collections made this school year from September 1, 

2016 through August 31, 2017. 
 
Exhibit "C" shows the LCISD collections made month-by-month of the 2016-17 roll as 

compared to prior years.  Through March 31, 2017, LCISD had collected 
96.9 % of the 2016-17 roll. 

 
Exhibit "D" shows the total collections made as compared to the amount that was 

budgeted for 2016-2017. 
 
Exhibit "E" shows the LCISD tax collection analysis for the last six years. 
 
 
 

Resource Person:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 

 
 
 

10.B.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

147



Exhibit ALamar Consolidated ISD
Tax Collections

March 2017
 

General Fund Debt Service
Taxes Penalty & Collection Total General Fund P & I & Debt Service P & I &

Year Paid Interest Fees Payments Taxes Paid Collection Fees Taxes Paid Collection Fees
16 2,553,275.23$              186,572.37$                8,888.43$                2,748,736.03$                1,910,387.15$              148,483.78$             642,888.08$               46,977.02$                   
15 81,971.23$                   20,686.44$                  15,022.14$              117,679.81$                   61,331.71$                   30,499.97$               20,639.52$                 5,208.61$                     
14 22,003.24$                   5,806.24$                    4,051.88$                31,861.36$                     16,463.05$                   8,396.18$                 5,540.19$                   1,461.94$                     
13 17,987.47$                   3,081.18$                    1,634.14$                22,702.79$                     13,458.39$                   3,939.50$                 4,529.08$                   775.82$                        
12 13,038.01$                   1,617.85$                    687.57$                   15,343.43$                     9,755.16$                     1,898.04$                 3,282.85$                   407.38$                        
11 13,930.28$                   1,390.43$                    366.57$                   15,687.28$                     10,222.35$                   1,386.90$                 3,707.93$                   370.10$                        
10 9,619.11$                     1,867.90$                    403.83$                   11,890.84$                     7,190.62$                     1,800.15$                 2,428.49$                   471.58$                        
09 1,990.23$                     1,290.02$                    176.43$                   3,456.68$                       1,689.88$                     1,267.12$                 300.35$                      199.33$                        
08 2,720.42$                     2,356.83$                    735.01$                   5,812.26$                       2,267.83$                     2,684.96$                 452.59$                      406.88$                        
07 1,969.44$                     1,851.59$                    544.03$                   4,365.06$                       1,643.14$                     2,083.39$                 326.30$                      312.23$                        
06 3,326.89$                     3,036.52$                    442.40$                   6,805.81$                       2,862.66$                     3,055.61$                 464.23$                      423.31$                        
05 191.32$                        229.10$                       64.45$                     484.87$                          161.80$                        258.27$                    29.52$                        35.28$                          
04 274.95$                        434.42$                       127.36$                   836.73$                          241.80$                        509.40$                    33.15$                        52.38$                          
03 30.12$                          50.28$                         11.79$                     92.19$                            25.44$                          54.20$                      4.68$                          7.87$                            
02 202.05$                        284.10$                       47.83$                     533.98$                          184.59$                        308.41$                    17.46$                        23.52$                          
01 25.35$                          49.18$                         11.18$                     85.71$                            25.35$                          60.36$                      -$                           -$                             
00 25.35$                          52.22$                         11.64$                     89.21$                            25.35$                          63.86$                      -$                           -$                             
99 25.35$                          55.26$                         12.09$                     92.70$                            25.35$                          67.35$                      -$                           -$                             
98 25.35$                          58.31$                         12.55$                     96.21$                            25.35$                          70.86$                      -$                           -$                             
97 25.35$                          61.35$                         13.01$                     99.71$                            25.35$                          74.36$                      -$                           -$                             

96 & prior 83.64$                          225.78$                       31.79$                     341.21$                          82.48$                          254.49$                    1.16$                          3.08$                            
 

Totals 2,722,740.38$              231,057.37$                33,296.12$              2,987,093.87$                2,038,094.80$              207,217.16$             684,645.58$               57,136.33$                   
    

148



Exhibit BLamar Consolidated ISD
Tax Collections

September 1, 2016-August 31, 2017
(Year-To-Date)

Original Adjusted Taxes Penalty & Collection Total Total Taxes
Year Tax Adjustments Tax Paid Interest Fees Payments 3/31/2017

16 190,749,742.17$             7,222,105.75$        197,971,847.92$            191,780,058.11$              352,543.12$            15,219.20$             192,147,820.43$             6,191,789.81$              
15 1,461,782.15$                 (139,553.95)$          1,322,228.20$                 570,287.10$                      144,128.72$            156,501.60$           870,917.42$                    751,941.10$                 
14 542,294.32$                    59,690.60$             601,984.92$                    236,891.87$                      40,105.18$              30,193.87$             307,190.92$                    365,093.05$                 
13 376,208.38$                    64,765.67$             440,974.05$                    167,051.71$                      18,075.33$              10,536.62$             195,663.66$                    273,922.34$                 
12 351,985.57$                    88,765.76$             440,751.33$                    182,587.38$                      15,208.24$              8,233.91$               206,029.53$                    258,163.95$                 
11 306,018.43$                    76,605.73$             382,624.16$                    166,406.32$                      11,972.33$              5,187.73$               183,566.38$                    216,217.84$                 
10 239,335.19$                    16,600.83$             255,936.02$                    71,905.00$                        10,929.91$              3,636.69$               86,471.60$                      184,031.02$                 
09 180,590.36$                    (1,336.69)$              179,253.67$                    20,290.08$                        15,658.10$              4,891.27$               40,839.45$                      158,963.59$                 
08 166,608.20$                    (168.43)$                 166,439.77$                    9,064.23$                          7,758.95$                2,391.54$               19,214.72$                      157,375.54$                 
07 184,194.57$                    (211.77)$                 183,982.80$                    6,071.99$                          5,864.89$                1,895.48$               13,832.36$                      177,910.81$                 
06 100,034.63$                    (108.95)$                 99,925.68$                      10,266.53$                        10,848.99$              3,024.72$               24,140.24$                      89,659.15$                   
05 136,302.28$                    (104.07)$                 136,198.21$                    4,299.70$                          4,895.05$                1,488.61$               10,683.36$                      131,898.51$                 
04 59,637.69$                      (85.22)$                   59,552.47$                      5,826.68$                          8,112.60$                2,479.29$               16,418.57$                      53,725.79$                   
03 45,396.95$                      (83.05)$                   45,313.90$                      4,777.62$                          6,955.48$                1,509.80$               13,242.90$                      40,536.28$                   
02 30,765.07$                      (82.55)$                   30,682.52$                      3,693.15$                          5,536.69$                1,048.93$               10,278.77$                      26,989.37$                   
01 28,187.49$                      (81.90)$                   28,105.59$                      3,546.80$                          5,674.73$                1,094.89$               10,316.42$                      24,558.79$                   
00 24,848.63$                      (89.16)$                   24,759.47$                      3,548.94$                          6,090.36$                1,130.66$               10,769.96$                      21,210.53$                   
99 25,968.92$                      (39.44)$                   25,929.48$                      3,989.82$                          7,492.17$                1,416.66$               12,898.65$                      21,939.66$                   
98 17,522.54$                      (31.33)$                   17,491.21$                      3,750.00$                          7,401.26$                1,352.64$               12,503.90$                      13,741.21$                   
97 15,955.33$                      (26.56)$                   15,928.77$                      3,937.79$                          8,242.56$                1,491.13$               13,671.48$                      11,990.98$                   
96 8,752.54$                        (26.22)$                   8,726.32$                        3,269.78$                          6,856.25$                1,080.67$               11,206.70$                      5,456.54$                     
95 4,709.94$                        (37.62)$                   4,672.32$                        1,006.54$                          2,628.49$                545.26$                  4,180.29$                        3,665.78$                     

94 & prior 18,618.14$                      (18.00)$                   18,600.14$                      3,155.57$                          9,023.17$                1,812.20$               13,990.94$                      15,444.57$                   
 

Totals $195,075,459.49 $7,386,449.43 $202,461,908.92 $193,265,682.71 $712,002.57 $258,163.37 $194,235,848.65 $9,196,226.21

149



Exhibit C

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
TAX COLLECTION ANALYSIS
PERCENT Y-T-D BY MONTH
FOR CURRENT LEVY ONLY

MONTH 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06

SEPT 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

OCT 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

NOV 3.2% 3.2% 2.2% 7.4% 1.9% 2.6% 3.9% 1.9% 1.7% 2.8% 2.1% 1.0%

DEC 50.3% 49.0% 45.3% 45.3% 33.1% 30.2% 33.3% 25.9% 35.4% 31.9% 29.7% 32.7%

JAN 87.2% 83.9% 82.0% 86.2% 82.9% 82.3% 84.1% 80.7% 80.4% 59.6% 76.4% 73.6%

FEB 95.6% 95.4% 95.1% 95.5% 95.5% 94.8% 94.3% 93.3% 92.8% 93.5% 93.3% 92.5%

MAR 96.9% 96.9% 96.8% 97.0% 96.8% 96.4% 96.1% 95.0% 94.8% 95.1% 94.7% 94.3%

APR 97.6% 97.9% 97.8% 97.6% 97.1% 96.9% 96.0% 95.6% 95.9% 95.8% 95.2%

MAY 98.4% 98.2% 98.2% 98.1% 97.9% 97.6% 96.5% 96.4% 96.7% 96.5% 96.1%

JUNE 98.7% 98.6% 98.7% 98.6% 98.3% 98.2% 97.4% 97.2% 97.4% 97.3% 96.8%

JULY 99.0% 98.9% 99.0% 99.0% 98.7% 98.6% 98.0% 97.9% 98.0% 97.8% 97.4%

AUG 99.2% 99.0% 99.2% 99.1% 98.9% 98.8% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2% 97.8%
 

 
 

 

150



Exhibit D

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
2016-17 TAX COLLECTIONS

AS OF MARCH 31, 2017

TAX  YEAR BUDGET COLLECTIONS % OF BUDGET
LCISD TAXES SCHOOL YEAR AMOUNT 3/31/2017 COLLECTED

 
2016 2016-2017 $190,807,570 $191,780,058 100.51%

 
2015 &  Prior 2015-16 & Prior $2,150,000 $1,485,625 69.10%

TOTAL $192,957,570 $193,265,683 100.16%

151



Exhibit ELAMAR  CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
TAX COLLECTION REPORT

AS OF MARCH 31, 2017

SCHOOL YEAR 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
TAX YEAR 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

COLLECTION YEAR
1 Orig. Levy 132,226,943$        136,145,655$         142,546,726$         153,118,133$          173,016,530$                 190,749,742$                 

1 Collections 136,117,707$        140,561,034$         148,220,912$         160,220,428$          178,028,558$                 191,780,058$                 
Adj. To Roll     5,417,190$            5,652,043$             6,929,880$             8,680,375$              6,473,810$                     7,222,106$                     

2 Collections 915,762$               739,542$                739,176$                1,201,706$              570,287$                        
Adj. To Roll (64,337)$                65,612$                  242,601$                165,920$                (139,554)$                       

3 Collections 286,833$               315,459$                333,212$                236,892$                
Adj. To Roll 162,075$               445,748$                (49,699)$                 59,691$                  

4  Collections   308,264$               252,058$                167,052$                
Adj.  To Roll 518,252$               (88,980)$                 64,766$                  

5 Collections 232,737$               182,587$                
Adj. To Roll (92,801)$                88,766$                  

6 Collections 166,406$               
Adj. To Roll 76,606$                 

TOTAL:
COLLECTIONS 138,027,709$        142,050,681$         149,460,352$         161,659,025$          178,598,845$                 191,780,058$                 
ADJUSTED TAX ROLL 138,243,927$        142,308,844$         149,734,274$         162,024,118$          179,350,786$                 197,971,848$                 

BALANCE TO
BE COLLECTED 216,217$               258,164$                273,922$                365,093$                751,941$                        6,191,790$                     

ADJ. TAXABLE
VALUE 9,945,248,497$     10,237,678,083$    10,771,862,470$    11,655,992,110$     12,902,470,128$            14,242,066,682$            

TOTAL % COLLECTIONS 99.8% 99.8% 99.8% 99.8% 99.6% 96.9%
AS OF MARCH 31, 2017   

TAX RATE 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005

152



  
INFORMATION ITEM: PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

 
 

Below is a list of invoices that have been approved for payment. 
 
 
Bass Construction  
(Huggins ES Parent Drive)     Application # 4 $       40,172.16 
  
Drymalla Construction 
(Lindsey Elementary)     Application #10 $   1,608,403.20 
 
EAB 
(Bentley ES)       Application # 5 $         3,135.00 
 
Gamma Construction 
(Bentley ES)       Application #16 $      168,606.00 
 
Gilbane 
(2011 Bond Program)     Application #59 $        46,145.00 
 
KCI Technologies    
(Fulshear HS Water Well)       Application #1A $        12,427.33 
 
KCI Technologies    
(Fulshear HS Water Well - Reimbursables)    Application #1B $        10,930.33 
 
PBK Architects    
(Bentley ES)       Application #14 $          8,899.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Foster HS - Pool)      Application # 7 $        85,800.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Foster HS - Pool)      Application # 8 $        42,900.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Fulshear HS)      Application #25 $        24,126.76 
 
PBK Architects    
(Fulshear HS)      Application #26 $        30,158.43 
 
PBK Architects    
(Fulshear HS - Pool)       Application # 7 $        50,050.00 
 

10.B.#2. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

153



PBK Architects    
(Fulshear HS - Pool)       Application # 8 $        25,025.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(George Ranch HS - Pool)       Application # 7 $        50,050.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(George Ranch HS - Pool)       Application # 8 $        25,025.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Leaman JHS)        Application #23 $          6,549.10 
 
PBK Architects    
(Leaman JHS)        Application #24 $          8,186.38 
 
PBK Architects    
(Lindsey ES)         Application #16 $          2,911.68 
 
PBK Architects    
(Lindsey ES)         Application #17 $        22,911.67 
 
PBK Architects    
(Natatorium #2)        Application #27 $          2,809.08 
 
PBK Architects    
(Natatorium #2)        Application #29 $          1,560.60 
 
PBK Architects    
(Natatorium #2)        Application #30 $          2,496.96 
 
PBK Architects    
(Natatorium #2)        Application #31 $             936.36 
 
PBK Architects    
(Support Services)        Application # 5 $      171,072.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Support Services)        Application # 6 $        45,619.20 
 
PBK Architects    
(Terry HS Baseball - Reimbursables)     Application # 3 $             980.72 
 
PBK Architects    
(Transportation Satellite)       Application #15 $          5,586.92 
 
 

154



Roadrunner    
(Bentley ES)         Application # 1 $          1,683.00 
 
Roadrunner    
(Bentley ES)         Application # 1 $          1,690.00 
 
Terracon   
(Ag Barn #2)           Application # 5 $          1,361.00 
 
Terracon   
(Ag Barn #2)           Application # 6 $          3,090.50 
 
VLK Architects 
(Carter ES)           Application # 4 $      210,276.00 
 
VLK Architects 
(Carter ES - Reimbursables)      Application # 2 $             409.54 
 
VLK Architects 
(Lamar CHS Band Hall)        Application # 4 $             750.00 
 
VLK Architects 
(Lamar CHS Band Hall - Reimbursables)   Application # 3 $          1,847.23 
 
VLK Architects 
(Terry HS Band Hall)        Application # 4 $             750.00 
 
VLK Architects 
(Terry HS Band Hall - Reimbursables)    Application # 4 $          1,847.21 
 
Vanir, Rice & Gardner  
(2014 Bond Program)     Application #21 $      198,418.00 
 
 
Resource person: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 

155



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE              April 2017 

  

 Page 1 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 
Ag Barn #2 is a new 15,600 sf facility 

located on FM 359. 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

. 

                
                 Monthly Report 
                  2011 Bond Program 

 

 

Current 2011 Bond Program Projects: 
 

 Proposals from five contractors were received on July 26, 2016.  BLS 

Construction was approved by the Board at the regular August 

meeting. Notice to proceed was issued October 5, 2016 

(approximately one month later than anticipated). 

 

 The project is on schedule and is approximately 60% complete. 

 

 Site utilities have been and final connection have been made. 

 

 Erection of metal building is complete. 

 

 Masonry is ongoing and is approximately 95% complete. 

 

 Plumbing rough-in is in progress and is 95% complete. 

 

 Electrical rough-in is in progress and is approximately 85% complete. 

 

 Site paving work is ongoing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10.B.#3a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

156



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE              April 2017 

  

 Page 2 

  

 
 

 

Adolphus Elementary 

 

 
Ag Barn renovations 

 

 
George Ranch HS Shell Build-Out 

 

 
Polly Ryon Middle School 

 

 
Traylor Stadium Track & Turf 

 

2011 Bond Closed Projects: 

 
Adolphus Elementary   
New 90,700 sf elementary school located in Longmeadow Farms Subdivision 

in Richmond, TX.  The campus includes 42 classrooms with Promethean 

boards, gymnasium with stage, music room, library, play areas, teacher and 

visitor parking, and separate bus drop off areas.   
  

 

Agricultural Barn Renovations  
The renovation included adding a new 10’ canopy around ¾ of the building, 

added ventilation fans, new men and women restroom facilities, an interior 

storage room, grading and drainage work around the building perimeter, new 

electronic gate software, additional security cameras, and new tarps for all of 

the animal pens. 
  

 

 

George Ranch High School Build-Out  
The project included the build-out of 14 standard classrooms and 4 science 

labs inside the existing high school building.   

 
  

 

Polly Ryon Middle School  
The project included a new 80,000 sf middle school campus located on the 

existing George Ranch HS complex in Richmond, TX.  The facility includes 

22 classrooms with SMART board technology, a cafeteria with performance 

stage, library, 5 science labs, dedicated fine arts rooms, visitor and staff 

parking, and separate bus drop off areas.   
  

Traylor Stadium Track & Turf  

The project included the replacement of the turf and subgrade for the 

competition football field, as well as installation of a new track surface. 

 

District Competition Natatorium 
 

The District Natatorium is a new 36,000 sf competition swimming facility 

with an eight lane heated pool, diving well, weight room, classrooms, offices, 

spectator seating, and judges stands. The complex is located adjacent to 

Traylor Stadium in Rosenberg, TX. 

 

157



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE              April 2017 

  

 Page 3 

  

 
BF Terry High School 

 
 

 
Lamar High School 

 

 
Bowie Elementary School 

 

 
Jackson Elementary School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Miscellaneous Renovations (2013) to Terry HS, Lamar HS,  

George JHS, Jackson ES & Bowie ES 
 

Terry High School (Rosenberg, TX): Renovations included a 6,200 sf addition 

for 2 art rooms and 1 standard classroom; remodel of the CTE areas to include 

to new PLTW classrooms and shop area; remodel of the existing wood shop to 

include new storage, exterior doors and an added classroom; remodel of the 

existing Ag shop and classroom to include new welding stations and 

integrated oxygen/acetylene manifold system, and a new canopy and graphics 

at the campus main entry.  All classrooms received new marker boards and 

homeland security locksets.   Additional project upgrades included resurfacing 

the existing tennis courts. 

  

George Junior High School (Rosenberg, TX): Renovations included new paint 

and graphics in both gyms and floor resurfacing in the competition gym; 

chilled water piping was replaced throughout the school; remodel of the 

existing Ag shop, storage and office areas; additional security cameras were 

added and homeland security locksets were added to all classrooms. 

Additional project upgrades included floor resurfacing and repair in the 

competition gymnasium. 

 

Lamar High School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations to the CTE areas of the 

school included relocation of exhaust systems in the existing auto-tech shop; 

outfitting of lifts and exhaust for a future auto-tech shop expansion; repair and 

painting of the exterior yard vehicle canopy and fenced enclosure; new 

electronic gate for vehicle storage area; new exhaust hood system in the Ag 

shop and installation of an integrated oxygen/acetylene manifold system. 
  

 

Bowie Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations included 

replacement or modification of existing classroom casework; new classroom 

doors; a new sidewalk from the school to Ruby Street; ceiling tile 

replacement; grading and drainage work, and all classrooms received 

homeland security locksets. 

 
  

Jackson Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations included a 470 sf 

kitchen addition with an office, laundry and restrooms; all flooring was 

replaced in the hallways with ceramic or vinyl tile; an additional canopy was 

installed outside the gymnasium; restrooms were renovated to remove trough 

urinals; various HVAC equipment was replaced; library doors were replaced 

and all classrooms received homeland security locksets. Additional project 

upgrades included new HVAC controls for the entire school. 
 

158



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE              April 2017 

  

 Page 4 

  

 

 
Alternative Learning Center 

 

 
Austin Elementary School 

 

 
Foster High School 

 

 
Lamar High School 

 

 
Travis Elementary School 

 

 

Miscellaneous Renovations (2014) to Alternative Learning Center, 

Austin ES, Beasley ES, Foster HS, Lamar JHS, Lamar HS, Taylor Ray 

ES & Travis ES, --Closeout of the project is expected in January, 2015.  

 
Alternative Learning Center(Rosenberg, TX): The project included a 2,770 sf 

addition for administrative offices, inspection, security and a clinic, as well as 

renovations to existing student restrooms, conversion of old offices to 

computer lab and conference areas, and ventilation, exhaust and new wood 

storage for the Ag shop.   

  

Austin Elementary School (Richmond, TX): The project included replacement 

of all air handlers; remodel of life skills storage area into a restroom; enclosure 

of existing mop sinks in mechanical rooms and removal/replacement of 

sidewalks around the perimeter of the building to address drainage issues.  

  

Foster High School (Richmond, TX):  Renovations to the Ag shop included 

additional welding stations with exhaust hoods, a new exterior canopy, 

covered material storage areas and installation of an integrated oxygen/ 

acetylene manifold system. 

  

Lamar High School (Rosenberg, TX):  This project included replacement of 

two existing cooling towers at the Central plant serving the high school and 

junior high, as well as replacement of the boiler in the Lamar HS Fieldhouse.   

  

Travis Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  The project included a new 

parent drop-off drive and canopy along Avenue K; a new staff parking lot at 

the rear of the school; boiler replacement and tie in of a chilled water loop for 

the HVAC system.   

  
Beasley Elementary School (Beasley, TX):  The project included the 

replacement of all air handlers in the building that had reached the end of their 

life cycle.  (no photo) 

  
Lamar Junior High School (Rosenberg, TX):  The project included 

replacement of two boilers that had reached the end of their life cycle.  (no 

photo) 

  

 

 

Taylor Ray Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations consisted of the 

replacement of student restroom exhaust fans that had reached the end of their 

life cycle.  (no photo)  

 

 

159



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE              April 2017 

  

 Page 5 

  

 
Arredondo Elementary School 

 

 
Traylor Stadium 

 

 
Meyer Elementary 

 

 
 

Navarro MS 

 
Dickinson Elementary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Arredondo Elementary School (Richmond TX): 

 

A new 12 acre campus consisting of an 90,700 sf building, parking and play 

areas located in Summer Park subdivision in Richmond, TX. 

 

The Traylor Stadium: 
 

This project included demolition of existing concession and restroom 

facilities, as well as the construction of a new long jump area and 3 new 

restroom/concession and ticket booth buildings to serve the stadium.  New 

fencing was installed and parking was reconfigured and striped.    

 
Miscellaneous Renovations (2015) to Campbell ES, Frost ES, Pink ES, 

Meyer ES, Dickinson ES, Williams ES, Smith ES, Navarro MS, 

Wessendorff MS & Seguin Early Childhood Center:  

 

Campbell Elementary School (Sugar Land, TX) – Provided web-based HVAC 

Controls. 

 

Frost Elementary School (Richmond, TX) – Provided web-based HVAC 

Controls.  

 

Pink Elementary School (Richmond, TX) – Provided web-based HVAC 

Controls.  

 

Meyer Elementary School (Richmond, TX) – Replaced existing electric 

drinking fountain with manual drinking fountain. Replaced existing boiler. 

Renovated an existing set of restrooms to meet ADA standards. Installed new 

canopy adjacent to existing canopy.   

 

Dickinson Elementary School (Sugar Land, TX) – Installed new handicap 

accessible sink and free standing utility sink in art room. Replaced existing 

electric drinking fountain with manual drinking fountain. Replaced and 

relocated electric water heaters. Replaced existing boiler.  

 

Williams Elementary School (Richmond, TX) – Upgraded exterior lighting.  

 

Smith Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX) – Replaced existing boiler.  

 

Navarro Middle School (Rosenberg, TX) – Replaced existing drainage area to 

resolve parking lot flooding. Installed new drive. Installed new wall pack 

lighting.   

 

Wessendorff Middle School (Rosenberg, TX) – Replaced existing boiler.  

 

 

 

 

 

160



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE              April 2017 

  

 Page 6 

  

 
Seguin Early Childhood Center 

 

 
Fulshear HS 

 
Dean Leaman JHS 

 
Field House 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Seguin Early Childhood Center (Richmond, TX) – Installed new parking lot 

and canopy to provide safe drop-off area. Replaced existing electric drinking 

fountain with manual drinking fountain. Replaced windows in office and 

classroom areas.  

 

Churchill Fulshear (Jr.) HS, Dean Leaman JHS, - is part of a new 101 acre 

campus in Fulshear, TX.  It includes a 350,000 sf main building, 32,400 sf 

field house, teacher and student parking, separate bus drop-off, dual 

gymnasiums, dedicated CTE spaces, competition and practice ball fields, 

tennis courts, and band practice areas.  
 

 

161



N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A

New Elementary Schools

Adolphus Elementary 15,710,070$     

Arredondo Elementary 18,738,620$     

New Middle/ Jr High Schools

Polly Ryon Middle School 15,455,109$     

Leaman Junior High 41,386,418$     

New High School

Fulshear High School 82,201,089$     

New Support Facilities

Natatorium 13,014,256$     

Satellite Transportation Phase 2 3,599,370$     

CTE - New Ag Barn 3,316,295$     

Lamar HS Baseball/Softball (Funded from 06)

2,509,191$     

3,033,608$     

980,560$     

816,000$     

108,000$     

480,000$     

48,000$     

940,800$     

312,900$     

366,000$     

42,000$     

66,000$     
1,440,000$     

540,000$     

1,237,200$     

150,000$     Funding

402,000$     

18,000$     

247,200$     Land Purch.

64,800$     

2,671,800$     

95,000$     Design

192,000$     

255,000$     

576,000$     Bid & Award

225,000$     

2,117,040$     

1,900,000$     Construction

1,124,400$     

275,000$     

Existing Facilities 
GRHS Shell Build-Out

Traylor Stadium Improvements 
Traylor Stadium - Track & Turf 
Austin Elementary

Dickinson Elementary

Huggins Elementary

Pink Elementary

Seguin ECC
Williams Elementary

Bowie Elementary

Campbell Elementary

Frost Elementary

Jackson Elementary

Meyer Elementary

Travis Elementary

Beasley Elementary

Taylor Ray Elementary

Smith Elementary

Navarro Middle School 
Wessendorff Middle School 
George Junior High School 
George Junior High School - CTE 
Lamar Junior High School 
Foster High School - CTE

Lamar Consolidated High School 
Lamar Consolidated - CTE

Terry High School

Terry High School - CTE 
Alternative Learning Center 
ALC - CTE

Agriculture Barn 558,256$     Close-Out

Total Construction 217,212,982$     

Other Programs

Land Purchase 2,700,000$     

Technology 21,168,000$     

Transportation 6,100,779$     

Miscellaneous 1,977,454$     

Total Bond Program 249,159,215$     

LEGEND

2011 Bond Program Master Schedule 

20132011
Project BudgetBond Projects

2017

Phase 1 Funding Phase 2 Funding

2016201520142012

5/11/2016

162



To Houston (Westheimer Road) / Westpark Toll Road

J. Meyer Rd.

FM
 762

FM 762

FM
 7

23

FM 1093

FM 359

FM
 359

FM
 3

59

FM 2759

99

59

59

36

90A
90A

90A

90A

36

Bra
zos River

36

Spur 529 to HWY 59

Ave. J

Ave. M

FM 1640
Ave. K

Ave. F

W
ar

d

FM
 2

21
8

FM
 22

18

DYer

Brooks

Mons Ave.
Airport Ave. Gr

ae
be

r R
d.Reinhard St.

Wilburn St.

Islieb Rd.

Ba
m

or
e 

Rd
.

10 mi.
59 FrontaGe Road

Southwest Freeway

To Houston

FM
 2

97
7 

/ M
in

on
ite

 R
d.

Be
rd

et
t R

d.
 

Crabb River Rd. 

SansburY
Riverbrook 

G
reatw

ood   Pkwy.

M
ac

ek
 R

d. M
ac

ek
 R

d.

Ra
bb

s C
ro

ss
. R

d.

Shadow Bend Dr.

W
 W

in
di

ng
 B

ro
ok Dr.                 E W

inding Brook Dr.

W
ill

ia
m

s W
ay

 B
lv

d. 

Ransom
 Rd.

Ransom
 Rd.

FM
 762

Ave. I

Ave. H

Je
an

et
ta

Co
le

 A
ve

.

La
ne

 D
riv

e

Lam
ar D

rive

Herndon

D
am

on
 S

t.
Ave. N

Ave. N
Lo

ui
se ReadinG Rd. 

Ricefield Rd.

Maiden Lane

Co
lli

ns
 R

d.
 

M
ab

el
 S

t. 

Jackson St. / Ave. H
Underpass

Jackson Street

Liberty Street

Houston Street

Main Street

9t
h 

St
.

9t
h 

St
.

Brazos River

B
ra

z
o

s 
R

iv
e

r

Gr
an

d 
Pa

rk
w

ay

Ave. D

Ave. A

3r
d 

St
re

et

H
ou

st
on

 S
tre

et

Thom
pson Rd.

16 mi 
@Fulshear

Katy - Fulshear Rd.

Pi
tt

s R
d.

Radio Lane

H
or

ac
e 

M
an

n

8th St.

Fort Street

Austin Street

Mustang Ave.

Bellaire Blvd. 99

A

D

B

C

M
ason Rd.

Rancho  Bella Pkwy 

Rancho  Bella Blvd. 

Lakemont Bend LN.

Farm
er Rd.

  Skinner Lane
Plantation Drive

Juvenile 
Detention 

Center

Maintenance
Central Warehouse

Transportation

To
 Kendleton

Golfview Dr.

W
es

t  
Be

llf
or

t

H1

H3

H4

H5

J1

J2

J3

J5

J4

M1

M2

M3

M4

E1

E2

E3

E4

E6

E7

E8

E9

E10

E11

E12

E13

E14

E15

E16

E17

E18

E19

E20

E21

E22

E23

EC1

E5

S3

S9

S1

S6

S5

S7

S2

H2

S4

Transportation Annex

S8

Natatorium

Traylor Stadium

DISTRICT MAP
Elementary, Middle, Junior High, High School and Special Sites

3911 Avenue I  Rosenberg, Texas 77471  832-223-0000 (main)  www.lcisd.org

COMMUNITY SITES
A  Fort Bend County Fairgrounds
B  George Memorial Public Library
C  Oak Bend Medical Center
D    Rosenberg Civic Center

SECONDARY CAMPUSES
H1  Foster HS
H2  Fulshear HS
H3  George Ranch HS 
H4  Lamar Consolidated HS
H5  Terry HS
J1 Briscoe JH
J2    George JH
J3    Lamar JH
J4    Leaman JH
J5    Reading JH
M1  Navarro MS
M2  Ryon MS
M3  Wertheimer MS
M4  Wessendorff MS

ELEMENTARY CAMPUSES
E1   Adolphus ES
E2   Arredondo ES
E3   Austin ES
E4   Beasley ES
E5   Bentley ES
E6   Bowie ES
E7   Campbell ES
E8   Dickinson ES
E9   Frost ES
E10 Hubenak ES
E11 Huggins ES
E12 Hutchison ES
E13 Jackson ES
E14 Long ES
E15 McNeill ES
E16 Meyer ES
E17 Pink ES
E18 Ray ES
E19 Smith ES
E20 Thomas ES
E21 Travis ES
E22 Velasquez ES
E23 Williams ES
EC1 Seguin Early Childhood Center

SPECIAL SITES
S1   1621 Place
S2   Administrative Annex
S3   Alternative Learning Center
S4   Brazos Crossing Administration   
       Building
S5   Development Center
S6   Fort Bend Alternative School
S7   Powell Point
S8   Athletics/Traylor Stadium
S9   Special Needs Center

163



   

 

Monthly Report 
March 2017 

 

 

 

 

Monthly Report VRGJV SH.docx Page 1 
 
   

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY         
 

Bond Sale 1 Current Budget Committed  
Projected 

Commitments 
Actuals Paid 

Estimated Cost 
at Completion 

Carl Briscoe Bentley Elementary (#24) 22,010,055.00 21,124,687.72 885,367.28 20,282,961.03 22,010,055.00 
Kathleen Joerger Lindsey Elementary (#25) 23,770,861.00 20,176,651.65 3,594,209.35 16,059,823.81 23,770,861.00 
Don Carter Elementary School (#26) 24,959,404.00 2,287,634.00 22,671,770.00 1,573,033.19 24,959,404.00 
FHS Baseball 40,000.00 29,250.00 10,750.00 29,250.00 40,000.00 
FHS Water Plant 990,000.00 141,330.00 848,670.00 74,957.66 990,000.00 
HVAC Web Controls 1,056,000.00 108,000.00 948,000.00 94,500.00 1,056,000.00 
LCHS Band Hall 700,000.00 81,475.00 618,525.00 58,086.09 700,000.00 
Pink Elementary- Foundation 1,056,000.00 527,728.00 528,272.00 462,893.00 1,056,000.00 
Natatorium - Foster High School 8,855,872.00 952,323.00 7,903,549.00 440,629.00 8,855,872.00 
Natatorium - Fulshear High School 8,855,872.00 766,898.00 8,088,974.00 369,600.00 8,855,872.00 
Natatorium - George Ranch High School 8,855,872.00 773,473.00 8,082,399.00 365,525.00 8,855,872.00 
Support Services Center 12,146,000.00 1,229,478.00 10,916,522.00 855,886.00 12,146,000.00 
THS Band Hall 700,000.00 102,540.00 597,460.00 57,946.07 700,000.00 
*THS Baseball 2,400,000.00 116,400.00 2,283,600.00 80,266.01 2,400,000.00 

Sub Total - Bond Sale 1 116,395,936.00 48,417,868.37 67,978,067.63 40,805,356.86 116,395,936.00 

Bond Sale 2           

Elementary 27 24,959,404.00 1,002,385.00 23,957,019.00 0.00 24,959,404.00 
Elementary 28 26,207,374.00 1,002,385.00 25,204,989.00 0.00 26,207,374.00 
James W. Roberts Middle School 22,342,493.00 893,700.00 21,448,793.00 0.00 22,342,493.00 
Fulshear HS Shell 3,849,077.00 179,026.00 3,670,051.00 0.00 3,849,077.00 
Satellite Ag Barn 3,786,750.00 189,000.00 3,597,750.00 0.00 3,786,750.00 

Sub Total - Bond Sale 2 81,145,098.00 3,266,496.00 77,878,602.00 0.00 81,145,098.00 

Grand Total 197,541,034.00 51,684,364.37 145,856,669.63 40,805,356.86 197,541,034.00 

* Budget increased at August 18, 2016 Board Meeting     
      
Additional Projects Current Budget Committed  

Projected 
Commitments 

Actuals Paid 
Estimated Cost 
at Completion 

Access Controls 800,000.00 0.00 800,000.00 0.00 800,000.00 
Huggins Elementary School 700,000.00 672,447.00 27,553.00 645,057.31 700,000.00 
Chiller Replacement 1,200,000.00 1,034,080.00 165,920.00 48,000.00 1,200,000.00 
Site Lighting 1,600,000.00 0.00 1,600,000.00 0.00 1,600,000.00 

Grand Total 4,300,000.00 1,706,527.00 2,593,473.00 693,057.31 4,300,000.00 

 

PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
Vanir | Rice & Gardner, A Joint Venture, is serving as the Program Managers for the 2014 Bond 
Program for Lamar CISD. In this role, we provide leadership for managing individual projects, and 
interface with architects and contractors. We are the liaison between LCISD Administration, 
Departments and Schools to coordinate all activities necessary to successfully complete each project. 

We also provide program wide oversight and look for efficiencies, cost reduction and quality 
assurance opportunities.  

Accomplishments This Month: 

 Opened bids within budget for Pink Elementary School repairs. 
 Advertised Competitive Sealed Proposals for the natatoriums, Carter Elementary 

School, HVAC controls and the Terry High School baseball complex renovations. 
 Continued marketing contractors to bid Lamar CISD projects. 
 

10.B.#3b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 
APRIL 20, 2017 

164



   

 

 

 

 

 

  Page 2 

 
 

CARL BRISCOE BENTLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Close Out 

 Construction Start: October 16, 2015 

 Moved In: December 30, 2016 

 First Day of School: January 3, 2017 

 
 

OVERVIEW 

 Opened new Bentley Elementary on January 
3, 2017. 

 Traffic signal equipment is being installed – 
completion planned in May 2017. 

 The punch list is approximately 99% 
complete. 

165



   

 

 

 

 

 

  Page 3 

 
 

KATHLEEN JOERGER LINDSEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 
 
 
 
SCHEDULE MILESTONES 
 
 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: April 22, 2016 

 Substantial Completion: June 23, 2017 

 

OVERVIEW 

 Exterior brick is complete. 

 Exterior windows are complete. 

 Ceiling grid and lighting is installed in 
many areas. 

 Ceramic tile in restrooms is 75% 
complete. 

 Final site grading is underway and 
trees to be planted. 

 Above ceiling inspection underway. 

 Casework is installed. 

 Interior doors being installed. 

 Construction is on-schedule. 

 As of 3/31/17, the construction 
contract is 75% complete. 

 

 

  

166



   

 

 

 

 

 

  Page 4 

 
 

DON CARTER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL    

 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Bidding 

 Project will bid April 27, 2017 

 Construction Start: 2nd Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 3rd Quarter 2018 

 
 
 

 

OVERVIEW 

 Construction documents are complete. 
 
 LCISD departmental reviews are complete. 

 
 Competitive Sealed Proposals are due the 

end of April 2017. 
 
 Color selections for the building have been 

presented and reviewed by District staff.  
 

 The site design has been completed following 
the preliminary design of the new road to be 
constructed on the east boundary of the 
school. 

   

167



   

 

 

 

 

 

  Page 5 

 
 

SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

 

Support Services 
 

The Support Services facility project will provide space to 
expand Purchasing & Materials Management, Food 
Service Support, Maintenance & Operations and 
Graphic Arts 
 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Bidding 

 Project will bid May 2, 2017 

 Construction Start:  

Phase 1: 2nd Quarter 2017 

Phase 2: 1st Quarter 2018 

 

 

 Maintenance and Operations 
 

OVERVIEW 

 Construction documents are complete. 
 
 LCISD departmental reviews are 

complete. 
 
 Competitive Sealed Proposals are due the 

beginning of May 2017. 
 
 Construction phasing plan has been 

developed to move Maintenance and 
Operations to the new facility and then 
renovate the existing buildings while 
keeping Purchasing and Food Service 
operational. 

Phase 1 

 Maintenance and Operations will be 
constructed on the new site. 

Phase 2 

 Existing structures currently housing 
M&O, Purchasing and Food Service will 
be renovated. A new dock area and 
enclosed link will be constructed between 
the two existing buildings.  

 
 

168



   

 

 

 

 

 

  Page 6 

 
 

NATATORIUMS 
Foster High School 

Fulshear High School 

George Ranch High School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                
George Ranch Site 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Bidding 

 Construction Start: 2nd Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 3rd Quarter 2018 

  OVERVIEW 

 Construction documents are complete. 
 
 LCISD departmental reviews are complete. 

 
 Competitive Sealed Proposals are due the 

end of April 2017. 
 

 
 

 

169



   

 

 

 

 

 

  Page 7 

 
 

BASEBALL COMPLEX RENOVATIONS 
Terry High School 

 
PROJECT SCOPE 

Major elements include:  
 
New bleachers, new dugouts, new ticket 
/ restroom / concessions building, new 
press boxes, new softball field lighting, 
new parking and paving. 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Bidding 

 Construction Start: 2nd Quarter 2017 

 Substantial Completion: 4th Quarter 2017 

 

 

OVERVIEW 

 Construction documents are complete. 
 
 LCISD departmental reviews are complete. 
 
 Competitive Sealed Proposals are due April 

11, 2017. 
 
 Anticipated contract award scheduled for 

May 2017. 
 
 Construction is planned to be phased to 

work around the baseball and softball 
seasons. 

 

 

 

  

170



   

 

 

 

 

 

  Page 8 

 
 

BAND HALL ADDITION 
Lamar Consolidated High School         Terry High School 

Lamar CHS New Rehearsal Hall 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Award 

 Construction Start: 2nd Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 4th Quarter 2017 

   

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

Terry HS New Rehearsal Hall 

  OVERVIEW 

 IKLO Construction was awarded the 
construction contract at the March Board 
meeting. 

 Notice of Award and Notice to Proceed to 
be issued in April 2017. 

 
HUGGINS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NEW PARENT DRIVE 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Close Out 

 Construction Completion: January 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OVERVIEW 

 Close-out documents are being finalized in 
preparation for recommending acceptance 
and final payment to the contractor.   

171



   

 

 

 

 

 

  Page 9 

 
 

PINK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL REPAIRS 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 
 Current Phase: Bidding 

 Construction Start: June 2017 

 Construction Completion: August 2017 

 
 

OVERVIEW 

 Construction documents are 100% 
complete. 

 
 Competitive job order contracting (JOC) 

proposals were received March 20, 2017 
and are being evaluated to recommend 
award at the April Board meeting.  

 
 Construction is planned to begin when 

school is out for the summer. 

 

FOSTER HIGH SCHOOL WATER PLANT UPGRADES 
 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Construction Documents 

 Construction Start: 3rd  Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 1st Quarter 2018 

  OVERVIEW 

 A new water well, new water storage 
tank, and interconnecting piping and 
pumps are planned to provide 
additional water capacity on the 3-
school site. 

 
 The Pollution Hazard Survey is 

continuing as part of the permitting 
requirements for water wells for 
drinking water. 

 
 The permitting process for water wells 

for drinking water is underway. The 
process is expected to take 2 to 4 
months before the procurement phase 
will begin. 

 
 

 

 

  

172



   

 

 

 

 

 

  Page 10 

 
 

SATELLITE AG BARN #3 
SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Program Development 

 Construction Start: Pending Site Selection 

 

 

  OVERVIEW 

 A detailed program of requirements and 
building area requirements have been 
developed by the Architects following 
multiple meetings with the Building 
Committee.  

 
 Satellite Ag Barn #2 and #3 have been 

programmed together. 
  
 A site for the Satellite Ag Barn #3 has not 

been selected. 
 

 Project is on hold until a site has been 
identified. 

 

 

HVAC WEB-BASED CONTROLS 

 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Bidding 

 Construction Start: 2nd Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 3rd Quarter 2017 

  OVERVIEW 

 Construction documents are complete. 
 
 LCISD departmental reviews are complete. 
 
 Competitive Sealed Proposals are due in 

April 2017. 
 
 Anticipated contract award scheduled for 

May 2017. 
 

 The work will include replacing control 
systems to communicate to the District 
Maintenance staff over the internet, 
replacing the dial-up modems currently in 
use at 8 sites. 

 

173



   

 

 

 

 

 

  Page 11 

 
 

CHILLER REPLACEMENT 

 
SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Construction 

 Construction Start: 1st Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 3rd Quarter 2017 

  OVERVIEW 

 Seguin, Travis, and Alternative Learning 
Center chiller replacements are scheduled 
for April 2017. 

 
 The remaining larger chillers are scheduled 

for replacement in June 2017. 
 
 Six schools: 

o Alternative Learning Center 
o Frost Elementary School 
o Huggins Elementary School 
o Seguin Early Childhood Center 
o Travis Elementary School 
o Wessendorff Middle School 

 

 

ACCESS CONTROLS 

 
SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Design Development 

 Construction Start: 3rd Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 4th Quarter 2017 

  OVERVIEW 

 Project is planned to provide a system to 
allow card access to all schools in the 
District. 

 
 The type of access door hardware has been 

selected for the card access system. 
 

 The possible access control software 
systems are being reviewed and evaluated 
to determine the best system that will meet 
the needs of the District.  

 
 Budget is planned for certain doors to be 

accessible at existing schools: 
 
 High Schools – 5 Doors 
 Junior High Schools – 5 Doors 
 Middle Schools – 3 Doors 
 Elementary Schools – 3 Doors 

 

174



   

 

 

 

 

 

  Page 12 

 
 

SITE LIGHTING 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Current Phase: Design Development 

 Construction Start: 3rd Quarter 2017 

 Construction Completion: 4th Quarter 2017 

  OVERVIEW 

 Project is planned to replace all exterior pole 
lights and building wall pack lights on 
schools and support facilities in the District 
with new LED fixtures. 

 
 46 sites are included in this project. 
 
 Engineers are performing site inspections to 

document the conditions at each location in 
preparation of bid documents. 

 

 
FUTURE PROJECTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  OVERVIEW 

 The future projects in the 2014 Bond 
Program will be reported on as they begin: 

 
 Bond Sale 2 

 
 Elementary #27 
 Elementary #28 
 Roberts Middle School 
 Fulshear HS Shell Space Build-Out 

 

COMPLETED PROJECTS 
Foster High School Baseball Scoreboard Completed March 2016   

175



INFORMATION ITEM: PROJECTS FUNDED BY 2011 AVAILABLE BOND FUNDS 

The list below are projects that the Board has approved to move forward with 2011 available 
funds: 
 
DISTRICT FENCE PROJECT: 
CSP #37-2016ML was approved at the September 2016 Regular Board Meeting. The 
Anchor Group has submitted materials specifications which have been approved.  Campbell 
and Hubenak have been delayed due to portable building moves. All gates with panic 
hardware are now starting to arrive.  This was a long lead item.  There are a few 
adjustments that will need to be made as this project come to a close. 

Project Budget $450,000 
 

CHILLER REPLACEMENT PROJECT: 
VANIR Rice & Gardner are managing this project.  Estes, McClure and Associates were 
approved at the September 2016 Regular Board Meeting.  CSP 03-2017VRG was Board 
approved in November 2016 to American Mechanical Services.  Travis Elementary and 
Seguin Early Childhood Center chillers were replace during the weekend of April 7-9th.  The 
large chillers are now scheduled for this summer. 
 Project budget $1,200,000 
 
PARKING LOT LIGHTING RETROFIT: 
VANIR Rice & Gardner are managing this project.  KCI is currently preparing a set of 
specifications for the procurement process. They have been visiting every site in the district. 

Project Budget $1,600,000 
 

HUGGINS PARKING AND PARENT DROPOFF: 
VANIR Rice & Gardner are managing this project. Substantial Completion was January 17th. 
Currently waiting for the Texas Department of License and Regulations Report to close this 
project out.  

Project Budget $700,000 
 

ACCESS CONTROL PROJECT: 
VANIR Rice & Gardner are managing this project. KCI Technology has started the design 
process for the access control project. They have started visiting every school to create a 
set of specifications.  

Access Control Budget $800,000 
 

TERRY HIGH BASEBALL PROJECT: 
This project is a 2014 Bond project managed by VANIR Rice & Gardner. At the August 
Board Meeting the Board of Trustees approved additional scope for this project and 
approved the additional funds to cover the project from the 2011 available funds. Bids will 
be received and open on April 11, 2017. 

Additional Budget of $1,425,000 
 

TOTAL BUDGET FOR AVAILABLE FUND PROJECTS = $6,175,000 
 
Resource Person:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 

 10.B.#4. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

176



INFORMATION ITEM: TRANSPORTATION UPDATE 

  
PERSONNEL CHANGES: 
 
During the month of March, the following changes were made: 
 

Trainees hired:    8 
 Drivers leaving the Dept.   2 
 Full time drivers hired:   5 
 Drivers waiting driving test   2 
 Bus aides hired:    1 
 

Hiring Incentive Paid: Employee  Referrer 
  
 Initial           0            0 
 Six months         2         0              
 
 

ACCIDENTS: 
 
The department had 3 on the road accidents in March.  
 
Date               Bus #         Location           Act             Preventable  Experience            

      

      

03/06/2017 413 Hit a portable 
basketball goal 

Harpers Dr. Preventable 4 years 
 

03/08/2017 417431 Bus and car 
sideswiped in a 
curve on a narrow 
road 

Muegge Rd. Preventable 2 years 

03/27/2017 119 Hit a side mirror Ave H & Jackson Preventable 1 year 

      
      

 

 
FIELD TRIPS: 
   

Site Number of 
Trips 

Bus Miles Sped Bus 
Miles 

Truck 
Miles 

White 
Fleet 
Miles 

Rosenberg 348 22,322 389 3,111 1,474 

Fulshear 193 13,191 135 881 1,057 
 

 

10.B.#5. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT     

APRIL 20, 2017 

177



VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: 
 
The Maintenance Department responded to a total of eight (8) breakdowns where the 
bus needed attention or replacement on the road.  
 

Fuel Usage   Rosenberg  Fulshear 
Diesel       28,631     10,318 
Unleaded        5,497          308 
 
 
ROUTING AND SCHEDULING: 
 
We have the following routes in operation 
 

Track AM / PM Routes Mid-day Routes 

Blue 29   4 

Red 45   9 

Gold 37   6 

Maroon 45   8 

Purple 15   4 

Special Needs 38 34 

Contracted with ALC 10 routes / 18 students  

 
We are still transporting 243 displaced students. 
 
 
TRAINING AND OTHER EVENTS: 
 
On March 1st Mike Jones, Randy Boatman, Stephen Sluder, and Brenda Bernander 
attended a personnel workshop at Tomball ISD presented by the Texas Association of 
School Personnel Administrators.  Sessions addressed hiring, training, conflict 
resolution, the grievance process, and other topics.  The department held a maroon 
track safety meeting on March 29th.  Topics discussed were railroad crossing safety and 
traffic flow in and out of the Rosenberg terminal. 
 

 
STUDENT DISCIPLINE: 
 
A total of 259 discipline reports were issued in March.  
 
 
Resource Persons:   Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
    Mike Jones, Director of Transportation 

178



  
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  MEDICAL/RX PLAN STRUCTURAL CHANGES 
 
The total cost of the District’s Health Plan (Medical and Pharmacy) continues to moderate with 
the strategic planning changes that have been made over the past several plan years.  The total 
cost (plan fixed cost plus net paid medical/pharmacy claims) for the 2015-2016 plan year was 
10.94% lower than the 2014-2015 plan year.  The 2016-2017 plan year-to-date total cost 
continues to trend downward, estimated to be 3.26% lower than the 2015-2016 plan year end 
cost.  Overall Medical and Pharmacy costs continue to rise at a rate much higher than the 
Consumer Price Index, and the cost of compliance continues to add stress to the ongoing 
efforts to control the total cost of the District’s Health Plans. 
 
We are recommending for the following for the 2017-2018 Plan Year: 
 

 No benefit changes to the six (6) Medical/Pharmacy plans offers 
o Three (3) Exclusive Provider Plans (EPO) – [highest quality/highest cost 

efficiencies] 
o Three (3) Preferred Provider Plans (PPO) 

 Continue to encourage member participation in the District’s three (3) EPO (In-Network 
Only) Plans. 

o Increase employee/dependent contributions by +3.5% for all tiers/all EPO Plans 

 Continue efforts to match revenue versus expense for the District’s three (3) PPO (In 
and Out-of-Network) Plans 

o Increase employee/dependent contributions by +20% for all tiers/all PPO Plans 

 Continue to manage/control/reduce plan costs through the Condition Based Health 
Management Plan – Diabetes Hypertension Plan (DHP) 

o Plan rolled out January 1, 2016 and the results to date have been very good 

 Consider an additional Health Management Plan – Real Appeal™ 
o Real Appeal is a fresh approach to Health Management – it helps employees and 

employers avoid the financial and human cost of Type 2 diabetes and a host of 
other preventable diseases.  It is a program that empowers people, focuses on 
the individual, and manages outcomes for success. 

 
The District continues to monitor the existing healthcare law, the Patient Protection Affordable 
Care Act (PPACA), as well as the resulting impact of any future changes. 

     
Contact Persons: Dr. Kathleen Bowen, Chief Human Resources Officer 
  Trudy Harris, Assistant Director Employee Services and Risk  
   Management 
  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
 

10.B.#6. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

APRIL 20, 2017 

179


	April 20 2017 Board Book WITH Closed Session - Final.pdf
	Cover
	Agenda
	Approval of minutes
	March 21, 2017 - Special Meeting (Workshop)
	Minutes Special Meeting March 21 2017.docx

	March 23, 2017 - Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes Regular Meeting March 23 2017.docx


	ACTION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	Consider approval of out-of-state student trip requests, including, but not limited to:
	Math Finalists
	MathCON Out of State Travel Approval Board Agenda Item.docx

	Technology Students Association (TSA)
	TSA Travel Request.doc


	Consider adoption of the Kathleen Joerger Lindsey Elementary School Mascot and School Colors
	Lindsey Board Recommendation Mascot and Colors.docx
	Lindsey Elementary Ballot Tally Mascot.xlsx


	Goal: Planning
	Consider ratification of Quarterly Investment Report
	Quarterly Investment Cover.doc
	Quarterly Investment Backup.pdf

	Consider approval of budget amendment requests
	April 17 Budget Amendments (002).doc

	Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports
	Financial and Investment Reports.docx
	Schedule of Disbursements March 2017.docx
	MUNIS 953 March 2017 Updated Board Copy.xlsx
	Investment Report March 2017 Board Copy.pdf

	Consider designation of Patsy Schultz, RTA as Tax Assessor-Collector for Lamar Consolidated ISD 
	Tax Collection Contract Cover Piece 2017-22 04112017.doc
	Lamar CISD 2017 Interlocal - revisions.docx

	Consider approval of depository bank contract extension
	DEPOSITORY BANK CONTRACT EXTENSION.docx
	Extension of Contract.pdf

	Consider approval of independent auditors for the 2016-2017 school year
	Independent Auditors.docx
	LCISD Engagement Letter - FY 2017.pdf

	Consider approval of Instructional Materials Allotment and TEKS Certification 
	Instructional Materials Allotment and TEKS Certification 2017_2018.doc
	TEKS backup.pdf

	Consider approval of blanket purchase agreement (BPA) with HON Company LLC
	HON BPA Agreement - Cover Item.doc
	Lamar CISD 2017 2018 BPA 04112017.pdf

	Consider approval of districtwide vending machine services
	Vending Machine Services_Rev 04112017.doc
	RFP 12-2016LN_ Vending Machine FINAL 04112017.xlsx

	Consider approval of request for 2017 Historic Site Exemption Qualification for Darst-Yoder House
	Darst Yoder House Historic Site Exemption.doc
	Darst Yoder House backup.pdf
	Johnston Faye Darst Home 04112017.pdf

	Discussion and potential action regarding local option exemption for taxpayers age 65 or older or disabled
	Over 65 Exemption Discussion 04132017 3 FINAL.docx

	Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming:
	Public School Paraprofessionals' Day
	Public School Paraprofessional Day Recommendation.doc
	Public School Paraprofessional Day Resolution.pdf

	School Nurses' Week
	School Nurse Week Recommendation.doc
	School Nurse Week Resolution.doc

	Teacher Appreciation Week
	Teacher Appreciation Week Recommendation.doc
	Teacher Appreciation Week Resolution.doc


	Consider retail sales interlocal agreement for electricity with the Texas General Land Office
	Texas General Land Office cover piece 04132017.docx
	Lamar Consolidated ISD_GLO RSA.pdf

	Consider approval of job order contracting award for Pink Elementary School
	Pink ES.docx
	2017-03-30 Bid Tab JOC Award Pink ES.xlsx

	Consider approval of MUD No. 142 annexation 
	MUD No 142 Annexation.docx
	2017-04-20 Petitions for Consent to Include Additional Land into the Dis   .pdf

	Consider approval of additional geotechnical engineering services for the Foster High School water plant upgrades
	Geotechnical Engineering for FHS water plant upgrades.docx
	2017-03-28 Proposal Additional Geotechnical Engineering Services Terracon Foster HS Water Plant Upgrades.pdf

	Consider approval of an Interlocal Agreement with Fort Bend County Municipal Utility Districts No. 106, No. 108, No. 109, and No. 117
	INTEROCAL AGREEMENT WITH FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICTS NO.docx
	Interlocal agreement with exhibits.pdf

	Consider approval of architect contract
	ARCHITECT CONTRACT.docx

	Consider approval of the procurement method for the all-weather sports field and track projects at Dickinson and Campbell Elementary Schools
	Procurement Method Field  Track.docx
	Evaluation Criteria For Construction Proposals_Rev April 2016.pdf

	Discussion and/or possible action on the current use of facilities rental fees
	DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION ON CURRENT USE OF FACILITIES RATES .docx
	Use of Facilities New Rates 070611 R1.docx


	Goal:  Safe, Drug-Free and Disciplined Schools
	Consider approval of the Secondary Co-Curricular and Extra-Curricular Code of Conduct, Secondary Dress and Grooming, and Lamar CISD Student Code of Coduct for the 2017-2018 school year
	SCOC board agenda item 2017-2018.doc
	2017-18 Code of Conduct List of Revisions (00000002).doc


	Goal:  Personnel
	Consider approval of new appraisers for teaching staff, 2016-2017 school year
	New Appraisers 4-20-17.docx


	Goal:  Technology
	Consider approval of District Learning Management System
	Learning Management System.docx
	Canvas Contract Draft.pdf

	Consider approval of districtwide tardy kiosk implementation
	Tardy Kiosk Implementation.docx



	INFORMATION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	2016-2017 Summer School
	2016 2017 Summer School BOARD.doc
	LCISD Summer 2017 Information.docx

	2016-2017 School Health Advisory Council
	SHAC.doc


	Goal: Planning
	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Collections information item 03312017.doc
	TAX COLLECTIONS MARCH 2017 (00000002).pdf

	Payments for Construction Projects
	Payments for Construction.docx

	Bond Update
	2011
	Monthly Report-April 2017.docx
	Schedule for Monthly Report 5_16 (3).pdf
	district-map-FOR MONTHLY REPORT.pdf

	2014
	Monthly Report VRGJV SH.pdf


	Projects funded by 2011 available bond funds
	PROJECTS WITH AVAILABLE BOND FUNDS APR.docx

	Transportation Update
	Transportation Update April.docx

	Medical/Rx Plan structural changes
	Medical RX Plan Structural changes.docx



	CLOSED SESSION
	Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the following purposes:  (Time___________________)
	Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.
	Personnel Employment.pdf
	Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional personnel
	Employed 4-20-17.docx
	Resume-Cunningham.pdf

	Employment of professional personnel (Information)
	April 20 Employed Only.docx

	Employee resignations and retirements (Information)
	April 20 Resigned Only.docx

	Consider renewal of contract for professional teachers/support personnel
	Renewal contract for professional teachers support personnel.pdf

	Consider renewals for late hires
	Renewals for late hires.pdf





	page 74.pdf
	page 74.pdf
	Cover
	Agenda
	Approval of minutes
	March 21, 2017 - Special Meeting (Workshop)
	Minutes Special Meeting March 21 2017.docx

	March 23, 2017 - Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes Regular Meeting March 23 2017.docx


	ACTION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	Consider approval of out-of-state student trip requests, including, but not limited to:
	Math Finalists
	MathCON Out of State Travel Approval Board Agenda Item.docx

	Technology Students Association (TSA)
	TSA Travel Request.doc


	Consider adoption of the Kathleen Joerger Lindsey Elementary School Mascot and School Colors
	Lindsey Board Recommendation Mascot and Colors.docx
	Lindsey Elementary Ballot Tally Mascot.xlsx


	Goal: Planning
	Consider ratification of Quarterly Investment Report
	Quarterly Investment Cover.doc
	Quarterly Investment Backup.pdf

	Consider approval of budget amendment requests
	April 17 Budget Amendments (002).doc

	Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports
	Financial and Investment Reports.docx
	Schedule of Disbursements March 2017.docx
	MUNIS 953 March 2017 Updated Board Copy.xlsx
	Investment Report March 2017 Board Copy.pdf

	Consider designation of Patsy Schultz, RTA as Tax Assessor-Collector for Lamar Consolidated ISD 
	Tax Collection Contract Cover Piece 2017-22 04112017.doc
	Lamar CISD 2017 Interlocal - revisions.docx

	Consider approval of depository bank contract extension
	DEPOSITORY BANK CONTRACT EXTENSION.docx
	Extension of Contract.pdf

	Consider approval of independent auditors for the 2016-2017 school year
	Independent Auditors.docx
	LCISD Engagement Letter - FY 2017.pdf

	Consider approval of Instructional Materials Allotment and TEKS Certification 
	Instructional Materials Allotment and TEKS Certification 2017_2018.doc
	TEKS backup.pdf

	Consider approval of blanket purchase agreement (BPA) with HON Company LLC
	HON BPA Agreement - Cover Item.doc
	Lamar CISD 2017 2018 BPA 04112017.pdf

	Consider approval of districtwide vending machine services
	Vending Machine Services_Rev 04112017.doc
	RFP 12-2016LN_ Vending Machine FINAL 04112017.xlsx

	Consider approval of request for 2017 Historic Site Exemption Qualification for Darst-Yoder House
	Darst Yoder House Historic Site Exemption.doc
	Darst Yoder House backup.pdf
	Johnston Faye Darst Home 04112017.pdf

	Discussion and potential action regarding local option exemption for taxpayers age 65 or older or disabled
	Over 65 Exemption Discussion 04132017 3 FINAL.docx

	Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming:
	Public School Paraprofessionals' Day
	Public School Paraprofessional Day Recommendation.doc
	Public School Paraprofessional Day Resolution.pdf

	School Nurses' Week
	School Nurse Week Recommendation.doc
	School Nurse Week Resolution.doc

	Teacher Appreciation Week
	Teacher Appreciation Week Recommendation.doc
	Teacher Appreciation Week Resolution.doc


	Consider retail sales interlocal agreement for electricity with the Texas General Land Office
	Texas General Land Office cover piece 04132017.docx
	Lamar Consolidated ISD_GLO RSA.pdf

	Consider approval of job order contracting award for Pink Elementary School
	Pink ES.docx
	2017-03-30 Bid Tab JOC Award Pink ES.xlsx

	Consider approval of MUD No. 142 annexation 
	MUD No 142 Annexation.docx
	2017-04-20 Petitions for Consent to Include Additional Land into the Dis   .pdf

	Consider approval of additional geotechnical engineering services for the Foster High School water plant upgrades
	Geotechnical Engineering for FHS water plant upgrades.docx
	2017-03-28 Proposal Additional Geotechnical Engineering Services Terracon Foster HS Water Plant Upgrades.pdf

	Consider approval of an Interlocal Agreement with Fort Bend County Municipal Utility Districts No. 106, No. 108, No. 109, and No. 117
	INTEROCAL AGREEMENT WITH FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICTS NO.docx
	Interlocal agreement with exhibits.pdf

	Consider approval of architect contract
	ARCHITECT CONTRACT.docx

	Consider approval of the procurement method for the all-weather sports field and track projects at Dickinson and Campbell Elementary Schools
	Procurement Method Field  Track.docx
	Evaluation Criteria For Construction Proposals_Rev April 2016.pdf

	Discussion and/or possible action on the current use of facilities rental fees
	DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION ON CURRENT USE OF FACILITIES RATES .docx
	Use of Facilities New Rates 070611 R1.docx


	Goal:  Safe, Drug-Free and Disciplined Schools
	Consider approval of the Secondary Co-Curricular and Extra-Curricular Code of Conduct, Secondary Dress and Grooming, and Lamar CISD Student Code of Coduct for the 2017-2018 school year
	SCOC board agenda item 2017-2018.doc
	2017-18 Code of Conduct List of Revisions (00000002).doc


	Goal:  Personnel
	Consider approval of new appraisers for teaching staff, 2016-2017 school year
	New Appraisers 4-20-17.docx


	Goal:  Technology
	Consider approval of District Learning Management System
	Learning Management System.docx
	Canvas Contract Draft.pdf

	Consider approval of districtwide tardy kiosk implementation
	Tardy Kiosk Implementation.docx



	INFORMATION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	2016-2017 Summer School
	2016 2017 Summer School BOARD.doc
	LCISD Summer 2017 Information.docx

	2016-2017 School Health Advisory Council
	SHAC.doc


	Goal: Planning
	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Collections information item 03312017.doc
	TAX COLLECTIONS MARCH 2017 (00000002).pdf

	Payments for Construction Projects
	Payments for Construction.docx

	Bond Update
	2011
	Monthly Report-April 2017.docx
	Schedule for Monthly Report 5_16 (3).pdf
	district-map-FOR MONTHLY REPORT.pdf

	2014
	Monthly Report VRGJV SH.pdf


	Projects funded by 2011 available bond funds
	PROJECTS WITH AVAILABLE BOND FUNDS APR.docx

	Transportation Update
	Transportation Update April.docx

	Medical/Rx Plan structural changes
	Medical RX Plan Structural changes.docx



	CLOSED SESSION
	Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the following purposes:  (Time___________________)
	Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.
	Personnel Employment.pdf
	Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional personnel
	Employed 4-20-17.docx
	Resume-Cunningham.pdf

	Employment of professional personnel (Information)
	April 20 Employed Only.docx

	Employee resignations and retirements (Information)
	April 20 Resigned Only.docx

	Consider renewal of contract for professional teachers/support personnel
	Renewal contract for professional teachers support personnel.pdf

	Consider renewals for late hires
	Renewals for late hires.pdf






	agenda fix.pdf
	agenda fix.pdf
	Cover
	Agenda
	Approval of minutes
	March 21, 2017 - Special Meeting (Workshop)
	Minutes Special Meeting March 21 2017.docx

	March 23, 2017 - Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes Regular Meeting March 23 2017.docx


	ACTION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	Consider approval of out-of-state student trip requests, including, but not limited to:
	Math Finalists
	MathCON Out of State Travel Approval Board Agenda Item.docx

	Technology Students Association (TSA)
	TSA Travel Request.doc


	Consider adoption of the Kathleen Joerger Lindsey Elementary School Mascot and School Colors
	Lindsey Board Recommendation Mascot and Colors.docx
	Lindsey Elementary Ballot Tally Mascot.xlsx


	Goal: Planning
	Consider ratification of Quarterly Investment Report
	Quarterly Investment Cover.doc
	Quarterly Investment Backup.pdf

	Consider approval of budget amendment requests
	April 17 Budget Amendments (002).doc

	Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports
	Financial and Investment Reports.docx
	Schedule of Disbursements March 2017.docx
	MUNIS 953 March 2017 Updated Board Copy.xlsx
	Investment Report March 2017 Board Copy.pdf

	Consider designation of Patsy Schultz, RTA as Tax Assessor-Collector for Lamar Consolidated ISD 
	Tax Collection Contract Cover Piece 2017-22 04112017.doc
	Lamar CISD 2017 Interlocal - revisions.docx

	Consider approval of depository bank contract extension
	DEPOSITORY BANK CONTRACT EXTENSION.docx
	Extension of Contract.pdf

	Consider approval of independent auditors for the 2016-2017 school year
	Independent Auditors.docx
	LCISD Engagement Letter - FY 2017.pdf

	Consider approval of Instructional Materials Allotment and TEKS Certification 
	Instructional Materials Allotment and TEKS Certification 2017_2018.doc
	TEKS backup.pdf

	Consider approval of blanket purchase agreement (BPA) with HON Company LLC
	HON BPA Agreement - Cover Item.doc
	Lamar CISD 2017 2018 BPA 04112017.pdf

	Consider approval of districtwide vending machine services
	Vending Machine Services_Rev 04112017.doc
	RFP 12-2016LN_ Vending Machine FINAL 04112017.xlsx

	Consider approval of request for 2017 Historic Site Exemption Qualification for Darst-Yoder House
	Darst Yoder House Historic Site Exemption.doc
	Darst Yoder House backup.pdf
	Johnston Faye Darst Home 04112017.pdf

	Discussion and potential action regarding local option exemption for taxpayers age 65 or older or disabled
	Over 65 Exemption Discussion 04132017 3 FINAL.docx

	Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming:
	Public School Paraprofessionals' Day
	Public School Paraprofessional Day Recommendation.doc
	Public School Paraprofessional Day Resolution.pdf

	School Nurses' Week
	School Nurse Week Recommendation.doc
	School Nurse Week Resolution.doc

	Teacher Appreciation Week
	Teacher Appreciation Week Recommendation.doc
	Teacher Appreciation Week Resolution.doc


	Consider retail sales interlocal agreement for electricity with the Texas General Land Office
	Texas General Land Office cover piece 04132017.docx
	Lamar Consolidated ISD_GLO RSA.pdf

	Consider approval of job order contracting award for Pink Elementary School
	Pink ES.docx
	2017-03-30 Bid Tab JOC Award Pink ES.xlsx

	Consider approval of MUD No. 142 annexation 
	MUD No 142 Annexation.docx
	2017-04-20 Petitions for Consent to Include Additional Land into the Dis   .pdf

	Consider approval of additional geotechnical engineering services for the Foster High School water plant upgrades
	Geotechnical Engineering for FHS water plant upgrades.docx
	2017-03-28 Proposal Additional Geotechnical Engineering Services Terracon Foster HS Water Plant Upgrades.pdf

	Consider approval of an Interlocal Agreement with Fort Bend County Municipal Utility Districts No. 106, No. 108, No. 109, and No. 117
	INTEROCAL AGREEMENT WITH FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICTS NO.docx
	Interlocal agreement with exhibits.pdf

	Consider approval of architect contract
	ARCHITECT CONTRACT.docx

	Consider approval of the procurement method for the all-weather sports field and track projects at Dickinson and Campbell Elementary Schools
	Procurement Method Field  Track.docx
	Evaluation Criteria For Construction Proposals_Rev April 2016.pdf

	Discussion and/or possible action on the current use of facilities rental fees
	DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION ON CURRENT USE OF FACILITIES RATES .docx
	Use of Facilities New Rates 070611 R1.docx


	Goal:  Safe, Drug-Free and Disciplined Schools
	Consider approval of the Secondary Co-Curricular and Extra-Curricular Code of Conduct, Secondary Dress and Grooming, and Lamar CISD Student Code of Conduct for the 2017-2018 school year
	SCOC board agenda item 2017-2018.doc
	2017-18 Code of Conduct List of Revisions (00000002).doc


	Goal:  Personnel
	Consider approval of new appraisers for teaching staff, 2016-2017 school year
	New Appraisers 4-20-17.docx


	Goal:  Technology
	Consider approval of District Learning Management System
	Learning Management System.docx
	Canvas Contract Draft.pdf

	Consider approval of districtwide tardy kiosk implementation
	Tardy Kiosk Implementation.docx



	INFORMATION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	2016-2017 Summer School
	2016 2017 Summer School BOARD.doc
	LCISD Summer 2017 Information.docx

	2016-2017 School Health Advisory Council
	SHAC.doc


	Goal: Planning
	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Collections information item 03312017.doc
	TAX COLLECTIONS MARCH 2017 (00000002).pdf

	Payments for Construction Projects
	Payments for Construction.docx

	Bond Update
	2011
	Monthly Report-April 2017.docx
	Schedule for Monthly Report 5_16 (3).pdf
	district-map-FOR MONTHLY REPORT.pdf

	2014
	Monthly Report VRGJV SH.pdf


	Projects funded by 2011 available bond funds
	PROJECTS WITH AVAILABLE BOND FUNDS APR.docx

	Transportation Update
	Transportation Update April.docx

	Medical/Rx Plan structural changes
	Medical RX Plan Structural changes.docx



	CLOSED SESSION
	Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the following purposes:  (Time___________________)
	Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.
	Personnel Employment.pdf
	Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional personnel
	Employed 4-20-17.docx
	Resume-Cunningham.pdf

	Employment of professional personnel (Information)
	April 20 Employed Only.docx

	Employee resignations and retirements (Information)
	April 20 Resigned Only.docx

	Consider renewal of contract for professional teachers/support personnel
	Renewal contract for professional teachers support personnel.pdf

	Consider renewals for late hires
	Renewals for late hires.pdf






	agenda fix.pdf
	agenda fix.pdf
	Cover
	Agenda
	Approval of minutes
	March 21, 2017 - Special Meeting (Workshop)
	Minutes Special Meeting March 21 2017.docx

	March 23, 2017 - Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes Regular Meeting March 23 2017.docx


	ACTION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	Consider approval of out-of-state student trip requests, including, but not limited to:
	Math Finalists
	MathCON Out of State Travel Approval Board Agenda Item.docx

	Technology Students Association (TSA)
	TSA Travel Request.doc


	Consider adoption of the Kathleen Joerger Lindsey Elementary School Mascot and School Colors
	Lindsey Board Recommendation Mascot and Colors.docx
	Lindsey Elementary Ballot Tally Mascot.xlsx


	Goal: Planning
	Consider ratification of Quarterly Investment Report
	Quarterly Investment Cover.doc
	Quarterly Investment Backup.pdf

	Consider approval of budget amendment requests
	April 17 Budget Amendments (002).doc

	Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports
	Financial and Investment Reports.docx
	Schedule of Disbursements March 2017.docx
	MUNIS 953 March 2017 Updated Board Copy.xlsx
	Investment Report March 2017 Board Copy.pdf

	Consider designation of Patsy Schultz, RTA as Tax Assessor-Collector for Lamar Consolidated ISD 
	Tax Collection Contract Cover Piece 2017-22 04112017.doc
	Lamar CISD 2017 Interlocal - revisions.docx

	Consider approval of depository bank contract extension
	DEPOSITORY BANK CONTRACT EXTENSION.docx
	Extension of Contract.pdf

	Consider approval of independent auditors for the 2016-2017 school year
	Independent Auditors.docx
	LCISD Engagement Letter - FY 2017.pdf

	Consider approval of Instructional Materials Allotment and TEKS Certification 
	Instructional Materials Allotment and TEKS Certification 2017_2018.doc
	TEKS backup.pdf

	Consider approval of blanket purchase agreement (BPA) with HON Company LLC
	HON BPA Agreement - Cover Item.doc
	Lamar CISD 2017 2018 BPA 04112017.pdf

	Consider approval of districtwide vending machine services
	Vending Machine Services_Rev 04112017.doc
	RFP 12-2016LN_ Vending Machine FINAL 04112017.xlsx

	Consider approval of request for 2017 Historic Site Exemption Qualification for Darst-Yoder House
	Darst Yoder House Historic Site Exemption.doc
	Darst Yoder House backup.pdf
	Johnston Faye Darst Home 04112017.pdf

	Discussion and potential action regarding local option exemption for taxpayers age 65 or older or disabled
	Over 65 Exemption Discussion 04132017 3 FINAL.docx

	Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming:
	Public School Paraprofessionals' Day
	Public School Paraprofessional Day Recommendation.doc
	Public School Paraprofessional Day Resolution.pdf

	School Nurses' Week
	School Nurse Week Recommendation.doc
	School Nurse Week Resolution.doc

	Teacher Appreciation Week
	Teacher Appreciation Week Recommendation.doc
	Teacher Appreciation Week Resolution.doc


	Consider retail sales interlocal agreement for electricity with the Texas General Land Office
	Texas General Land Office cover piece 04132017.docx
	Lamar Consolidated ISD_GLO RSA.pdf

	Consider approval of job order contracting award for Pink Elementary School
	Pink ES.docx
	2017-03-30 Bid Tab JOC Award Pink ES.xlsx

	Consider approval of MUD No. 142 annexation 
	MUD No 142 Annexation.docx
	2017-04-20 Petitions for Consent to Include Additional Land into the Dis   .pdf

	Consider approval of additional geotechnical engineering services for the Foster High School water plant upgrades
	Geotechnical Engineering for FHS water plant upgrades.docx
	2017-03-28 Proposal Additional Geotechnical Engineering Services Terracon Foster HS Water Plant Upgrades.pdf

	Consider approval of an Interlocal Agreement with Fort Bend County Municipal Utility Districts No. 106, No. 108, No. 109, and No. 117
	INTEROCAL AGREEMENT WITH FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICTS NO.docx
	Interlocal agreement with exhibits.pdf

	Consider approval of architect contract
	ARCHITECT CONTRACT.docx

	Consider approval of the procurement method for the all-weather sports field and track projects at Dickinson and Campbell Elementary Schools
	Procurement Method Field  Track.docx
	Evaluation Criteria For Construction Proposals_Rev April 2016.pdf

	Discussion and/or possible action on the current use of facilities rental fees
	DISCUSSION AND OR ACTION ON CURRENT USE OF FACILITIES RATES .docx
	Use of Facilities New Rates 070611 R1.docx


	Goal:  Safe, Drug-Free and Disciplined Schools
	Consider approval of the Secondary Co-Curricular and Extra-Curricular Code of Conduct, Secondary Dress and Grooming, and Lamar CISD Student Code of Conduct for the 2017-2018 school year
	SCOC board agenda item 2017-2018.doc
	2017-18 Code of Conduct List of Revisions (00000002).doc


	Goal:  Personnel
	Consider approval of new appraisers for teaching staff, 2016-2017 school year
	New Appraisers 4-20-17.docx


	Goal:  Technology
	Consider approval of District Learning Management System
	Learning Management System.docx
	Canvas Contract Draft.pdf

	Consider approval of districtwide tardy kiosk implementation
	Tardy Kiosk Implementation.docx



	INFORMATION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	2016-2017 Summer School
	2016 2017 Summer School BOARD.doc
	LCISD Summer 2017 Information.docx

	2016-2017 School Health Advisory Council
	SHAC.doc


	Goal: Planning
	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Collections information item 03312017.doc
	TAX COLLECTIONS MARCH 2017 (00000002).pdf

	Payments for Construction Projects
	Payments for Construction.docx

	Bond Update
	2011
	Monthly Report-April 2017.docx
	Schedule for Monthly Report 5_16 (3).pdf
	district-map-FOR MONTHLY REPORT.pdf

	2014
	Monthly Report VRGJV SH.pdf


	Projects funded by 2011 available bond funds
	PROJECTS WITH AVAILABLE BOND FUNDS APR.docx

	Transportation Update
	Transportation Update April.docx

	Medical/Rx Plan structural changes
	Medical RX Plan Structural changes.docx



	CLOSED SESSION
	Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the following purposes:  (Time___________________)
	Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.
	Personnel Employment.pdf
	Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional personnel
	Employed 4-20-17.docx
	Resume-Cunningham.pdf

	Employment of professional personnel (Information)
	April 20 Employed Only.docx

	Employee resignations and retirements (Information)
	April 20 Resigned Only.docx

	Consider renewal of contract for professional teachers/support personnel
	Renewal contract for professional teachers support personnel.pdf

	Consider renewals for late hires
	Renewals for late hires.pdf







